
AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

YECA GOVERNING BOARD 
Yolo Emergency Communications Agency, 35 N. Cottonwood Street, Woodland, CA 95695 

September 3, 2014  
3:00 P.M. Public Session 

 
 

ALL ITEMS ARE FOR ACTION UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED WITH AN ASTERISK (*). 
    

 
1. Call to Order (3:00 PM)  

 
 

2. Public Comment * 
Speakers must state their name and city of residence for the record and limit their remarks to three 
minutes.  Members of the public audience may address the Governing Board on any item not on 
today’s agenda. No response is required and no action can be taken, however, the Governing 
Board may add the item to the agenda of a future meeting. 
 
 

3. Announcements 
 
 

4. Approval of the Agenda  
 
 

5. Consent Agenda 
Consent Agenda items are considered to be routine and will be considered for adoption by one 
motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Governing 
Board, member of the audience, or staff requests that the Governing Board remove an item. If an 
item is removed, it will be discussed in the order in which it appears on the Agenda. 
 

a. Approval of the Minutes from the August 6, 2014 Regular Meeting  - Pg. 1 
b. Operations Division Report – Pg. 3 
c. Current Year Budget Status Update  - Pg. 5 

 
6. Old Business – Pg. 6 

a. Automatic Transfer Switch (ATS) Update  
b. Standard Levels of Service Update  

 
7. Dispatch Staffing Follow-Up Summary  

a. Dispatch Staffing Follow-up Summary  - Pg. 7 
 

8. Motorola Radio Replacement Project  
a. Motorola Radio Replacement Project Summary  - Pg. 9    
b. Motorola Radio Proposal  - Pg. 11 

 
9. Next Scheduled JPA Board Meeting October 1, 2014  



10. Items for Future Agenda  
 

11. Adjournment 
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda was available for public review and posted 
on/or before August 29, 2014 on the bulletin board outside of the Yolo County Board of Supervisors 
Chambers, Erwin Meier Administration Center, 625 Court St., Woodland, California and on the 
agency website: http://www.yeca911.org/BoardCalendar2014.html 

        
   

        
  

 

**The meeting room is wheelchair accessible and disabled parking is available.  If you are a person 
with a disability and you need disability related accommodations to attend the meeting, please contact 
Marci Criste at (530) 666-8919 or (530) 666-8909 (fax).  Requests for accommodations must be made 
at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. ** 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

1 

 

Agenda Item: 5.a. 

YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY (YECA) 
 GOVERNING BOARD 

August 6, 2014 
MINUTES 

The YECA Governing Board met on Wednesday, August 6, 2014 at the Yolo Emergency 
Communications Agency, Woodland CA.  Board Chair Sergio Gutierrez called the meeting to 
order at 3:02 p.m. 

PRESENT: Primary Board Members: Sergio Gutierrez, City of Winters, Tom Lopez, Yolo 
County, 

 Carol Richardson, City of West Sacramento, Dan Bellini, City of Woodland, Gary 
Fredericksen, Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation, and Dena Humphrey, Agency Manager. 

Entry No. 2 

Public Comment 
None 

Entry No. 3 

Announcements 
Tom Lopez announced at the Homeland Security Grant Meeting, the committee would be 
interested in seeing YECA submit a solidified plan next year for possible CAD-to-CAD interfaces 
with some of the other local PSAP’s.  
 

Entry No. 4 

Minute Order No. 2014-50:  Approval of Agenda 
The Agenda was approved as presented. 

MOTION: Bellini SECOND: Richardson AYES: Gutierrez, Fredericksen, Bellini, Lopez, 
Richardson. 

Entry No. 5 

Minute Order No. 2014-51:  Approval of Consent Agenda 
The Consent Agenda was approved as presented. 

MOTION: Lopez SECOND: Bellini AYES: Gutierrez, Fredericksen, Bellini, Lopez, Richardson. 

Entry No. 6 

FY13 External Audit Presentation, Macias, Gini & O’Connell LLP 

Mark Aspesi, from Macias, Gini & O’Connell gave an oral report on YECA’s financial 
statements and independent audit for fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 

No action was taken 



 

2 

 

Entry No. 7 

Software Cost Allocations 
Agency Manager Dena Humphrey presented to the Board a recommendation for the allocation of 
costs for software licensing.  After some discussion, direction was given to continue with member 
agency’s paying for the initial license and YECA pay the annual recurring costs, to monitor the 
costs and develop a policy to include a deviation of more than 10% in costs would be brought 
back to the Board.   

Entry No. 8 

Standard Levels of Service 
Agency Manager Dena Humphrey requested support from the Board for the Agency to establish 
standard levels of service for a shared understanding of needs and priorities; to manage service 
improvement; and communicate expectations to staff.  

Staff was given direction to develop a matrix of services for both law and fire for user agencies to 
review, meet, and collaborate for potential consolidation of services.        

The next scheduled meeting will be September 3, 2014.   
Meeting was adjourned at 3:41 p.m. 

Minutes submitted by:  Marci Criste, Recording Secretary  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

3 

 

STAFF REPORT 

Agenda Item: 5.b. 
Date:  August 22, 2014 

To:  YECA Governing Board 

Thru:  Dena Humphrey, Agency Manager 

From:  Karen Avara, Operations Manager  

Subject: Operations Division Report 

Recommendation:  No action required; information only. 

Summary:  Operations staff is currently engaged in the following: 
 

• Grants: 
HSG FY 13- Awaiting reimbursement for Camera Project  
HSG FY 14- Awaiting approval letter for final completion of Camera Project   
 

• Staffing: 
Completed initial interviews of 33 candidates, next step in the process will entail a 4-hour 
dispatch observation for final selections.  
 

• Internal Affairs: July 29, 2014-August 25, 2014 
1. Grievances: None 
2. Complaints: None 
3. Commendations: None   

• Employee Quarterly Perfect Attendance Awards: 
May 2014-July 2014: 

o Dispatcher I Mayra Berumen-Perez 
o Dispatcher II Krista Bryant 
o Dispatcher II Teri Lynn Caughie 
o Dispatcher II Kim Lindsay 
o Dispatcher II Lee Sandoval 
o Dispatcher II Kim Soares 
o Dispatcher II Stephanie Taylor 
o Dispatcher II Diana Wilson 
o Supervisor Dave Hetland 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

4 

 

Statistical Information: 
• Monthly Phone Statistics:  

Month  9-1-1   Non-Emergency Outgoing Total 
July  6,040  17,089   8,088  31,217 

   
• Monthly CAD Events: 

Included in “Other” category are AMR, Animal Control, All Public Works, County 
Maintenance, Social Services, Environmental Health, and Public Guardian.  
Month  Law  Fire  Other 
July  16,940  1,971  1,099 
      

• Confidential Records Requests: 
Month  # of Requests 
July  157 
   

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

5 

 

YECA BUDGET MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
2014 / 2015    As of 8/28/14

   8% 17% 25% 33% 42% 50% 58% 67% 75% 83% 92% 100%
Line item JUL-14 AUG-14 SEPT-14 OCT-14 NOV-14 DEC-14 JAN-15 FEB-15 MAR-15 APR-15 MAY-15 JUN-15

360 360-1 ADMINISTRATION
Appropriations 2,409,409$         2,409,409$         2,409,409$         2,409,409$         2,409,409$         2,409,409$         2,409,409$         2,409,409$         2,409,409$         2,409,409$         2,409,409$        2,409,409$        
Expenditures 40,589$             127,560$            -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                     
Percent Expended 2% 5% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

360 360-2 OPERATIONS - DISPATCH
Appropriations 3,507,387$         3,507,387$         3,507,387$         3,507,387$         3,507,387$         3,507,387$         3,507,387$         3,507,387$         3,507,387$         3,507,387$         3,507,387$        3,507,387$        
Expenditures 130,542$            374,238$            -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                     
Percent Expended 4% 11% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

TOTAL for all budget units - B/U 360-1 Administration; 360-2 Operations Dispatch; 
Appropriations 5,916,796$         5,916,796$         5,916,796$         5,916,796$         5,916,796$         5,916,796$         5,916,796$         5,916,796$         5,916,796$         5,916,796$         5,916,796$        5,916,796$        
Encumbrances 3,573$               3,430$               -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                     
Expenditures 171,130$           501,798$           -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                    
Unencumbered 5,742,093$        5,411,568$        5,916,796$        5,916,796$        5,916,796$        5,916,796$        5,916,796$        5,916,796$        5,916,796$        5,916,796$        5,916,796$       5,916,796$       
Percent Expended 3% 9% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Estimated Revenue 5,916,796$         5,916,796$         5,916,796$         5,916,796$         5,916,796$         5,916,796$         5,916,796$         5,916,796$         5,916,796$         5,916,796$         5,916,796$        5,916,796$        
Realized Revenue -$                      24,326$             -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                     
Percent Realized 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

   8% 17% 25% 33% 42% 50% 58% 67% 75% 83% 92% 100%
Line item JUL-14 AUG-14 SEPT-14 OCT-14 NOV-14 DEC-14 JAN-15 FEB-15 MAR-15 APR-15 MAY-15 JUN-15

360 360-3 CAD CAD PROJECT  
Appropriations         699,392$            699,392$            699,392$            699,392$            699,392$            699,392$            699,392$            699,392$            699,392$            699,392$            699,392$           699,392$          
Expenditures -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                     
Percent Expended 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Estimated Revenue    699,392$            699,392$            699,392$            699,392$            699,392$            699,392$            699,392$            699,392$            699,392$            699,392$            699,392$           699,392$          
Realized Revenue             
Percent Realized 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

BofA Capital Lease

 

Agenda Item: 5.c. 



 

6 
 

 
 
 Agenda Item: 6 

  Old Business 

a. Automatic Transfer Switch (ATS) Update 

b. Standard Levels of Service Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

7 
 

STAFF REPORT 

  
 
 Agenda Item:  7 

Date: September 3, 2014  

To: YECA Governing Board 

From:   Dena Humphrey, Communications Agency Manager  

Subject:        Staffing Summary Revisit  

Summary:   
 
 
 
At the March 2014 Board meeting, the Board requested to revisit the staffing recommendation in six 
months.  The last proposal to the Board was to increase staffing over a three year period using a 
staggered approach.  Currently the Agency has three Dispatch positions open and funded.  The 
Agency is in a current recruitment phase and just completed interviewing thirty-three applicants last 
week.  There are nine viable candidates who successfully completed interviews and are in the process 
of observing a sit-along.  The background process will begin September 25th with an anticipated start 
date at the beginning of December 2014.     
 
The cost savings holding the 3 FTE vacant positions open for five months is $82,905.  The Agency is 
requesting for the Board to consider increasing the current authorization by 2 FTE’s, changing the 
current authorization from 28 FTE’s to 30 FTE’s.    This would give us a six-month lead to the 
staggered hiring approach presented in March of hiring two additional Dispatchers for FY15/16.  
 
The cost of bringing the 2 additional Dispatchers on early is $77,383, leaving an annual cost savings 
of $5,522.  This approach seemed most practical of reaching the staffing goal set for FY15/16, given 
the length of time, 18 months for training, unforeseen staffing needs, and potential wash-outs.  The 
Agency has been dealing with unforeseen staffing shortages due to medical leaves, FMLA, and a 
recent resignation for a family emergency.  The overtime budget was built to absorb some unknowns 
and measured against previous years.                        

 
The Agency is in the process of preparing a succession plan.  The Agency for the first time will begin 
seeing more retirements within the next five years.  The current years of service within the Dispatcher 
class: 4 employees (25-29 years), 6 employees (15-20 years), 6 employees (10-15years), and 13 
employees (10 years or less).  The senior class of Dispatchers will need to be planned well to mitigate 
staffing shortages considering the length of training.                
 
The chart below was proposed at the March 2014 Board meeting reflects the proposed costs and 
position increases:     
    
 
 
 
 
 



 

8 
 

FY15/16  
Hire (2) Dispatchers – Increasing from 28 FTE’s to 30 FTE’s: $139,458   
Cost per agency based off allocation percentages:  

-  Yolo County  25% = $34,864 
-  Winter’s          5%   = $  6,973 
-  Woodland     33% = $46,021 
-  W. Sac            37% = $51,599 
 
 
 
Proposed Staffing Plan:   

FY Positions Authorized Recommended Funded 

FY 14/15 
Dispatch (I,II,III, Supv) 26 28 28 

Dispatch Assistants 6 4 4 

FY 15/16 
Dispatch (I,II,III, Supv) 28 30 30 

Dispatch Assistants 4 4 4 

FY 16/17 
Dispatch (I,II,III, Supv) 30 30 30 

Dispatch Assistants 4 6 6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

9 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

 
Agenda Item:  8.a. 
Date: September 3, 2014 

To:  YECA Governing Board 

Thru:  Dena Humphrey, Communications Agency Manager 

From:   Charles Keasler, IT Specialist II 

Subject:       Replacement of Dispatch Radio Consoles 

Summary:   
 
The “Gold Elite” radio console used by YECA consists of both hardware and software that allows a 
dispatcher to control the specific radio channels they can listen and talk on. YECA currently runs a 
“mixed” system of ten consoles.  Six of the consoles control conventional radios, while the other four 
consoles control both conventional and the 800MHz channels. 
 
The YECA Gold Elite system has been in continuous use for 10 years. Motorola will discontinue 
support for the Gold Elite Radio Consoles in 2018. With support soon to end and compatibility issues 
to support the new P25 digital standard, the County of Sacramento has obtained quotes to replace the 
consoles for all agencies who participate in the shared SRRCS 800MHz system.  

Motorola performed site visits to YECA and provided YECA a quote to replace the consoles. 
The console replacement project would replace the current 10 Gold Elite Consoles with the new 
Motorola MCC7500 consoles, along with some core equipment that all consoles connect through. The 
project would also include an upgrade to the audio logger that records the digital audio from the 800 
MHz system. The system proposed by Motorola is compatible with the latest radio technologies, 
including the Motorola P25 standard. Unlike the mix of conventional and 800MHz consoles in use 
today, the proposed system will allow all dispatch positions to control both conventional and 800MHz 
radios.  
 
If YECA does not upgrade at this time there is a risk of using legacy equipment that is approaching 
end-of-life and lacks P25 compatibility. YECA would also loose the opportunity to receive a discount 
and the ability to use the bond funds to pay for the project.  
 
Due to the scope of the project and the number of consoles being replaced, Motorola is offering a 
discount of $50,000 if YECA is able to sign a contract within the next 60 days. 
 
After discounts and equipment trade-in, the total one-time cost to replace the consoles (including 
installation) is $636,838.  Maintenance of the system will continue to be handled by Delta Wireless 
for which YECA has an existing contract.   
 
The remaining balance for the Bank of America Bond money is approximately $660,000, with a 
procurement period to end Nov 2015. 
 
YECA respectfully requests board approval to purchase the Motorola MCC7500 radio system 
equipment and to delegate signing authority to the Agency Manager for a cost not to exceed $640k, in 
order to meet the procurement timeline of the bond.  Contract signatory would follow normal review 



 

10 
 

process through Counsel for approval as to form.  A follow up to the Board with final execution dates, 
timeline of project, and listed equipment will be reported back to the Board.    
         
Once the contract is in place, Motorola has estimated an 11 month completion timeline for the project 
to be complete. This would put the project completed by approximately October 2015. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

11 
 

Agenda Item:  8.b. Motorola Proposal  

1.11 YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY (YECA) 
 

YECA is currently equipped with two separate Gold Elite Consoles, one with six operator 
positions which primarily serves Yolo County agencies, Woodland, and Winters; and one which 
primarily serves West Sacramento. This separate was due to limitations of the Gold Elite 
Embassy Network links which made this the most pragmatic solution at the time. The MCC7500 
console system does not have the same limitations with its links; therefore this proposal is based 
on unifying the dispatch consoles at YECA back into a ten operator position console. 

 
The MCC7500 console will consist of ten (10) dispatch console positions – nine for the main 
dispatch area and one for the backroom. All standard dispatch accessories have been provided 
except gooseneck microphones and monitors as detailed further in this document. Five (5) high 
capacity Conventional Channel Gateway (CCGW) have been included that can interface up to 
forty (40) analog conventional resources. A local conventional site controller will ensure that the 
console can access the local conventional channels in the event of the failure of both site links 
between the dispatch and Master site at Brighton Heights. A local console alias manager has also 
been included with the proposal. This will enable local aliases to be programmed and pushed out to 
the consoles, instead of accessing the main database at the zone controller side. The MKM7000 
console alias manager will reside on its own PC. An SDM3000 Aux I/O unit has also been 
included. This will provide up to 16 outputs and 48 input buffers. 

 
Flashport upgrades for the four (4) existing XTL5000 consolettes have been provided to 
upgrade them to P25 operation. These consolettes will connect to the console through the 
CCGWs. It is assumed that existing transmission line and antenna network will be re-used. 
One new APX7500 consolette has been quoted to replace any existing consolettes that cannot 
be upgraded to P25 operation. 

 
Each of the dispatch positions will be equipped with the following: 

 

•  (1) Dispatch PC 
♦ Elite dispatching Software 
♦ Instant-Recall-Recorder soundcard and software 

•  (1) Voice Processing Module (VPM) 
♦ P25 Trunking license 

•  (2) Desktop speakers 
•  (2) Headset jacks 
•  (1) Dual-pedal Footswitch 

 
The Back Room equipment will comprise the following: 
•  (2) 7.5’ Rack 
•  (2) Site Gateways 
•  (2) Site LAN Switches 
•  (1) Conventional Site Controller 
•  (1) SDM 3000 AUX I/O Interface 
•  (5) Conventional Channel Gateways 
•  (1) MKM 1000 Console Alias Manager PC and software 
•  (1) Power Distribution Unit 
•  (4) XTL 5000 Flashport Upgrades 
•  (1) APX 7500 Consolette 

 
 



 

12 
 

Spare Equipment: 
 

•  (1) Desktop Speakers 
•  (1) Headset Jacks 
•  (1) Dispatch Workstation 
•  (1) VPM 
•  (1) Site LAN Switch 
•  (1) Site Gateway 

 
 

1.12 MCC7500 DISPATCH SOLUTION DESCRIPTION 
 
 

1.12.1 MCC7500 Solution Overview 
 

Motorola has proposed a new MCC7500 Dispatch Console, offering IP-based seamless 
connectivity between the Dispatch site and the ASTRO25 Zone Core equipment at Brighton 
Heights. 

 
The MCC7500 Dispatch Console will provides dispatchers with a scalable, flexible system 
architecture, sophisticated network management and security, on the latest IP architecture and 
an easy migration to future capabilities. 

 
Cost Savings and Ease of Use 

 

The MCC7500 is designed to help reduce the total cost of owning an IP-based, feature-rich 
dispatch system without compromising quality and reliability. Specific benefits of the 
MCC7500 include the following: 

 
•  The intuitive, easy to use Graphical User Interface (GUI) enhances dispatchers’ 

efficiency and accuracy. 
 

•  Robust API allows CAD systems to have complete access to console status and 
features for further improvements in efficiency and accuracy. 

 

•  Software-based upgrades facilitate system and feature expansion. 
 

•  Installation is simplified and site costs are reduced because console positions 
function without backroom electronics. 

 

•  Console configuration is performed at centralized Network Management clients, and 
changes are automatically distributed, which saves valuable technician and 
administrator time. 

 

•  Offers robust service logs that contain real-time information to facilitate 
maintenance activities. 

 

•  Consoles are integrated into the ASTRO25 fault management system, which uses 
industry- standard event monitoring protocols, resulting in fewer dispatch site visits. 

 

•  Flexible bandwidth requirements minimize operating costs for remote console sites. 
 

•  Conventional audio can be transported over the IP network, which eliminates the 
need for channel banks or a separate circuit-switched network. 

 



 

13 
 

6.1.2.3 Sacramento County / SRRCS Console Breakout by Dispatch Center 
 

Description Cost 
Citrus Heights (4 Positions)  

Equipment $180,922 
System Integration and Service Total $94,476 
Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($17,200) 
Citrus Heights Total $258,198 

Elk Grove Police ( 6 Positions)  
Equipment $247,497 
System Integration and Service Total $137,530 
Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($25,800) 
Elk Grove Police Total $359,227 

Folsom Police (6 Positions / 4 Trade-ins)  
Equipment $256,545 
System Integration and Service Total $132,347 
Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($17,200) 
Folsom Police Total $371,692 

Galt Police (3 Positions)  
Equipment $149,860 
System Integration and Service Total $99,997 
Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($12,900) 
Galt Police Total $236,957 

Sacramento Airport (4 Positions)  
Equipment $183,873 
System Integration and Service Total $95,309 
Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($17,200) 
Sacramento Airport Total $261,982 

Sacramento Police (20 Positions)  
Equipment $696,398 
System Integration and Service Total $324,043 
Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($86,000) 
Sacramento Police Total $934,441 

Sacramento Regional Transit Bus Dispatch (2 Positions)  
Equipment $93,693 
System Integration and Service Total $49,534 
Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($8,600) 
Sacramento Regional Transit Bus Dispatch Total $134,627 

Sacramento Regional Transit Light Rail Dispatch (2 Positions)  
Equipment $217,910 
System Integration and Service Total $84,628 



 

14 
 

 

Description Cost 
Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($8,600) 

Sacramento Regional Transit Light Rail Dispatch Total $293,938 
Sacramento Regional Fire (8 Positions only no backroom equipment)  

Equipment $251,153 
System Integration and Service Total $114,741 
Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($34,400) 
Sacramento Regional Fire Total $331,494 

Yolo Communications Emergency Agency (10 Positions)  
Equipment $407,695 
System Integration and Service Total $242,143 
Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($43,000) 
Yolo Communications Emergency Agency Total $606,838 

  
Total Equipment $2,685,545 
Total System Integration and Services $1,374,748 
Total Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($270,900) 
Total Dispatch Center Migration $3,789,393 

 
 

PAYMENT TERMS 
 

Except for a payment that is due on the Effective Date, Customer will make payments to 
Motorola within thirty (30) days after the date of each invoice. Customer will make 
payments when due in the form of a check, cashier’s check, or wire transfer drawn on a U.S. 
financial institution and in accordance with the following milestones. 

 
1.   30% of the Contract Price for mobilization due at Contract Execution (Effective Date); 

 
2.   25% of the Contract Price upon shipment of equipment; 

 
3.   25% of the Contract Price upon installation of equipment, billable as follows: 

a. 7% upon installation of MCC7500 
Consoles b.   8% upon installation of City 
sites (4) 
c. 10% upon installation of County sites  

 
4.   15% of the Contract Price upon System Acceptance or start of Beneficial Use, 

whichever occurs first; 
 

5.   5% of the Contract Price upon Final System Acceptance. 
 

Overdue invoices will bear simple interest at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum, 
unless such rate exceeds the maximum allowed by law, in which case it will be reduced to 
the maximum allowable rate. Motorola reserves the right to make partial shipments of 
equipment and to request payment upon shipment of such equipment. In addition, 
Motorola reserves the right to invoice for installations or civil work completed on a site-
by-site basis, when applicable. 

 



 

15 
 

 

YECA Proposed Equipment List  
YECA OP_POSIT 1 B1905 MCC 7500 ASTRO 25 SOFTWARE 
YECA OP_POSIT 10 B1933 MOTOROLA VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE 
YECA OP_POSIT 10 CA01642AA ADD: MCC 7500 BASIC CONSOLE FUNCTIONALITY SOFTWARE LICENSE 
YECA OP_POSIT 10 CA01643AA ADD: MCC 7500 / MCC 7100 TRUNKING OPERATION 
YECA OP_POSIT 10 CA02073AA ADD: MCC 7500 Enhanced Console Telephony Operation License 
YECA OP_POSIT 1 DS019BLK 19 INCH NON-TOUCH MONITOR, BLACK 
YECA OP_POSIT 10 CA00140AA ADD: AC LINE CORD, NORTH AMERICAN 
YECA OP_POSIT 10 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 
YECA OP_POSIT 10 T7448 WINDOWS SUPPLEMENTAL FULL CONFIG 
YECA SURGE 10 DSRMP615A SPD, TYPE 3, 120V RK MNT, 15A PLUG-IN W/ (6) 15A NEMA 5-15 OUTLETS 
YECA OP_POSIT 20 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 
YECA OP_POSIT 20 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 
YECA OP_POSIT 20 RLN6098 HDST MODULE BASE W/PTT, 15' CBL 
YECA OP_POSIT 20 RMN5077B SUPRAPLUS SINGLE MUFF HEADSET 
YECA OP_POSIT 10 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 
YECA OP_POSIT 10 DDN1245 DUAL IRR SW USB HASP WITH LICENSE (VERSION 45) 
YECA OP_POSIT 10 DDN1118 PCI EXPRESS SOUND BLASTER X-FI XTREME AUDIO 
YECA OP_POSIT 10 CDN6673 CREATIVE LABS INSPIRE A60 
YECA SWITCH 2 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH 
YECA ROUTER 2 SQM01SUM0205 GGM 8000 GATEWAY 
YECA ROUTER 2 CA01616AA ADD: AC POWER 
YECA AUX_IO 1 F4543 SITE MANAGER BASIC 
YECA AUX_IO 1 VA00212 SDM3000 MCC 7500 AUX IO F/W FOR A7.13 
YECA AUX_IO 1 V266 ADD: 90VAC TO 260VAC PS TO SM 
YECA AUX_IO 3 V592 AAD TERM BLCK & CONN WI 
YECA GCP8000 1 T7038 GCP 8000 SITE CONTROLLER 
YECA GCP8000 1 CA00303AA ADD: QTY (1) SITE CONTROLLER 
YECA GCP8000 1 X153AW ADD: RACK MOUNT HARDWARE 
YECA GCP8000 1 CA01136AA ADD: MCC 7500 CONVEN SITE OPER 
YECA CCGW 5 SQM01SUM0205 GGM 8000 GATEWAY 
YECA CCGW 5 CA01616AA ADD: AC POWER 
YECA CCGW 5 CA02086AA ADD: HIGH DENSITY ENH CONV GATEWAY 
YECA CAM 1 BVN1013 MKM 7000 Console Alias Manager Software 
YECA CAM 1 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 
YECA CAM 1 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 
YECA RACK 2 TRN7343 SEVEN AND A HALF FOOT RACK 
YECA RACK 2 DS110110711 PDU, AC EDGE RACK MOUNT DIST PANEL, 120VAC 60A, 12-15A CIRCUIT 
YECA RACK 15 DS37502831 BREAKER KIT AIRPAX 5AMP SNAPAC, FOR AC EDGE OR DC EDGE III 
YECA RACK 2 DSTSJ100BT SPD, RJ-48 8 PIN, 10/100 BASE T TSJ PROTECTS/PASSES ON ALL 8 PIN 
YECA SPARES 1 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 
YECA SPARES 1 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 
YECA SPARES 1 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 
YECA SPARES 1 B1934 MCC 7500 VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE FRU 
YECA SPARES 1 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH 
YECA Flash 4 T6999 ANALOG SMARTZONE 
YECA Flash 4 G808 ENH: ASTRO DIGITAL CAI OPRN 



 

16 
 

YECA Flash 4 G347 ENH: SMARTZONE UPGRADE 
YECA Flash 4 G114 ENH: DIGITAL ID DISPLAY 
YECA Flash 4 G361 ENH: ASTRO PROJECT 25 TRUNKING SOFTWARE 
YECA Cont Stations 1 L30URS9PW1 N APX7500 SINGLE BAND 7/800 
YECA Cont Stations 1 GA00244 ADD: 7/800MHZ PRIMARY BAND 
YECA Cont Stations 1 G806 ENH: ASTRO DIGITAL CAI OP APX 
YECA Cont Stations 1 G51 ENH: SMARTZONE OPERATION APX 
YECA Cont Stations 1 G361 ADD: P25 TRUNKING SOFTWARE 
YECA Cont Stations 1 QA01749 SW KEY SUPPLEMENTAL DATA 
YECA Cont Stations 1 G996 ENH: OVER THE AIR PROVISIONING 
YECA Cont Stations 1 W947 ADD: RS232 PACKET DATA INTERFACE 
YECA Cont Stations 1 G90 ADD: NO MICROPHONE NEEDED 
YECA Cont Stations 1 CA01598 ADD: AC LINE CORD US 
YECA Cont Stations 1 L999 ADD: FULL FP W/05/KEYPAD/CLOCK/VU 
YECA Cont Stations 1 HKN6184C CABLE CH, PROGRAMMING,USB 
YECA Cont Stations 1 RVN5224M CPS R07.00.00 ASTRO DIG APX POR MOB 
YECA Cont Stations 1 HKN6233C APX CONSOLETTE RACK MOUNT KIT 

 

 


	AGENDA
	REGULAR MEETING
	YECA GOVERNING BOARD
	Yolo Emergency Communications Agency, 35 N. Cottonwood Street, Woodland, CA 95695
	September 3, 2014
	3:00 P.M. Public Session




  


The design, technical, pricing, and other information (“Information”) furnished with this submission is proprietary information of Motorola Solutions, Inc. 
(“Motorola”) and is submitted with the restriction that it is to be used for evaluation purposes only.  To the fullest extent allowed by applicable law, the 
Information is not to be disclosed publicly or in any manner to anyone other than those required to evaluate the Information without the express written 
permission of Motorola.  
 
MOTOROLA, MOTO, MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, and the Stylized M Logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Motorola Trademark Holdings, 
LLC and are used under license. SYMBOL is a trademark owned by Symbol Technologies, Inc., which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Motorola 
Solutions, Inc. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. © 2013 Motorola Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved. 
 
 


 


COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO / SACRAMENTO REGIONAL RADIO COMMUNICATION SYSTEM 14 JULY 2014 
 


DISPATCH CENTER 
MCC7500 MIGRATION 
 
 


 











 


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Table of Contents i 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


Section 1 


System Description ............................................................................................................................ 1-1 


1.1  Overview ............................................................................................................................ 1-1 


1.2  Citrus Heights Police .......................................................................................................... 1-1 


1.3  Elk Grove Police ................................................................................................................. 1-2 


1.4  Folsom Police ..................................................................................................................... 1-3 


1.5  Galt Police .......................................................................................................................... 1-4 


1.6  Sacramento Airport Dispatch ............................................................................................. 1-5 


1.7  Sacramento Police ............................................................................................................. 1-6 


1.8  Sacramento Regional Fire.................................................................................................. 1-7 


1.9  Sacramento Regional Transit Bus Dispatch ....................................................................... 1-8 


1.10  Sacramento Regional Transit Light Rail Dispatch .............................................................. 1-8 


1.11  Yolo Emergency COmmunications Agency (YECA) ........................................................ 1-10 


1.12  MCC7500 Dispatch Solution Description ......................................................................... 1-11 


1.12.1  MCC7500 Solution Overview ................................................................................... 1-11 


1.12.1.1  The MCC7500 Dispatch Experience ...................................................................1-12 


1.12.1.2  Interoperability Features ......................................................................................1-12 


1.12.1.3  Integration with the ASTRO25 Network ...............................................................1-12 


1.12.1.4  Conventional Base Station Interfaces .................................................................1-13 


1.12.1.5  Console Operations .............................................................................................1-14 


1.12.1.6  Dispatch Interface ................................................................................................1-14 


1.12.1.7  Standard Radio Transmission and Reception .....................................................1-15 


1.12.1.8  Dispatch Audio Experience .................................................................................1-16 


1.12.1.9  Emergency Radio Transmission and Reception .................................................1-17 


1.12.1.10  Radio Patch Control ..........................................................................................1-18 


1.12.1.11  Call Management and Control ...........................................................................1-19 


1.12.1.12  Console Logging ................................................................................................1-20 


1.12.1.13  Console System Security ..................................................................................1-21 


1.12.1.14  Console Configuration and Management ..........................................................1-22 


1.12.1.15  MCC7500 Dispatch Console Component Description .......................................1-22 


1.13  Backhaul Requirements ................................................................................................... 1-25 


Section 2 


Equipment List ................................................................................................................................... 2-1 


Section 3 


Statement of Work ............................................................................................................................. 3-1 


3.1  Overview ............................................................................................................................ 3-1 


3.2  Assumptions ....................................................................................................................... 3-1 


3.3  Contract .............................................................................................................................. 3-2 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


ii Table of Contents Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


3.3.1  Contract Award (Milestone) ............................................................................................ 3-2 


3.3.2  Contract Administration .................................................................................................. 3-2 


3.3.3  Project Kickoff ................................................................................................................ 3-2 


3.4  Contract Design Review ..................................................................................................... 3-3 


3.4.1  Review Contract Design ................................................................................................. 3-3 


3.4.2  Design Approval (Milestone) .......................................................................................... 3-3 


3.5  Order Processing ............................................................................................................... 3-4 


3.5.1  Process Equipment List .................................................................................................. 3-4 


3.6  Manufacturing and Staging ................................................................................................ 3-4 


3.6.1  Manufacture Equipment ................................................................................................. 3-4 


3.6.2  Ship to Staging (Milestone) ............................................................................................ 3-4 


3.6.3  Stage System ................................................................................................................. 3-5 


3.6.4  Perform Staging Acceptance Test Procedures .............................................................. 3-5 


3.6.5  Ship Equipment to Field ................................................................................................. 3-5 


3.6.6  CCSi Ship Acceptance (Milestone) ................................................................................ 3-6 


3.6.7  Develop Templates ........................................................................................................ 3-6 


3.7  Civil Work for the Customer-Provided ................................................................................ 3-6 


3.8  System Installation ............................................................................................................. 3-7 


3.8.1  Console Installation ........................................................................................................ 3-7 


3.8.2  Console Installation Complete ........................................................................................ 3-8 


3.8.3  System Installation Acceptance (Milestone) ................................................................... 3-8 


3.9  System Optimization .......................................................................................................... 3-8 


3.9.1  Optimize System FNE .................................................................................................... 3-8 


3.9.2  Link Verification .............................................................................................................. 3-8 


3.9.3  Completion Criteria: ........................................................................................................ 3-9 


3.9.4  Optimization Complete ................................................................................................... 3-9 


3.10  Training .............................................................................................................................. 3-9 


3.11  Audit and Acceptance Testing ........................................................................................... 3-9 


3.11.1  Perform R56 Installation Audit .................................................................................... 3-9 


3.11.2  Perform Equipment Testing ........................................................................................ 3-9 


3.11.3  Perform Functional Testing ...................................................................................... 3-10 


3.11.4  System Acceptance Test Procedures (Milestone) ................................................... 3-10 


3.12  Finalize ............................................................................................................................. 3-10 


3.12.1  Cutover ..................................................................................................................... 3-10 


3.12.2  Resolve Punchlist ..................................................................................................... 3-11 


3.12.3  Transition to Service/Project Transition Certificate................................................... 3-11 


3.12.4  Finalize Documentation ............................................................................................ 3-11 


3.12.5  Final Acceptance (Milestone) ................................................................................... 3-12 


3.13  Project Administration ...................................................................................................... 3-12 


3.13.1  Project Status Meetings ........................................................................................... 3-12 


3.13.2  Progress Milestone Submittal ................................................................................... 3-12 


3.13.3  Change Order Process ............................................................................................. 3-12 







 


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Table of Contents iii 


Section 4 


Project Schedule ................................................................................................................................ 4-1 


Section 5 


Warranty and Maintenance ................................................................................................................ 5-1 


5.1  Warranty Services .............................................................................................................. 5-1 


5.1.1  Dispatch Service ............................................................................................................ 5-1 


5.1.2  OnSite Infrastructure Response ..................................................................................... 5-1 


5.1.3  Infrastructure Repair ....................................................................................................... 5-1 


5.1.4  Technical Support Service ............................................................................................. 5-2 


5.1.5  Network Monitoring Service ........................................................................................... 5-2 


5.1.6  Security Monitoring Service ............................................................................................ 5-2 


5.1.7  Security Update Service (SUS) ...................................................................................... 5-3 


5.2  Summary ............................................................................................................................ 5-3 


Section 6 


Pricing Summary................................................................................................................................ 6-1 


6.1  Pricing Summary ................................................................................................................ 6-1 


6.1.1  Option 1: Sacramento County / SRRCS, P25 Channel Migration (Phases 2&3), 
MCC7500 Consoles, Subscribers and Flashes ......................................................................... 6-2 


6.1.2  Option 2: Sacramento County / SRRCS P25 Channel Migration (Phases 2&3), 
MCC7500 Consoles and Flashes .............................................................................................. 6-3 


6.1.2.1  Option 3: Sacramento County / SRRCS MCC7500 Consoles and Flashes ............... 6-3 


6.1.2.2  Sacramento County / SRRCS Subscribers and Flashes............................................ 6-4 


6.1.2.3  Sacramento County / SRRCS Console Breakout by Dispatch Center ....................... 6-5 


Payment Terms .............................................................................................................................. 6-6 


Section 7 


Contractual Documentation ............................................................................................................... 7-1 


Section 8 


Literature ............................................................................................................................................ 8-1 


 


 


 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted System Description 1-1 


SECTION 1 


SYSTEM DESCRIPTION 
1.1 OVERVIEW 


The Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System supports twelve dispatch centers which are 
currently equipped with Centracom Gold Elite console systems.  This proposal outlines the 
replacement of Gold Elite consoles with MCC7500 consoles for the following ten dispatch centers: 


 Citrus Heights Police 


 Elk Grove Police 


 Folsom Police 


 Galt Police 


 Sacramento Airport Dispatch 


 Sacramento Police 


 Sacramento Regional Fire 


 Sacramento Regional Transit Bus Dispatch 


 Sacramento Regional Transit Light Rail Dispatch 


 Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA) 


The proposed solution is based on a new Motorola Solutions MCC7500 dispatch console. The 
dispatch console site will connect to the Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
(SRRCS) ASTRO25 IP-based Zone Core currently situated at Brighton Heights. The core in general 
provides control, network management, and voice switching capabilities to the entire system. 


Logging Recorder replacements have not been included in this proposal.  There are a variety of 
logging recorder solutions that require discussion between the SRRCS, its agencies, and Motorola in 
order to achieve an optimal solution for the SRRCS and each member agency. 


1.2 CITRUS HEIGHTS POLICE 
Citrus Heights Police is currently equipped with a four operator position Gold Elite Console. The 
MCC7500 console will consist of four (4) dispatch console positions. All standard dispatch 
accessories have been provided except gooseneck microphones and monitors as detailed further in 
this document. One (1) high capacity Conventional Channel Gateway (CCGW) has been included 
that can interface up to eight (8) analog conventional resources. A local conventional site controller 
will ensure that the console can access the local conventional channels in the event of the failure of 
both site links between the dispatch and Master Site at Brighton Heights. A local console alias 
manager has also been included with the proposal. This will enable local aliases to be programmed 
and pushed out to the consoles, instead of accessing the main database at the zone controller side. The 
MKM 7000 console alias manager will reside on its own PC. An SDM3000 Aux I/O unit has also 
been included. This will provide up to 16 outputs and 48 input buffers. 


Flashport upgrades for the four (4) existing XTL5000 consolettes have been provided to upgrade 
them to P25 operation. These consolettes will connect to the console through the CCGWs. It is 
assumed that existing transmission line, antenna network and control station combiner will be re-
used.  







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


1-2 System Description Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


Each of the dispatch positions will be equipped with the following: 


 (1) Dispatch PC 
 Elite dispatching Software 
 Instant-Recall-Recorder soundcard and software  


 (1) Voice Processing Module (VPM) 
 P25 Trunking license 


 (2) Desktop speakers 
 (2) Headset jacks 
 (1) Dual-pedal Footswitch 


 
The Back Room equipment will comprise the following: 


 (1) 7.5’ Rack 
 (2) Site Gateways 
 (2) Site LAN Switches 
 (1) Conventional Site Controller 
 (1) SDM3000 AUX I/O Interface 
 (1) Conventional Channel Gateways 
 (1) MKM1000 Console Alias Manager PC and software 
 (1) Power Distribution Unit 
 (4) XTL5000 Flashport Upgrades 
 
Spare Equipment: 


 (1) Desktop Speakers 
 (1) Headset Jacks 
 (1) Dispatch Workstation 
 (1) VPM 
 (1) Site LAN Switch 
 (1) Site Gateway 


1.3 ELK GROVE POLICE 
Elk Grove Police is currently equipped with a six operator position Gold Elite Console. The MCC 
7500 console will consist of six (6) dispatch console positions. All standard dispatch accessories have 
been provided except gooseneck microphones and monitors as detailed further in this document. One 
(1) high capacity Conventional Channel Gateway (CCGW) has been included that can interface up to 
eight (8) analog conventional resources. A local conventional site controller will ensure that the 
console can access the local conventional channels in the event of the failure of both site links 
between the dispatch and Master site at Brighton Heights. A local console alias manager has also 
been included with the proposal. This will enable local aliases to be programmed and pushed out to 
the consoles, instead of accessing the main database at the zone controller side. The MKM 7000 
console alias manager will reside on its own PC. An SDM3000 Aux I/O unit has also been included. 
This will provide up to 16 outputs and 48 input buffers. 


Flashport upgrades for the six (6) existing XTL5000 consolettes have been provided to upgrade them 
to P25 operation. These consolettes will connect to the console through the CCGWs. It is assumed 
that existing transmission line, antenna network and control station combiner will be re-used. 


Each of the dispatch positions will be equipped with the following: 


 (1) Dispatch PC 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted System Description 1-3 


 Elite dispatching Software 
 Instant-Recall-Recorder soundcard and software  


 (1) Voice Processing Module (VPM) 
 P25 Trunking license 


 (2) Desktop speakers 
 (2) Headset jacks 
 (1) Dual-pedal Footswitch 


 
The Back Room equipment will comprise the following: 


 (1) 7.5’ Rack 
 (2) Site Gateways 
 (2) Site LAN Switches 
 (1) Conventional Site Controller 
 (1) SDM3000 AUX I/O Interface 
 (1) Conventional Channel Gateways 
 (1) MKM1000 Console Alias Manager PC and software 
 (1) Power Distribution Unit 
 (6) XTL5000 Flashport Upgrades 
 
Spare Equipment: 


 (1) Desktop Speakers 
 (1) Headset Jacks 
 (1) Dispatch Workstation 
 (1) VPM 
 (1) Site LAN Switch 
 (1) Site Gateway 


1.4 FOLSOM POLICE 
Folsom Police is currently equipped with a four operator position Gold Elite Console.  This console 
will be replaced, and in addition, two new operator positions will be added for a total of six.  All 
standard dispatch accessories have been provided except gooseneck microphones and monitors as 
detailed further in this document. Two (2) high capacity Conventional Channel Gateways (CCGWs) 
have been included that can interface up to sixteen (16) analog conventional resources. A local 
conventional site controller will ensure that the console can access the local conventional channels in 
the event of the failure of both site links between the dispatch and Master Site at Brighton Heights. A 
local console alias manager has also been included with the proposal. This will enable local aliases to 
be programmed and pushed out to the consoles, instead of accessing the main database at the zone 
controller side. The MKM7000 console alias manager will reside on its own PC. An SDM3000 Aux 
I/O unit has also been included. This will provide up to 16 outputs and 48 input buffers. 


Flashport upgrades for the four (4) existing XTL5000 consolettes have been provided to upgrade 
them to P25 operation. These consolettes will connect to the console through the CCGWs. It is 
assumed that existing transmission line, and antennas will be re-used.  No additional control stations 
have been added in this proposal. 


Each of the dispatch positions will be equipped with the following: 


 (1) Dispatch PC 
 Elite dispatching Software 
 Instant-Recall-Recorder soundcard and software  







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


1-4 System Description Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


  (1) Voice Processing Module (VPM) 
 P25 Trunking license 


 (2) Desktop speakers 
 (2) Headset jacks 
 (1) Dual-pedal Footswitch 


 
The Back Room equipment will comprise the following: 


 (1) 7.5’ Rack 
 (2) Site Gateways 
 (2) Site LAN Switches 
 (1) Conventional Site Controller 
 (1) SDM3000 AUX I/O Interface 
 (2) Conventional Channel Gateways 
 (1) MKM1000 Console Alias Manager PC and software 
 (1) Power Distribution Unit 
 (4) XTL5000 Flashport Upgrades 
 
Spare Equipment: 


 (1) Desktop Speakers 
 (1) Headset Jacks 
 (1) Dispatch Workstation 
 (1) VPM 
 (1) Site LAN Switch 
 (1) Site Gateway 


1.5 GALT POLICE 
Galt Police is currently equipped with a three operator position Gold Elite Console. The MCC 7500 
console will consist of three (3) dispatch console positions. All standard dispatch accessories have 
been provided except gooseneck microphones and monitors as detailed further in this document. One 
(1) high capacity Conventional Channel Gateway (CCGW) has been included that can interface up to 
eight (8) analog conventional resources. A local conventional site controller will ensure that the 
console can access the local conventional channels in the event of the failure of both site links 
between the dispatch and Master site at Brighton Heights. A local console alias manager has also 
been included with the proposal. This will enable local aliases to be programmed and pushed out to 
the consoles, instead of accessing the main database at the zone controller side. The MKM 7000 
console alias manager will reside on its own PC. An SDM3000 Aux I/O unit has also been included. 
This will provide up to 16 outputs and 48 input buffers. 


Flashport upgrades for the four (4) existing XTL5000 consolettes have been provided to upgrade 
them to P25 operation. These consolettes will connect to the console through the CCGWs. It is 
assumed that existing transmission line, antenna network and control station combiner if any exists, 
will be re-used. 


Each of the dispatch positions will be equipped with the following 


 (1) Dispatch PC 
 Elite dispatching Software 
 Instant-Recall-Recorder soundcard and software  


 (1) Voice Processing Module (VPM) 
 P25 Trunking license 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted System Description 1-5 


 (2) Desktop speakers 
 (2) Headset jacks 
 (1) Dual-pedal Footswitch 


 
The Back Room equipment will comprise the following: 


 (1) 7.5’ Rack 
 (2) Site Gateways 
 (2) Site LAN Switches 
 (1) Conventional Site Controller 
 (1) SDM3000 AUX I/O Interface 
 (1) Conventional Channel Gateways 
 (1) MKM1000 Console Alias Manager PC and software 
 (1) Power Distribution Unit 
 (4) XTL5000 Flashport Upgrades 
 
Spare Equipment: 


 (1) Desktop Speakers 
 (1) Headset Jacks 
 (1) Dispatch Workstation 
 (1) VPM 
 (1) Site LAN Switch 
 (1) Site Gateway 


1.6 SACRAMENTO AIRPORT DISPATCH 
The Sacramento Airport is currently equipped with a four operator position Gold Elite. The MCC 
7500 console will consist of four (4) dispatch console positions. All standard dispatch accessories 
have been provided except gooseneck microphones and monitors as detailed further in this document. 
One (1) high capacity Conventional Channel Gateway (CCGW) has been included that can interface 
up to eight (8) analog conventional resources. A local conventional site controller will ensure that the 
console can access the local conventional channels in the event of the failure of both site links 
between the dispatch and Master site at Brighton Heights. A local console alias manager has also 
been included with the proposal. This will enable local aliases to be programmed and pushed out to 
the consoles, instead of accessing the main database at the zone controller side. The MKM 7000 
console alias manager will reside on its own PC. An SDM3000 Aux I/O unit has also been included. 
This will provide up to 16 outputs and 48 input buffers. 


Flashport upgrades for the five (5) existing XTL5000 consolettes have been provided to upgrade them 
to P25 operation. These consolettes will connect to the console through the CCGWs. It is assumed 
that existing transmission line, antenna network and control station combiner if any exists, will be re-
used. 


Each of the dispatch positions will be equipped with the following: 


 (1) Dispatch PC 
 Elite dispatching Software 
 Instant-Recall-Recorder soundcard and software  


 (1) Voice Processing Module (VPM) 
 P25 Trunking license 


 (2) Desktop speakers 
 (2) Headset jacks 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


1-6 System Description Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


 (1) Dual-pedal Footswitch 
 


The Back Room equipment will comprise the following: 


 (1) 7.5’ Rack 
 (2) Site Gateways 
 (2) Site LAN Switches 
 (1) Conventional Site Controller 
 (1) SDM3000 AUX I/O Interface 
 (1) Conventional Channel Gateways 
 (1) MKM1000 Console Alias Manager PC and software 
 (1) Power Distribution Unit 
 (4) PC Shelves 
 (5) XTL5000 Flashport Upgrades 
 
Spare Equipment: 


 (1) Desktop Speakers 
 (1) Headset Jacks 
 (1) Dispatch Workstation 
 (1) VPM 
 (1) Site LAN Switch 
 (1) Site Gateway 


1.7 SACRAMENTO POLICE 
Sacramento Police is currently equipped with a twenty operator position Gold Elite with six positions 
located in the training room, and fourteen positions located in the dispatch room. The MCC 7500 
console will consist of twenty (20) dispatch console positions, fourteen (14) for the main dispatch 
room and six (6) training positions. All standard dispatch accessories have been provided and 
gooseneck microphones have been provided as an option. A local console alias manager has also been 
included with the proposal. This will enable local aliases to be programmed and pushed out to the 
consoles, instead of accessing the main database at the zone controller side. The MKM 7000 console 
alias manager will reside on its own PC. An SDM3000 Aux I/O unit has also been included. This will 
provide up to 16 outputs and 48 input buffers. 


Flashport upgrades for the twenty (20) existing XTL5000 consolettes have been provided to upgrade 
them to P25 operation. These consolettes will connect to the existing desksets. It is assumed that 
existing transmission line, antenna network and control station combiners will be re-used. 


The rack provided in this proposal will match the existing Chatsworth racks currently located in the 
equipment room.  Motorola proposes that Sacramento Police remove an existing empty rack and 
Motorola will install the new rack in the vacated space. 


Each of the dispatch positions will be equipped with the following: 


 (1) Dispatch PC 
 Elite dispatching Software 
 Instant-Recall-Recorder soundcard and software  


 (1) Voice Processing Module (VPM) 
 P25 Trunking license 


 (2) Desktop speakers 
 (2) Headset jacks 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted System Description 1-7 


 (1) Dual-pedal Footswitch 
 (1) Gooseneck microphone (Optional) 


 
The Back Room equipment will comprise the following: 


 (1) 7’ Black Chatsworth Rack 
 (2) Site Gateways 
 (2) Site LAN Switches 
 (1) SDM3000 AUX I/O Interface 
 (1) MKM1000 Console Alias Manager PC and software 
 (1) Power Distribution Unit 
 (20) XTL5000 Flashport Upgrades 
 
Spare Equipment: 


 (1) Desktop Speakers 
 (1) Headset Jacks 
 (1) Dispatch Workstation 
 (1) VPM 
 (1) Site LAN Switch 
 (1) Site Gateway 


1.8 SACRAMENTO REGIONAL FIRE 
Sacramento Regional Fire currently has an eight operator position Gold Elite Console.  Motorola has 
already submitted a proposal to Sacramento Regional Fire for a new four operator position MCC7500 
Console.  This proposal assumes that by the time this project is implemented, the new MCC7500 will 
be installed.  Therefore, this proposal adds the operator position equipment for eight operator 
positions to be added to the four position MCC7500. All standard dispatch accessories have been 
provided except gooseneck microphones and monitors as detailed further in this document.  


Any upgrading or replacement of any existing control stations is not included in this proposal. 


Each of the dispatch positions will be equipped with the following: 


 (1) Dispatch PC 
 Elite dispatching Software 
 Instant-Recall-Recorder soundcard and software  


 (1) Voice Processing Module (VPM) 
 P25 Trunking license 


 (2) Desktop speakers 
 (2) Headset jacks 
 (1) Dual-pedal Footswitch 
 (1) Gooseneck microphone 
 
Spare Equipment: 


 (1) Desktop Speakers 
 (1) Headset Jacks 
 (1) Dispatch Workstation 
 (1) VPM 
 (1) Site LAN Switch 
 (1) Site Gateway 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


1-8 System Description Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


1.9 SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT BUS DISPATCH 
Sacramento Regional Transit Bus currently has two Gold Elite Operator Positions.  It also has the 
Central Electronics Bank (CEB) with supports the two positions at the Bus Dispatch but also 
remotely supports the two operator positions at the Light Rail Dispatch Center. The MCC7500 
console will consist of two (2) dispatch console positions. Remote support of the Light Rail Dispatch 
from the Bus Dispatch is not supported by the MCC7500. All standard dispatch accessories have been 
provided. A local console alias manager has also been included with the proposal. This will enable 
local aliases to be programmed and pushed out to the consoles, instead of accessing the main database 
at the zone controller side. The MKM7000 console alias manager will cohabitate with a dispatch 
workstation. An SDM3000 Aux I/O unit has also been included. This will provide up to 16 outputs 
and 48 input buffers. 


Each of the dispatch positions will be equipped with the following: 


 (1) Dispatch PC 
 Elite dispatching Software 
 Instant-Recall-Recorder soundcard and software  


 (1) Voice Processing Module (VPM) 
 P25 Trunking license 


 (2) Desktop speakers 
 (2) Headset jacks 
 (1) Dual-pedal Footswitch 
 (1) Gooseneck microphone 


 
The Back Room equipment will comprise the following: 


 (1) 7.5’ Rack 
 (2) Site Gateways 
 (2) Site LAN Switches 
 (1) SDM 3000 AUX I/O Interface 
 (1) MKM 1000 Console Alias Manager PC and software 
 (1) Power Distribution Unit 
 
Spare Equipment: 


 (1) Desktop Speakers 
 (1) Headset Jacks 
 (1) Dispatch Workstation 
 (1) VPM 
 (1) Site LAN Switch 
 (1) Site Gateway 


1.10 SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT LIGHT RAIL DISPATCH 
Sacramento Regional Transit Light Rail Dispatch currently has two remote operator positions 
supported by the CEB at the Bus Dispatch Center.  The MCC7500 does not support remoted 
positions, so Motorola will replace these two positions with a MCC7500 console with two operator 
positions.  There will be one rack required to house the back room console electronics and one rack 
required to house the twelve new APX7500 Consolettes.  Based on conversations with RT, Motorola 
is proposing placing these racks in the room currently housing the IT Rack.  It will be the 
responsibility of RT to clear sufficient space for these racks in that room. 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted System Description 1-9 


The MCC7500 console will consist of two (2) dispatch console positions. All standard dispatch 
accessories have been provided except monitors as detailed further in this document. Two (2) high 
capacity Conventional Channel Gateway (CCGW) has been included that can interface up to sixteen 
(16) analog conventional resources. A local conventional site controller will ensure that the console 
can access the local conventional channels in the event of the failure of both site links between the 
dispatch and Master site at Brighton Heights. A local console alias manager has also been included 
with the proposal. This will enable local aliases to be programmed and pushed out to the consoles, 
instead of accessing the main database at the zone controller side. The MKM7000 console alias 
manager will reside on its own PC. An SDM3000 Aux I/O unit has also been included. This will 
provide up to 16 outputs and 48 input buffers. 


Twelve (12) APX7500 backup consolettes have been included. The quantity of twelve was chosen to 
allow six of the consolettes to be programmed for six talkgroups on the City Simulcast Subsystem 
and the other six for the same six talkgroups on the County Simulcast Subsystem. The redundant set 
of consolletes is to allow dispatchers to talk on either simulcast subsystem should the trunked system 
enter a site trunking condition. These consolettes will connect to the console through the CCGWs. A 
new antenna, transmission line, and a 12 channel control station combiner has been included for these 
consolettes. 


Each of the dispatch positions will be equipped with the following: 


 (1) Dispatch PC 
 Elite dispatching Software 
 Instant-Recall-Recorder soundcard and software  


 (1) Voice Processing Module (VPM) 
 P25 Trunking license 


 (2) Desktop speakers 
 (2) Headset jacks 
 (1) Dual-pedal Footswitch 
 (1) Gooseneck microphone 


 
The Back Room equipment will comprise the following: 


 (2) 7.5’ Racks 
 (2) Site Gateways 
 (2) Site LAN Switches 
 (1) Conventional Site Controller 
 (1) SDM 3000 AUX I/O Interface 
 (2) Conventional Channel Gateways 
 (1) MKM 1000 Console Alias Manager PC and software 
 (1) Power Distribution Unit 
 (12) APX7500 Consolettes 
 (1) 12 channel control station combiner 
 (1) Antenna and transmission line 
 
Spare Equipment: 


 (1) Desktop Speakers 
 (1) Headset Jacks 
 (1) Dispatch Workstation 
 (1) VPM 
 (1) Site LAN Switch 
 (1) Site Gateway 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


1-10 System Description Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


1.11 YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY (YECA) 
YECA is currently equipped with two separate Gold Elite Consoles, one with six operator positions 
which primarily serves Yolo County agencies, Woodland, and Winters; and one which primarily 
serves West Sacramento.  This separate was due to limitations of the Gold Elite Embassy Network 
links which made this the most pragmatic solution at the time.  The MCC7500 console system does 
not have the same limitations with its links; therefore this proposal is based on unifying the dispatch 
consoles at YECA back into a ten operator position console. 


The MCC7500 console will consist of ten (10) dispatch console positions – nine for the main dispatch 
area and one for the backroom. All standard dispatch accessories have been provided except 
gooseneck microphones and monitors as detailed further in this document. Five (5) high capacity 
Conventional Channel Gateway (CCGW) have been included that can interface up to forty (40) 
analog conventional resources. A local conventional site controller will ensure that the console can 
access the local conventional channels in the event of the failure of both site links between the 
dispatch and Master site at Brighton Heights. A local console alias manager has also been included 
with the proposal. This will enable local aliases to be programmed and pushed out to the consoles, 
instead of accessing the main database at the zone controller side. The MKM7000 console alias 
manager will reside on its own PC. An SDM3000 Aux I/O unit has also been included. This will 
provide up to 16 outputs and 48 input buffers. 


Flashport upgrades for the four (4) existing XTL5000 consolettes have been provided to upgrade 
them to P25 operation. These consolettes will connect to the console through the CCGWs. It is 
assumed that existing transmission line and antenna network will be re-used. One new APX7500 
consolette has been quoted to replace any existing consolettes that cannot be upgraded to P25 
operation. 


Each of the dispatch positions will be equipped with the following: 


 (1) Dispatch PC 
 Elite dispatching Software 
 Instant-Recall-Recorder soundcard and software  


 (1) Voice Processing Module (VPM) 
 P25 Trunking license 


 (2) Desktop speakers 
 (2) Headset jacks 
 (1) Dual-pedal Footswitch 


 
The Back Room equipment will comprise the following: 


 (2) 7.5’ Rack 
 (2) Site Gateways 
 (2) Site LAN Switches 
 (1) Conventional Site Controller 
 (1) SDM 3000 AUX I/O Interface 
 (5) Conventional Channel Gateways 
 (1) MKM 1000 Console Alias Manager PC and software 
 (1) Power Distribution Unit 
 (4) XTL 5000 Flashport Upgrades 
 (1) APX 7500 Consolette 
 
Spare Equipment: 


 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted System Description 1-11 


 (1) Desktop Speakers 
 (1) Headset Jacks 
 (1) Dispatch Workstation 
 (1) VPM 
 (1) Site LAN Switch 
 (1) Site Gateway 


 


1.12 MCC7500 DISPATCH SOLUTION DESCRIPTION 


1.12.1 MCC7500 Solution Overview 
Motorola has proposed a new MCC7500 Dispatch Console, offering IP-based seamless connectivity 
between the Dispatch site and the ASTRO25 Zone Core equipment at Brighton Heights. 


The MCC7500 Dispatch Console will provides dispatchers with a scalable, flexible system 
architecture, sophisticated network management and security, on the latest IP architecture and an easy 
migration to future capabilities.  


Cost Savings and Ease of Use 


The MCC7500 is designed to help reduce the total cost of owning an IP-based, feature-rich dispatch 
system without compromising quality and reliability. Specific benefits of the MCC7500 include the 
following: 


 The intuitive, easy to use Graphical User Interface (GUI) enhances dispatchers’ efficiency 
and accuracy. 


 Robust API allows CAD systems to have complete access to console status and features for 
further improvements in efficiency and accuracy. 


 Software-based upgrades facilitate system and feature expansion. 


 Installation is simplified and site costs are reduced because console positions function 
without backroom electronics. 


 Console configuration is performed at centralized Network Management clients, and changes 
are automatically distributed, which saves valuable technician and administrator time. 


 Offers robust service logs that contain real-time information to facilitate maintenance 
activities. 


 Consoles are integrated into the ASTRO25 fault management system, which uses industry-
standard event monitoring protocols, resulting in fewer dispatch site visits. 


 Flexible bandwidth requirements minimize operating costs for remote console sites. 


 Conventional audio can be transported over the IP network, which eliminates the need for 
channel banks or a separate circuit-switched network. 


 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


1-12 System Description Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


1.12.1.1 The MCC7500 Dispatch Experience 
As the most advanced dispatch console in Motorola’s portfolio of mission-critical communications 
technologies, the MCC7500’s standard features offer state-of-the-art communications, console 
management and configuration functionality, dispatch operation, and communications security. 


1.12.1.2 Interoperability Features 
ASTRO25 is specifically designed around the APCO P25 standards. All voice messages are digitized, 
all LMR system features are compliant with P25 standards, and the system uses the P25-defined, 
9600-bps control channel format for all control channel commands. As part of ongoing enhancements 
to this solution, Motorola has joined and actively participated in the P25 interoperability committee to 
ensure continuously improving interoperability with the radios of other P25 vendors. ASTRO25 is 
also fully Common Air Interface (CAI) compliant. 


Motorola can use multiple customer-furnished (CF) interoperability radios to install, configure, and 
make operational the necessary hardware and software to provide two-way communications between 
the MCC7500 consoles and mutual aid channels. 


Interoperable communications can be provided through a dispatcher-initiated interface (patch) to the 
CF mutual aid radios. The Motorola Conventional Channel Gateway (CCGW) forms the bridge 
between the MCC7500 dispatch console on the ASTRO25 trunked radio network and the CF mutual 
aid radios. This allows the dispatcher to patch together mutual aid radios and required subscribers on 
the ASTRO25 system as situations dictate. Each CCGW can connect with up to eight (8) 
conventional or trunked mutual aid channels. Multiple CCGWs can be installed per dispatch site to 
support Mutual Aid radios to communicate with various agencies. One CCGW can be placed at any 
RF or console site allowing flexibility of connecting to the MCC7500 consoles. CCGW interfaces can 
be installed at any location as long as there is network connectivity back to the Zone Core. Additional 
CCGWs can easily be added anywhere on the LMR network as mutual aid requirements change. 


As an incident occurs, local mutual aid agencies can initiate radio conversation to a MCC7500 
dispatch location via a programmed channel. By selecting an icon on the console monitor, the 
dispatcher will initiate a patch to a talkgroup for First Responders as necessary. Incident 
conversations will be seamless from the moment of the patch and can be recorded like any talk group 
conversation within the LMR network. The dispatcher will also be able to take part in and monitor 
conversations for the duration of the incident, as necessary. 


1.12.1.3 Integration with the ASTRO25 Network 
The MCC7500 IP Dispatch Console would be seamlessly integrated into Sacramento County’s 
ASTRO25 system for an integrated mission critical network. This tight union between radio 
infrastructure and dispatch console equipment has several operational benefits to dispatch agencies.  


This modular IP approach substantially reduces the amount of space needed for backroom electronics. 
All dispatch activity is performed over IP. The physical space needed to accommodate the MCC7500 
console position is comparable to that required for a personal computer. 


Both trunked talkgroups and conventional radio channels can be accessed and controlled from one 
MCC7500 IP Dispatch Console over the same network. This reduces overall transport costs and the 
need for duplicate fixed network equipment. Table 1 outlines the benefits of the MCC7500’s seamless 
integration to the ASTRO25 network. 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted System Description 1-13 


Table 1: Benefits of Seamless Integration of the MCC7500 IP Console  
with Sacramento County’s ASTRO25 Network 


Feature Benefit to Dispatch Agencies 


Tight coordination between the IP 
network and IP console eliminates the 
potential for audio degradation. 


Subscribers and console operators will be able to 
communicate without loss of information. 


Emergency calls are prioritized for 
successful delivery regardless of 
network traffic. 


Console operators will always be able to hear 
emergency calls from users in the field. 


IP network redundancy ensures call 
traffic delivery. 


No lost communications. 


Inherent access to all system resources 
within the network provides dispatch 
priority to reach any user when needed.


Console operators will always be able to reach out to 
users in the field. 


Rapid call set up times and quality of 
service, regardless of the size of the 
system. 


The ability to scale the system to handle future 
capacity, while maintaining efficient dispatch 
operations. 


True end-to-end encryption from the 
subscriber to the console operator 
position, enhancing operational security


Assurance that sensitive, private communications will 
remain secure, from the user in the field to the console 
dispatch operator 


Improved bandwidth efficiencies reduce 
transport costs. 


Ongoing cost savings 


Connection to ASTRO25 Systems 


To connect to the Sacramento County ASTRO25 system, two remote site routers and two site LAN 
switches are provided.  


The site router provides an interface that handles all of the IP Network Management traffic between 
the MCC7500 Dispatch Console center and the ASTRO25 system’s master site. The site gateway 
fragments large IP packets according to industry standards, prioritize packets, and converts Ethernet 
data to the desired transport medium. 


The site LAN switch provides a LAN interface for dispatch site equipment and a LAN port for the 
site router. Through the switch, service technicians can access the system’s configuration manager 
and service the equipment. 


1.12.1.4 Conventional Base Station Interfaces 
The MCC7500 is capable of accessing and controlling analog conventional base stations through the 
use of conventional channel gateways (CCGW).  The CCGW is a GGM8000 Gateway.  This 
capability lowers the cost of ownership in two ways: 


 It uses the same transport network, reducing the requirements for dedicated backhaul. 
 It reduces the hardware requirements for interoperability, lowering fixed network equipment 


costs. 


The dispatch console processes audio received from the station, and controls various features on the 
stations, such as frequency selection, private line selection, and repeater on/off.  


Each GGM8000 router can support up to 16 IP interfaced base stations, eight (8) 4-wire analog 
stations, and eight (8) v.24 interfaces. Through the use of one of the analog ports, and one of the v.24 
ports, a digital and analog mixed mode channel may be interfaced to the system, utilizing one of the 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


1-14 System Description Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


available channel slots of the CCGW. Additionally, the GGM8000 CCGWs allow for recovery of 
MDC1200 and digital signaling, such as unit ID, and emergency alarm, which is in turn, passed to the 
MCC7500 dispatch operator position(s). 


1.12.1.5 Console Operations 
The MCC7500 IP Console is designed to provide mission-critical audio between the dispatch console 
and users in the field. It is optimized for real-time audio, prioritizing emergency calls over other 
traffic, minimizing voice queuing, and transmitting calls in 450 milliseconds or less. 


Using robust error mitigation to maintain call quality even when the system is heavily loaded, the 
MCC7500 IP Console reduces communication errors that may force dispatch console operators to 
repeat their transmissions. 


1.12.1.6 Dispatch Interface 


The MCC7500’s graphical user interface (GUI) optimizes user efficiency. It is designed to 
display the maximum number of resources a dispatch operator is able to easily view and 
control. Users can customize the MCC7500’s GUI by agency or by individual user to meet 
their dynamic needs and requirements.  


Elite Dispatch Graphical User Interface 


The MCC7500 Elite Dispatch GUI is an enhanced version of Motorola’s Gold Elite Dispatch GUI. 
For existing Gold Elite users, the GUI allows a smooth transition and minimal training for radio 
dispatch operators. For new users, the graphical icons and customization options make the MCC7500 
IP console GUI easy to learn and operate.  


An example of the MCC7500’s GUI is shown in Figure 1. 


 


Figure 1: The MCC7500’s GUI delivers critical real-time information is delivered to the 
console operator when and where they need it 


Tool Bars


Resource
Folders


Patch &
Multi-Select


Folders


Activity Log
Window


Status Bar


Auxiliary
Inputs/Outputs


Radio
Resource


Radio
Resource


Radio
Resources


Radio
Resources







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted System Description 1-15 


Based on operator preference, the MCC7500 GUI can be customized to show details of trunked and 
conventional channels on a per-channel basis. Various controls can be highlighted, such as patch 
status, frequency select, coded/clear select, and individual volume control. Per-channel controls can 
be fully or partially shown, or hidden to save space on the screen. Busy dispatch operators can 
respond to a missed call by simply clicking on an entry in the Activity Log. The number of calls and 
call information displayed in the Activity Log is customizable to suit the needs of the user. The status 
of auxiliary inputs and outputs can be conveniently interpreted from the GUI with the use of familiar 
graphical icons, such as a door shown open or closed. 


1.12.1.7 Standard Radio Transmission and Reception 
A typical MCC7500 console has two speakers, one for selected audio and the second for all 
remaining unselected audio. Additional speakers can be added to the console, allowing dispatch 
operators to configure a specific speaker for a set of designated audio sources. This simplifies 
multitasking between multiple audio sources, allowing flexibility in the way the audio is presented to 
the dispatch operator. 


Receiving Calls from the Field and Other Dispatch Operators 


Dispatch operators have great flexibility as to how to hear calls from field radio users and other 
dispatch operators. Each console dispatch operator can define his or her own audio reception profile. 
They can select a single audio source, whether conventional or talkgroup, to be heard on a selected 
speaker (“Single Select”). They can also define groups of radio resources that can all be heard on a 
selected speaker (“Multi-Select”). 


Initiating Calls to the Field and Other Dispatch Operators  


The dispatch operator has several different ways of initiating a call. In most circumstances, a 
“General Transmit” is appropriate. With the general transmit, the dispatch operator selects a resource 
on the console and activates the transmission through a footswitch, headset transmit button, 
microphone transmit button.  


If the dispatch operator needs to quickly transmit on a resource, they use the “Instant Transmit” 
function, which activates the resource regardless of whether it is selected. To prevent accidental 
activation of “Instant Transmit,” it can be limited through an “Instant Transmit Safety Switch,” which 
must be pressed prior to activation of “Instant Transmit.” 


Making Calls to the Field and Other Dispatch Operators 


The dispatch operator can transmit audio in different ways, depending on who they need to speak 
with and how important that communication is. Most basically, they can make calls to all users 
listening to a specific conventional radio resource or a specific talkgroup (“Trunking Talkgroup”). 
When multiple resources are required, the operator can select additional talkgroups and/or 
conventional channels as needed for the call using the multi-select feature.  


The MCC7500 system enables dispatch operators to make private calls to individual field radio users 
or dispatch operators. Once this private call is established, it can be patched in with another resource 
at the dispatch operator’s discretion. . 


Controlling Console Audio 


The MCC7500 IP Dispatch Console offers the operator several different ways of controlling or 
muting the audio on their console. The operator can change the audio volume of any specific resource 
routed to a selected speaker and, if they desire, can mute and un-mute all non-selected resources on 
the console (“All Mute”) for 30 seconds.  







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


1-16 System Description Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


The console enables the dispatcher to transmit on a resource while receiving audio from other 
resources. It also can prevent acoustic feedback when a co-located operator position transmits by 
muting the transmitting operator position’s audio on a  
shared resource. 


Controlling Network Audio 


Dispatch operators can control the audio on the ASTRO25 network. Using the console, the operator 
can enable or disable radio users in a talkgroup from hearing transmissions of other radio users in that 
talkgroup, in order to compartmentalize traffic, reduce interruptions, and maintain communications 
between dispatch and the field. When this function is enabled or disabled, all dispatch consoles with 
this resource assigned are updated with the current status of the feature. This feature can be controlled 
from any dispatch console. 


1.12.1.8 Dispatch Audio Experience 


Emergency Alarms 


The MCC7500 IP Dispatch Console is capable of monitoring radio subscribers for user initiated 
emergency activations. On subscriber radios that are equipped and programmed to transmit an 
emergency alarm, the MCC7500 detects that this emergency has occurred and displays the emergency 
on operator positions that are preprogrammed to receive the emergency notification.  


Operator positions can be programmed to either receive the emergency or to completely ignore it. In 
the event of an emergency condition from a radio user, all programmed consoles with give both an 
audible and visual indication of the event. The dispatch operator can then silence the emergency 
leaving the visual indication on the screen indicating information on the initiating radio allowing the 
call to be handled and dispatched appropriately. 


Once an emergency is received all programmed operator positions will give the audible and visual 
indication of the event. Any one of these operator positions has the ability to silence the emergency at 
only their position or for all operator positions on the system. 


In the event of a system that all channels are busy at the RF site that receives the emergency, that 
event is automatically given a Priority Level 1. This is the highest priority possible, putting the 
emergency call at the top of any busy queue. The emergency call will be given the next available 
voice channel at that site bumping all non-emergency calls in the queue. 


Headset Jack 


Each dispatch console is capable of supporting up to two headset jacks. A headset jack allows a 
dispatch console user to use a headset while operating the dispatch console. Each headset can either 
be connected to the console for supervisory applications, or to a desk telephone. 


The headset jack contains two volume controls: one for adjusting the level of received radio audio 
and one for adjusting the level of received telephone audio.  


The headset jack supports headsets which use either PJ7 (6-wire) or PJ327 (4-wire) longframe 
connectors (6-wire headsets have a PTT button while 4-wire headsets do not have a PTT button). 


Desktop Speakers 


Each dispatch console is capable of supporting up to 8 audio speakers. These speakers supply audio 
for select/unselect, as well as pre-determined audio sources to specific monitor speakers., each of 
which transmits unique audio—that is, an audio source cannot appear in multiple speakers at a single 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted System Description 1-17 


dispatch console. Each position supports up to eight audio speakers. Monitor speakers – can tie 
specific talkgroups to a certain speaker, such as all fire resources to speaker 3. 


Each speaker has individual volume controls, and contains an amplifier that provides a maximum of 2 
Watts of power output. Speakers are self-contained units, and can be placed on a desktop, mounted in 
a rack/furniture, mounted on a wall, or mounted on a computer monitor. A mounting bracket is 
included with each speaker. 


Footswitch 


Each dispatch console is capable of a dual pedal footswitch. The footswitch can be configured to 
control general transmit and monitor functions. 


Telephone/Headset Port 


The telephone/headset port allows an external telephone set to be connected to the dispatch console. 
The dispatch console’s headset can then be used to communicate on both the radio system and a 
telephone system (i.e. a 911 system).  


When a telephone call occurs at a dispatch position, radio audio is directed from the headset to the 
appropriate console speaker. The headset microphone audio is routed to the telephone, allowing the 
dispatch console user to communicate hands-free on the telephone set. When the dispatch operator 
ends their call, the headset reverts back to full radio operation. 


When the dispatch operator transmits on a radio resource during a telephone call, the headset 
microphone is re-routed to the radio system for the duration of the transmission. Once the 
transmission is completed, the headset microphone is routed back to the telephone. During the 
transmission, the dispatch operator continues to hear the telephone audio through the headset. 


Instant Recall Recorder Port (for Radio) 


Short-term, console-specific audio recording is a mechanism used to record a portion of the inbound 
audio present on a specific dispatch console and make it readily available to the dispatch console user. 
This recorded audio is retained by the recording system for a short period (typically about 60 
minutes) and is easily played back by the dispatch console user. This allows the dispatch console user 
to replay received audio that the user may have missed. 


The instant recall recorder port (for radio) allows an instant recall recorder to be connected to a 
dispatch console. The port provides an output containing the receive radio audio on the selected 
channels. Transmit audio of any type (from either this dispatch console or a parallel dispatch console) 
as well as tones generated by the dispatch console (emergency tones, callback tones, busy tones) are 
not included in the audio output. 


Dispatch console generated tones (e.g., emergency alarm tones, trunking busy tones, error tones, etc.) 
are not included in the audio appearing at the analog audio output. This is done so that they do not 
interfere with the dispatch console user’s ability to understand the voice audio that was recorded.  


1.12.1.9 Emergency Radio Transmission and Reception 
As part of a mission-critical communications network, the MCC7500 facilitates immediate 
prioritization and resolution of emergency communications between the dispatch center and first 
responders in the field. This enables dispatch operators and first responders to focus on their mission, 
not their equipment—especially during critical situations. 


When a field user or another dispatch operator makes a trunking emergency call, the console emits 
both visual and audible indications (“Emergency Alarm”). The operator can then “recognize” the 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


1-18 System Description Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


emergency call, which ends the audible emergency indication and notifies all console operators that 
the emergency is being addressed (“Emergency Recognize”). The audible emergency indication may 
also be muted by a console operator without recognizing the emergency alarm (“Mute Tones at a 
Single Op”). When an emergency is over, the dispatch console user can end the Emergency Alarm. 
The emergency mode remains active on the initiating radio unit until it is ended (reset) by the radio 
user. 


Receiving an Emergency Call 


When a field user or another dispatch operator makes a trunking emergency call, the console emits 
both visual and audible indications (“Emergency Alarm”). The audible indication works to alert the 
dispatch operator that an emergency is underway; the visual indication directs the dispatch operator’s 
attention to the specific resource on which the emergency call is being made. The dispatch operator 
can immediately reserve a voice channel for the duration of the emergency.  


The audible indication for an emergency is generated at the maximum level of the received audio, 
regardless of what volume the console has set that resource to. This is to ensure that the console 
operator does not miss the call. When the emergency call has been acknowledged, the volume for that 
resource is returned to its previous level. 


Responding to an Emergency Call 


When a console operator wishes to respond to the trunking emergency call, they can bypass the 
standard console interface to auto-open a quick list, which contains specific controls for recognizing 
an emergency call, initiating an emergency call, and ending an emergency call (“Auto-Open of Quick 
List”). The operator can then “recognize” the emergency call, which ends the audible emergency 
indication and notifies all console operators that the emergency is being addressed (“Emergency 
Recognize”).  


The audible emergency indication may also be muted by a console operator without recognizing the 
emergency alarm (“Mute Tones at a Single Op”). This would be used in a situation where one agency 
is monitoring a channel that belongs to another agency. If an emergency alarm comes in on the 
second agency's channel, the first agency could mute the tones at their dispatch consoles without 
having to wait for the second agency to recognize it. 


Ending an Emergency Call 


When an emergency is over, the dispatch console user can end the Emergency Alarm. The visual 
indication on the console GUI is removed, and the console informs the trunking controller and other 
consoles that the emergency is over (“Emergency End/Knockdown”). 


The emergency mode remains active on the initiating radio unit until it is ended (reset) by the radio 
user. 


1.12.1.10 Radio Patch Control 
MCC7500 console users can patch communication between trunked and/or conventional radios that 
are normally unable to communicate with each other due to different features, programming, or even 
different frequency bands. A patch group is a group of linked resources that can both receive 
messages from a console and transmit to all other members of the patch group. The MCC7500 
supports a maximum of 16 active patch groups. 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted System Description 1-19 


Setting up a Standard Patch 


A dispatch operator can set up a standard patch between trunked resources and/or conventional 
resources. After the patch is created, the dispatch console transmits all audio on one resource to all 
other resources in the patch group.  


Patched radio users see the ID or alias of the other patched radio(s), as opposed to that of the console, 
provided that the radio subscriber is capable of displaying IDs.  


This minimizes confusion and the need for the dispatch operator to intervene in the call. Patches are 
automatically re-established if interrupted so the MCC7500 user can concentrate on continuing 
operations. 


Pre-Defined Patches 


Patches can also be pre-defined, and be automatically re-initiated each time a dispatch console 
computer is restarted (“Patch Auto-Start”). 


Using Multi-Select 


The Multi-Select feature allows a dispatch console to define groups of selected radio resources. When 
a Multi-Select group is opened, all of the resources in the group are simultaneously selected. 
Resources can be added or removed from a Multi-Select group while it is open or while it is closed. 


The Multi-Select feature 


 Selects multiple resources simultaneously. 
 Defines and stores groups of resources so that multiple resources can be conveniently selected 


and deselected. 


Note: This operation is different than that of the patch folders. A dispatch console can only have one 
multi-select group active at a time, but it can have multiple patch groups simultaneously active. 


1.12.1.11 Call Management and Control 


Automatic Prioritization of Calls 


Calls on the MCC7500 Dispatch Console are prioritized through a transmission hierarchy. Calls from 
primary supervisors take priority over those from secondary supervisors, which in turn take priority 
over non-supervisors. Instant Transmit or All-Points Bulletin (APB) transmissions, regardless of 
whether they are from a supervisor, will take priority over general or patch transmissions. 


Multiple dispatch console operators can be designated as primary supervisors on the same system, 
which is useful when multiple agencies share one system, each with their own primary supervisor.  


Console supervisors have the capability to disable and enable operator console functionality as 
necessary. 


Manual Prioritization of Calls 


“System Access Priority Select” allows a dispatch operator to prioritize trunked resources on the 
system as either “normal” or “tactical.” A dispatch operator can change the priority of a trunked 
resource to tactical in order to give the resource a better chance of gaining communication access on a 
busy system. Only emergency calls have a higher priority than tactical. When the System Access 
Priority status of a resource is changed, it is updated at all dispatch consoles in the systems that are 
monitoring that trunked resource.  







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


1-20 System Description Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


Standard Call Indications 


The MCC7500 Console indicates the availability of any given trunking resource, whether or not it is 
being transmitted on at the moment. It will also give an inbound call indication that provides the 
console operator with a visual cue of audio activity on a radio resource. This functionality makes it 
easy for an operator to see at a glance what the status of a resource is at any moment.  


Resource Identification 


To identify a resource, the console reads its unit ID, a string of digits that uniquely represent that 
resource. The console makes it easy for operators to read unit IDs by replacing them with user-
friendly 16-character aliases. These aliases, which are defined during the configuration of the console 
system, can replace the unit IDs of the following resources: 


 Trunking Talkgroup Resource 
 Trunking Announcement Group Resource 
 Trunking Individual Call Resource 
 Conventional Channel Resource 
 Conventional Channel Frequency Selection Control 
 Conventional Channel PL Selection Control 
 Unit ID 
 Aux I/O Resource 


On large systems, unit IDs can be conserved by grouping all individual call resources on a specific 
trunking talkgroup together under a certain ID. This flexibility simplifies the daily work of dispatch 
operators. 


Call Alerting 


When an operator needs to reach a radio user or dispatch operator and they are not near their radio or 
console, the dispatch operator can “page” the unattended radio or console through a series of beeps 
and an indication of the sender’s ID. When the radio user or dispatch operator becomes available, 
they will see the unit ID of the calling dispatch operator’s console, and be able to return the call. 
Additionally, a Call Alert can be used to trigger an activity. For instance, a Call Alert may cause a 
vehicle’s horn to sound and its lights to flash. 


The console operator can even send a call alert to a user who is involved in voice and data 
communications over the network. 


1.12.1.12 Console Logging 
The MCC7500 Dispatch Console provides a Long Term Logging Port at each dispatch position that 
would allow for logging of audio from each position.  Several additional options are available to log 
audio off of the new system and dispatch console.  Motorola can provide those options upon request.  


Long Term Logging Port 


Each MCC7500 dispatch position is equipped with a Long-term Logging port.  Long term audio 
recording is used to record a portion of the inbound and outbound audio present on a specific dispatch 
console. These recordings are typically archived for long-term storage, and provide a historical record 
of the radio communications made at a given dispatch console. 


The long term logging port allows an external logging recorder to be connected to a dispatch console. 
The audio that appears on this output is configurable, but is typically the audio that was transmitted 
and/or received at that dispatch console. 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted System Description 1-21 


The configuration of audio to be presented at this port is tied to the physical dispatch console, so that 
no matter what user is logged into the console, the same type of audio is logged. The long term 
logging port can be configured to log any combination of the audio sources listed below: 


 Audio received from the currently selected radio resources (note that the level of this audio is 
not affected by either the individual volume setting of the radio resource or the master 
volume control on the speaker or headset jack) 


 Microphone audio being transmitted to the currently selected radio resources by this dispatch 
console user 


 Microphone audio being transmitted to unselected radio resources by this dispatch console 
user 


 Any tones generated by the dispatch console that appear in its speakers (trunking tones, 
emergency tones, etc.) 


Note that this output may be used with an instant recall recorder as well as a long term logging 
recorder. 


1.12.1.13 Console System Security 
The MCC7500 Console supports many different secure access features. A few of the security features 
are outlined below. 


Secure Access to the Console 


To use the dispatch console, an operator must enter a valid radio system user account name and 
password. The dispatch console validates that information with the radio system’s network manager 
and allows the user to access only the resources for which the user has access rights. This also applies 
to third party applications that use the dispatch console's API. 


Secure Communications at the Console  


The console itself encrypts and decrypts radio voice messages if the secure keys option is purchased 
for the console. If purchased, radio voice messages are encrypted end-to-end, from the field radio user 
to the dispatch console. The console operator can choose whether or not to encrypt their transmissions 
on a particular trunked resource. Console operators can interface with agencies that have different 
encryption configurations without any manual intervention or delay. The MCC7500 Console can 
support up to 60 calls simultaneously, using up to four different algorithms and multiple encryption 
keys. 


To help reduce potential errors when managing encrypted communications, the MCC7500 interface 
provides alerts when the console mode does not match that of a received call, and when a patch or 
multi-select group is being set up between a mix of clear and secure channels. The set of alerts 
available on the console are in Table 2, below. 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


1-22 System Description Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


Table 2: Security Indications 


Indication/Alert Indication/Alert Description 


Receive Cross-Mode 
Indication 


Indicates when an inbound call’s secure mode does not match the 
console’s outbound mode, so that the console operator can 
respond in the correct mode. 


Clear Audio Alert Provides visual and audible indication that a trunked radio 
transmission or reception is unencrypted.  


Multi-Select Cross-Mode 
Alert 


Indicates that different trunked resources in a multi-select group 
have different secure modes, preventing console operators from 
transmitting audio in both secure and non-secure modes. 


Patch Cross-Mode Alert Indicates that different trunked resources in a patch group have 
different secure modes, preventing console operators from 
transmitting audio that is intended to be secure in an unencrypted 
state. 


Key Fail Indication Indicates that a console cannot decrypt or encrypt a call due to a 
problem with an encryption key.  


Panic Key Zeroizing Erases all encryption keys at a specific console or AIS at the push 
of a button. The button is recessed in a panel to reduce the 
chance of accidentally pressing it. 


Keyset/Indexset Selection 
via GUI 


Enables the dispatch operator to manually select the 
keyset/indexset the dispatch console uses.  


Key Management via KVL  Enables the operator to use the KVL to manage all keys for a 
dispatch console or archiving interface server. 


Key Management via Store 
and Forward 


Enables the operator to use a KVL and KMF to manage all keys 
for a console or archiving interface server. 


1.12.1.14 Console Configuration and Management 
The MCC7500 console system is configured and managed by the same configuration manager, fault 
manager, and performance reporting applications as the radio system. The user can define exactly 
which resources are available and how they are presented to the dispatch console user. This provides 
agencies with a single point for configuring and managing the entire ASTRO25 system. Changes are 
automatically distributed throughout the system. This centralized approach saves valuable time and 
effort for system administrators and technicians, and reduces the errors that can occur when radio IDs 
and other data are entered at multiple locations.  


In addition, call traffic and performance reports for each console can be generated from the system’s 
network manager. This enables administrators to quickly and easily ensure optimal effectiveness and 
efficiency.  


1.12.1.15 MCC7500 Dispatch Console Component Description 


An MCC7500 Dispatch IP Console consists of the following elements: 


 Operator position computer 
 Voice Processing Module (VPM) 
 Auxiliary Input/Outputs 
 Network equipment 
 Conventional Channel Interface equipment 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted System Description 1-23 


This section discusses the various components that make up the proposed MCC7500 
Dispatch Console system. These components are connected together and to the rest of the 
ASTRO25 system on an IP network via console site routers and switches. The MCC7500 
Dispatch Console functions as an integrated component of the total radio system, fully 
participating in system level features such as end-to-end encryption and agency partitioning. 


Since the network is IP-based, the system’s interfaces and components can be distributed 
physically throughout the network. Logging components can be centrally located at the zone 
core or distributed at console sites. CCGWs can be located at conventional-only RF sites, at 
trunking RF sites, the master site, or at console sites with conventional stations. Aux I/O 
Servers can be placed anywhere in the zone, closest to where they are needed.  


 


Figure 2: Motorola MCC7500 Dispatch Console Hardware Architecture 


 


Console
Site Link
(WAN)


LAN 
Switch


Console Site
Router


Dispatch
Console


PC


MCC 7500 
Dispatch 
Consoles


Desktop SpeakersDesktop
Microphone


Headset Jacks


VPM


Analog


Analog


Footswitch
Local Logging Recorder
Instant Recall Recorder


External Paging Encoder
External Telephone System


Monitor


Ethernet
Cable


Ethernet
Cable


2 Ethernet Cab les per
Dispatch Console







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


1-24 System Description Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


1.12.1.15.1 Operator Position Components 


MCC7500 operator positions connect directly to the radio system’s IP transport network without 
gateways or interface boxes. Audio processing, 
encryption, and switching intelligence for dispatch are 
performed within each software-based operator 
position, without additional centralized electronics.  


An MCC7500 operator position consists of a computer, 
a Voice Processing Module (VPM), one select speaker, 
up to three unselect speakers, a desktop gooseneck 
microphone and/or headset jack box with in-line PTT 
amplifier and headset, and optional footswitch. 


Voice Processing Module (VPM) 


The VPM provides vocoding and audio processing 
services for the dispatch console. It connects to the console site LAN switch and communicates with 
the dispatch console PC via Ethernet. Each operator position includes a PC and a dedicated VPN. The 
VPM also provides connections for analog devices to be connected to the digital console. 


The VPM has connectors for the following devices: 


 One desktop microphone 
 Two headset jacks 
 Eight desktop speakers  
 Logging recorder 
 Radio instant recall recorder 
 Telephone instant recall recorder (not supported in initial releases) 
 External telephone set 
 External paging encoder 
 Footswitch 
 Generic transmit audio input 


Some of the connectors listed above can be used to provide audio inputs and outputs for connecting 
other types of dispatch consoles to the Motorola radio system in conjunction with the Motorola 
MCC7500 Dispatch APIs. 


An optional secure card provides encryption and decryption services for the dispatch console. It is 
capable of supporting multiple, simultaneous encryption/decryption sessions using multiple 
algorithms and multiple secure keys. 


Personal Computer (PC) 


The dispatch console uses a customized Motorola-certified PC running the Microsoft Windows 
operating system and containing a Motorola-designed voice card and a Motorola-designed secure 
card. The PCs used in ASTRO25 systems have a mini-tower form factor. 


The PCs are processed through Motorola factories in Schaumburg so that the application software, 
voice cards, and secure cards can be installed and tested to ensure they are operating properly. 


MCC7500 Operator Position Components 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted System Description 1-25 


1.12.1.15.2 Auxiliary Inputs and Outputs 


An Auxiliary Input/Output server enables console operators to control and monitor external devices, 
such as doors and lights, from the console user interface. Multiple dispatch consoles anywhere in the 
network may monitor and control the same relay output and/or external inputs. Changes are indicated 
across all dispatch consoles simultaneously. Customizable graphic icons are also used to provide a 
visual indication of both the function and state of external inputs.  


The contact closures and input buffers required to interface to these devices are housed in Remote 
Terminal Units (RTUs). These RTUs can be physically located close to where they are needed, at any 
console site or RF site. The dispatch consoles and RTUs communicate with each other across the 
radio system’s IP transport network. Individual relay outputs can be configured so that they require a 
safety switch to be pressed before they respond to any commands from the dispatch console user.  


Supported Aux I/O Configurations 


The following Aux I/O configurations are supported. 


Aux I/O Configuration  Description 


Momentary Input This is an input where the user interface always shows the true state 
of the input. 


Latched Input This is an input where the user interface does not necessarily show 
the true state of the input. When the input goes active, the user 
interface shows the state as active. The display will continue to show 
the state as active even if the input changes to the inactive state. A 
dispatch console user must manually reset the display to return it to 
the inactive state. 


Momentary Output This output relay is activated when the dispatch console user presses 
the button on the user interface and deactivated when the dispatch 
console user releases the button. 


Latched Output This output relay changes state only when the dispatch console user 
presses the button. 


Interlocked Latched 
Output 


This latched output relay is part of a group of latched output relays. 
Only one of the relays in the group may be active at a time.  
Interlocked relays work in a “break before make” fashion; that is, the 
previously active relay is deactivated before the new relay is 
activated. 


 


1.13 BACKHAUL REQUIREMENTS  
The dispatch console will connect to the Master Site via dual T1 site links. Since the exact number of 
talkgroups to be monitored by each dispatch center has not been determined, the number of backhaul 
links required will be determined during the Design Review.    







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Equipment List 2-1 


SECTION 2 


EQUIPMENT LIST 
SUB SYS BLOCK QTY NOMENCLATURE DESCRIPTION 


          


          


Zone   1 SQM01SUM0239 MASTER SITE CONFIG UPGRADE 


Zone   1 CA00996AK NM/ZC LICENSE KEY 7.13 


Zone   1 CA00997AK UCS LICENSE KEY 7.13 


Zone   17 CA02105AA MCC7500/MCC7100 CONSOLE LIC 


          


Folsom PD OP_POSIT 1 B1905 MCC 7500 ASTRO 25 SOFTWARE 


Folsom PD OP_POSIT 6 B1933 MOTOROLA VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE 


Folsom PD OP_POSIT 6 CA01642AA ADD: MCC 7500 BASIC CONSOLE FUNCTIONALITY SOFTWARE LICENSE 


Folsom PD OP_POSIT 6 CA01643AA ADD: MCC 7500 / MCC 7100  TRUNKING OPERATION 


Folsom PD OP_POSIT 6 CA02073AA ADD:  MCC 7500 Enhanced Console Telephony Operation License 


Folsom PD OP_POSIT 6 CA00140AA ADD: AC LINE CORD, NORTH AMERICAN 


Folsom PD OP_POSIT 3 DS019BLK 19 INCH NON-TOUCH MONITOR, BLACK 


Folsom PD OP_POSIT 6 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


Folsom PD OP_POSIT 6 T7448 WINDOWS SUPPLEMENTAL FULL CONFIG 


Folsom PD SURGE 6 DSRMP615A SPD, TYPE 3, 120V RK MNT, 15A PLUG-IN W/ (6) 15A NEMA 5-15 OUTLETS 


Folsom PD OP_POSIT 12 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 


Folsom PD OP_POSIT 12 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 


Folsom PD OP_POSIT 12 RLN6098 HDST MODULE BASE W/PTT, 15' CBL 


Folsom PD OP_POSIT 12 RMN5077B SUPRAPLUS SINGLE MUFF HEADSET 


Folsom PD OP_POSIT 6 DSTWIN6328A ONE DUAL PEDAL FOOTSWITCH FOR USE WITH MOTOROLA MCC7500 


Folsom PD OP_POSIT 6 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 


Folsom PD OP_POSIT 6 DDN1245 DUAL IRR SW USB HASP WITH LICENSE (VERSION 45) 


Folsom PD OP_POSIT 6 DDN1118 PCI EXPRESS SOUND BLASTER X-FI XTREME AUDIO 


Folsom PD OP_POSIT 6 CDN6673 CREATIVE LABS INSPIRE A60 


Folsom PD SWITCH 2 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH 


Folsom PD ROUTER 2 SQM01SUM0205 GGM 8000 GATEWAY 


Folsom PD ROUTER 2 CA01616AA ADD: AC POWER 


Folsom PD AUX_IO 1 F4543 SITE MANAGER BASIC 


Folsom PD AUX_IO 1 VA00212 SDM3000 MCC 7500 AUX IO F/W FOR A7.13 


Folsom PD AUX_IO 1 V266 ADD: 90VAC TO 260VAC PS TO SM 


Folsom PD AUX_IO 3 V592 AAD TERM BLCK & CONN WI 


Folsom PD GCP8000 1 T7038 GCP 8000 SITE CONTROLLER 


Folsom PD GCP8000 1 CA00303AA ADD: QTY (1) SITE CONTROLLER 


Folsom PD GCP8000 1 X153AW ADD:  RACK MOUNT HARDWARE 


Folsom PD GCP8000 1 CA01136AA ADD: MCC 7500 CONVEN SITE OPER 


Folsom PD CCGW 2 SQM01SUM0205 GGM 8000 GATEWAY 


Folsom PD CCGW 2 CA01616AA ADD: AC POWER 


Folsom PD CCGW 2 CA02086AA ADD: HIGH DENSITY ENH CONV GATEWAY 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


2-2 Equipment List Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


Folsom PD CAM 1 BVN1013 MKM 7000 Console Alias Manager Software 


Folsom PD CAM 1 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


Folsom PD CAM 1 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 


Folsom PD RACK 1 TRN7343 SEVEN AND A HALF FOOT RACK 


Folsom PD RACK 2 DSTSJ100BT SPD, RJ-48 8 PIN, 10/100 BASE T TSJ PROTECTS/PASSES ON ALL 8 PIN 


Folsom PD SURGE 1 DS110110711 PDU, AC EDGE RACK MOUNT DIST PANEL, 120VAC 60A, 12-15A CIRCUIT 


Folsom PD SURGE 15 DS37502831 BREAKER KIT AIRPAX 5AMP SNAPAC, FOR AC EDGE OR DC EDGE III 


Folsom PD SPARES 1 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 


Folsom PD SPARES 1 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 


Folsom PD SPARES 1 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


Folsom PD SPARES 1 B1934 MCC 7500 VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE FRU 


Folsom PD SPARES 1 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH 


Folsom PD Flash 4 T6999 ANALOG SMARTZONE 


Folsom PD Flash 4 G808 ENH: ASTRO DIGITAL CAI OPRN 


Folsom PD Flash 4 G347 ENH: SMARTZONE UPGRADE 


Folsom PD Flash 4 G114 ENH: DIGITAL ID DISPLAY 


Folsom PD Flash 4 G361 ENH: ASTRO PROJECT 25 TRUNKING SOFTWARE 


          


Sac PD OP_POSIT 1 B1905 MCC 7500 ASTRO 25 SOFTWARE 


Sac PD OP_POSIT 20 B1933 MOTOROLA VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE 


Sac PD OP_POSIT 20 CA01642AA ADD: MCC 7500 BASIC CONSOLE FUNCTIONALITY SOFTWARE LICENSE 


Sac PD OP_POSIT 20 CA01643AA ADD: MCC 7500 / MCC 7100  TRUNKING OPERATION 


Sac PD OP_POSIT 20 CA02073AA ADD:  MCC 7500 Enhanced Console Telephony Operation License 


Sac PD OP_POSIT 20 CA00140AA ADD: AC LINE CORD, NORTH AMERICAN 


Sac PD OP_POSIT 21 DS019BLK 19 INCH NON-TOUCH MONITOR, BLACK 


Sac PD OP_POSIT 20 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


Sac PD OP_POSIT 20 T7448 WINDOWS SUPPLEMENTAL FULL CONFIG 


Sac PD SURGE 20 DSRMP615A SPD, TYPE 3, 120V RK MNT, 15A PLUG-IN W/ (6) 15A NEMA 5-15 OUTLETS 


Sac PD OP_POSIT 40 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 


Sac PD OP_POSIT 20 B1914 MCC SERIES DESKTOP GOOSENECK MICROPHONE 


Sac PD OP_POSIT 40 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 


Sac PD OP_POSIT 20 DSTWIN6328A ONE DUAL PEDAL FOOTSWITCH FOR USE WITH MOTOROLA MCC 7500 


Sac PD OP_POSIT 20 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 


Sac PD OP_POSIT 20 DDN1245 DUAL IRR SW USB HASP WITH LICENSE (VERSION 45) 


Sac PD OP_POSIT 20 DDN1118 PCI EXPRESS SOUND BLASTER X-FI XTREME AUDIO 


Sac PD OP_POSIT 20 CDN6673 CREATIVE LABS INSPIRE A60 


Sac PD SWITCH 2 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH 


Sac PD ROUTER 2 SQM01SUM0205 GGM 8000 GATEWAY 


Sac PD ROUTER 2 CA01616AA ADD: AC POWER 


Sac PD AUX_IO 1 F4543 SITE MANAGER BASIC 


Sac PD AUX_IO 1 VA00212 SDM3000 MCC 7500 AUX IO F/W FOR A7.13 


Sac PD AUX_IO 1 V266 ADD: 90VAC TO 260VAC PS TO SM 


Sac PD AUX_IO 3 V592 AAD TERM BLCK & CONN WI 


Sac PD CAM 1 BVN1013 MKM 7000 Console Alias Manager Software 


Sac PD CAM 1 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


Sac PD CAM 1 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Equipment List 2-3 


Sac PD RACK 1 DQ55053707 19INCH EQUIPMENT RACK 7FT BLACK 


Sac PD RACK 2 DSTSJ100BT SPD, RJ-48 8 PIN, 10/100 BASE T TSJ PROTECTS/PASSES ON ALL 8 PIN 


Sac PD SURGE 1 DS110110711 PDU, AC EDGE RACK MOUNT DIST PANEL, 120VAC 60A, 12-15A CIRCUIT 


Sac PD SURGE 15 DS37502831 BREAKER KIT AIRPAX 5AMP SNAPAC, FOR AC EDGE OR DC EDGE III 


Sac PD SPARES 1 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 


Sac PD SPARES 1 B1914 MCC SERIES DESKTOP GOOSENECK MICROPHONE 


Sac PD SPARES 1 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 


Sac PD SPARES 1 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


Sac PD SPARES 1 B1934 MCC 7500 VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE FRU 


Sac PD SPARES 1 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH 


Sac PD Flash 20 T6999 ANALOG SMARTZONE 


Sac PD Flash 20 G808 ENH: ASTRO DIGITAL CAI OPRN 


Sac PD Flash 20 G347 ENH: SMARTZONE UPGRADE 


Sac PD Flash 20 G114 ENH: DIGITAL ID DISPLAY 


Sac PD Flash 20 G361 ENH: ASTRO PROJECT 25 TRUNKING SOFTWARE 


          


RT Bus OP_POSIT 1 B1905 MCC 7500 ASTRO 25 SOFTWARE 


RT Bus OP_POSIT 2 B1933 MOTOROLA VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE 


RT Bus OP_POSIT 2 CA01642AA ADD: MCC 7500 BASIC CONSOLE FUNCTIONALITY SOFTWARE LICENSE 


RT Bus OP_POSIT 2 CA01643AA ADD: MCC 7500 / MCC 7100  TRUNKING OPERATION 


RT Bus OP_POSIT 2 CA02073AA ADD:  MCC 7500 Enhanced Console Telephony Operation License 


RT Bus OP_POSIT 2 CA00140AA ADD: AC LINE CORD, NORTH AMERICAN 


RT Bus OP_POSIT 2 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


RT Bus OP_POSIT 2 T7448 WINDOWS SUPPLEMENTAL FULL CONFIG 


RT Bus SURGE 2 DSRMP615A SPD, TYPE 3, 120V RK MNT, 15A PLUG-IN W/ (6) 15A NEMA 5-15 OUTLETS 


RT Bus OP_POSIT 4 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 


RT Bus OP_POSIT 2 B1914 MCC SERIES DESKTOP GOOSENECK MICROPHONE 


RT Bus OP_POSIT 2 DSTWIN6328A ONE DUAL PEDAL FOOTSWITCH FOR USE WITH MOTOROLA MCC7500 


RT Bus OP_POSIT 2 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 


RT Bus OP_POSIT 2 DDN1245 DUAL IRR SW USB HASP WITH LICENSE (VERSION 45) 


RT Bus OP_POSIT 2 DDN1118 PCI EXPRESS SOUND BLASTER X-FI XTREME AUDIO 


RT Bus OP_POSIT 2 CDN6673 CREATIVE LABS INSPIRE A60 


RT Bus SWITCH 2 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH 


RT Bus ROUTER 2 SQM01SUM0205 GGM 8000 GATEWAY 


RT Bus ROUTER 2 CA01616AA ADD: AC POWER 


RT Bus AUX_IO 1 F4543 SITE MANAGER BASIC 


RT Bus AUX_IO 1 VA00212 SDM3000 MCC 7500 AUX IO F/W FOR A7.13 


RT Bus AUX_IO 1 V266 ADD: 90VAC TO 260VAC PS TO SM 


RT Bus AUX_IO 3 V592 AAD TERM BLCK & CONN WI 


RT Bus CAM 1 BVN1013 MKM 7000 Console Alias Manager Software 


RT Bus RACK 1 TRN7343 SEVEN AND A HALF FOOT RACK 


RT Bus RACK 2 DSTSJ100BT SPD, RJ-48 8 PIN, 10/100 BASE T TSJ PROTECTS/PASSES ON ALL 8 PIN 


RT Bus SURGE 1 DS110110711 PDU, AC EDGE RACK MOUNT DIST PANEL, 120VAC 60A, 12-15A CIRCUIT 


RT Bus SURGE 15 DS37502831 BREAKER KIT AIRPAX 5AMP SNAPAC, FOR AC EDGE OR DC EDGE III 


RT Bus SPARES 1 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 


RT Bus SPARES 1 B1914 MCC SERIES DESKTOP GOOSENECK MICROPHONE 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


2-4 Equipment List Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


RT Bus SPARES 1 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


RT Bus SPARES 1 B1934 MCC 7500 VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE FRU 


RT Bus SPARES 1 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH 


          


Citrus Heights  OP_POSIT 1 B1905 MCC 7500 ASTRO 25 SOFTWARE 


Citrus Heights  OP_POSIT 4 B1933 MOTOROLA VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE 


Citrus Heights  OP_POSIT 4 CA01642AA ADD: MCC 7500 BASIC CONSOLE FUNCTIONALITY SOFTWARE LICENSE 


Citrus Heights  OP_POSIT 4 CA01643AA ADD: MCC 7500 / MCC 7100  TRUNKING OPERATION 


Citrus Heights  OP_POSIT 4 CA02073AA ADD:  MCC 7500 Enhanced Console Telephony Operation License 


Citrus Heights OP_POSIT 4 CA00140AA ADD: AC LINE CORD, NORTH AMERICAN 


Citrus Heights  OP_POSIT 1 DS019BLK 19 INCH NON-TOUCH MONITOR, BLACK 
Citrus Heights  OP_POSIT 4 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 
Citrus Heights  OP_POSIT 4 T7448 WINDOWS SUPPLEMENTAL FULL CONFIG 
Citrus Heights  SURGE 4 DSRMP615A SPD, TYPE 3, 120V RK MNT, 15A PLUG-IN W/ (6) 15A NEMA 5-15 OUTLETS 
Citrus Heights  OP_POSIT 8 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 
Citrus Heights  OP_POSIT 8 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 
Citrus Heights  OP_POSIT 8 RLN6098 HDST MODULE BASE W/PTT, 15' CBL 
Citrus Heights  OP_POSIT 8 RMN5077B SUPRAPLUS SINGLE MUFF HEADSET 
Citrus Heights  OP_POSIT 4 DSTWIN6328A ONE DUAL PEDAL FOOTSWITCH FOR USE WITH MOTOROLA MCC 7500 
Citrus Heights  OP_POSIT 4 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 
Citrus Heights  OP_POSIT 4 DDN1245 DUAL IRR SW USB HASP WITH LICENSE (VERSION 45) 
Citrus Heights  OP_POSIT 4 DDN1118 PCI EXPRESS SOUND BLASTER X-FI XTREME AUDIO 
Citrus Heights  OP_POSIT 4 CDN6673 CREATIVE LABS INSPIRE A60 
Citrus Heights  SWITCH 2 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH 
Citrus Heights  ROUTER 2 SQM01SUM0205 GGM 8000 GATEWAY 
Citrus Heights  ROUTER 2 CA01616AA ADD: AC POWER 
Citrus Heights  AUX_IO 1 F4543 SITE MANAGER BASIC 
Citrus Heights  AUX_IO 1 VA00212 SDM3000 MCC 7500 AUX IO F/W FOR A7.13 
Citrus Heights  AUX_IO 1 V266 ADD: 90VAC TO 260VAC PS TO SM 
Citrus Heights  AUX_IO 3 V592 AAD TERM BLCK & CONN WI 
Citrus Heights  GCP8000 1 T7038 GCP 8000 SITE CONTROLLER 
Citrus Heights  GCP8000 1 CA00303AA ADD: QTY (1) SITE CONTROLLER 
Citrus Heights  GCP8000 1 X153AW ADD:  RACK MOUNT HARDWARE 
Citrus Heights  GCP8000 1 CA01136AA ADD: MCC 7500 CONVEN SITE OPER 
Citrus Heights  CCGW 1 SQM01SUM0205 GGM 8000 GATEWAY 
Citrus Heights  CCGW 1 CA01616AA ADD: AC POWER 
Citrus Heights  CCGW 1 CA02086AA ADD: HIGH DENSITY ENH CONV GATEWAY 
Citrus Heights  CAM 1 BVN1013 MKM 7000 Console Alias Manager Software 
Citrus Heights  CAM 1 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 
Citrus Heights  CAM 1 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 
Citrus Heights  RACK 2 TRN7343 SEVEN AND A HALF FOOT RACK 
Citrus Heights  Surge 1 DS110110711 PDU, AC EDGE RACK MOUNT DIST PANEL, 120VAC 60A, 12-15A CIRCUIT 
Citrus Heights  Surge 15 DS37502831 BREAKER KIT AIRPAX 5AMP SNAPAC, FOR AC EDGE OR DC EDGE III  
Citrus Heights  RACK 2 DSTSJ100BT SPD, RJ-48 8 PIN, 10/100 BASE T TSJ PROTECTS/PASSES ON ALL 8 PIN 
Citrus Heights  SPARES 1 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 
Citrus Heights  SPARES 1 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Equipment List 2-5 


Citrus Heights  SPARES 1 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 
Citrus Heights  SPARES 1 B1934 MCC 7500 VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE FRU 
Citrus Heights  SPARES 1 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH 
Citrus Heights  Flash 4 T6999 ANALOG SMARTZONE 
Citrus Heights  Flash 4 G808 ENH: ASTRO DIGITAL CAI OPRN 
Citrus Heights  Flash 4 G347 ENH: SMARTZONE UPGRADE 
Citrus Heights  Flash 4 G114 ENH: DIGITAL ID DISPLAY 
Citrus Heights  Flash 4 G361 ENH: ASTRO PROJECT 25 TRUNKING SOFTWARE 


          


Sac Airport OP_POSIT 1 B1905 MCC 7500 ASTRO 25 SOFTWARE 


Sac Airport OP_POSIT 4 B1933 MOTOROLA VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE 


Sac Airport OP_POSIT 4 CA01642AA ADD: MCC 7500 BASIC CONSOLE FUNCTIONALITY SOFTWARE LICENSE 


Sac Airport OP_POSIT 4 CA01643AA ADD: MCC 7500 / MCC 7100  TRUNKING OPERATION 


Sac Airport OP_POSIT 4 CA02073AA ADD:  MCC 7500 Enhanced Console Telephony Operation License 


Sac Airport OP_POSIT 4 CA00140AA ADD: AC LINE CORD, NORTH AMERICAN 


Sac Airport OP_POSIT 1 DS019BLK 19 INCH NON-TOUCH MONITOR, BLACK 


Sac Airport OP_POSIT 4 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


Sac Airport OP_POSIT 4 T7448 WINDOWS SUPPLEMENTAL FULL CONFIG 


Sac Airport SURGE 4 DSRMP615A SPD, TYPE 3, 120V RK MNT, 15A PLUG-IN W/ (6) 15A NEMA 5-15 OUTLETS 


Sac Airport OP_POSIT 8 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 


Sac Airport OP_POSIT 8 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 


Sac Airport OP_POSIT 8 RLN6098 HDST MODULE BASE W/PTT, 15' CBL 


Sac Airport OP_POSIT 8 RMN5077B SUPRAPLUS SINGLE MUFF HEADSET 


Sac Airport OP_POSIT 4 DSTWIN6328A ONE DUAL PEDAL FOOTSWITCH FOR USE WITH MOTOROLA MC 7500  


Sac Airport OP_POSIT 4 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 


Sac Airport OP_POSIT 4 DDN1245 DUAL IRR SW USB HASP WITH LICENSE (VERSION 45) 


Sac Airport OP_POSIT 4 DDN1118 PCI EXPRESS SOUND BLASTER X-FI XTREME AUDIO 


Sac Airport OP_POSIT 4 CDN6673 CREATIVE LABS INSPIRE A60 


Sac Airport SWITCH 2 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH 


Sac Airport ROUTER 2 SQM01SUM0205 GGM 8000 GATEWAY 


Sac Airport ROUTER 2 CA01616AA ADD: AC POWER 


Sac Airport AUX_IO 1 F4543 SITE MANAGER BASIC 


Sac Airport AUX_IO 1 VA00212 SDM3000 MCC 7500 AUX IO F/W FOR A7.13 


Sac Airport AUX_IO 1 V266 ADD: 90VAC TO 260VAC PS TO SM 


Sac Airport AUX_IO 3 V592 AAD TERM BLCK & CONN WI 


Sac Airport GCP8000 1 T7038 GCP 8000 SITE CONTROLLER 


Sac Airport GCP8000 1 CA00303AA ADD: QTY (1) SITE CONTROLLER 


Sac Airport GCP8000 1 X153AW ADD:  RACK MOUNT HARDWARE 


Sac Airport GCP8000 1 CA01136AA ADD: MCC 7500 CONVEN SITE OPER 


Sac Airport CCGW 1 SQM01SUM0205 GGM 8000 GATEWAY 


Sac Airport CCGW 1 CA01616AA ADD: AC POWER 


Sac Airport CCGW 1 CA02086AA ADD: HIGH DENSITY ENH CONV GATEWAY 


Sac Airport CAM 1 BVN1013 MKM 7000 Console Alias Manager Software 


Sac Airport CAM 1 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


Sac Airport CAM 1 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 


Sac Airport RACK 1 TRN7343 SEVEN AND A HALF FOOT RACK 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


2-6 Equipment List Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


Sac Airport Surge 2 DS110110711 PDU, AC EDGE RACK MOUNT DIST PANEL, 120VAC 60A, 12-15A CIRCUIT 


Sac Airport Surge 15 DS37502831 BREAKER KIT AIRPAX 5AMP SNAPAC, FOR AC EDGE OR DC EDGE III 


Sac Airport RACK 2 DSTSJ100BT SPD, RJ-48 8 PIN, 10/100 BASE T TSJ PROTECTS/PASSES ON ALL 8 PIN 


Sac Airport RACK 4 DQ11164519 19 INCH CPU CHATSWORTH SHELF 


Sac Airport SPARES 1 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 


Sac Airport SPARES 1 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 


Sac Airport SPARES 1 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


Sac Airport SPARES 1 B1934 MCC 7500 VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE FRU 


Sac Airport SPARES 1 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH 


Sac Airport Flash 5 T6999 ANALOG SMARTZONE 


Sac Airport Flash 5 G808 ENH: ASTRO DIGITAL CAI OPRN 


Sac Airport Flash 5 G347 ENH: SMARTZONE UPGRADE 


Sac Airport Flash 5 G114 ENH: DIGITAL ID DISPLAY 


Sac Airport Flash 5 G361 ENH: ASTRO PROJECT 25 TRUNKING SOFTWARE 


          


YECA OP_POSIT 1 B1905 MCC 7500 ASTRO 25 SOFTWARE 


YECA OP_POSIT 10 B1933 MOTOROLA VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE 


YECA OP_POSIT 10 CA01642AA ADD: MCC 7500 BASIC CONSOLE FUNCTIONALITY SOFTWARE LICENSE 


YECA OP_POSIT 10 CA01643AA ADD: MCC 7500 / MCC 7100  TRUNKING OPERATION 


YECA OP_POSIT 10 CA02073AA ADD:  MCC 7500 Enhanced Console Telephony Operation License 


YECA OP_POSIT 1 DS019BLK 19 INCH NON-TOUCH MONITOR, BLACK 


YECA OP_POSIT 10 CA00140AA ADD: AC LINE CORD, NORTH AMERICAN 


YECA OP_POSIT 10 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


YECA OP_POSIT 10 T7448 WINDOWS SUPPLEMENTAL FULL CONFIG 


YECA SURGE 10 DSRMP615A SPD, TYPE 3, 120V RK MNT, 15A PLUG-IN W/ (6) 15A NEMA 5-15 OUTLETS 


YECA OP_POSIT 20 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 


YECA OP_POSIT 20 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 


YECA OP_POSIT 20 RLN6098 HDST MODULE BASE W/PTT, 15' CBL 


YECA OP_POSIT 20 RMN5077B SUPRAPLUS SINGLE MUFF HEADSET 


YECA OP_POSIT 10 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 


YECA OP_POSIT 10 DDN1245 DUAL IRR SW USB HASP WITH LICENSE (VERSION 45) 


YECA OP_POSIT 10 DDN1118 PCI EXPRESS SOUND BLASTER X-FI XTREME AUDIO 


YECA OP_POSIT 10 CDN6673 CREATIVE LABS INSPIRE A60 


YECA SWITCH 2 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH 


YECA ROUTER 2 SQM01SUM0205 GGM 8000 GATEWAY 


YECA ROUTER 2 CA01616AA ADD: AC POWER 


YECA AUX_IO 1 F4543 SITE MANAGER BASIC 


YECA AUX_IO 1 VA00212 SDM3000 MCC 7500 AUX IO F/W FOR A7.13 


YECA AUX_IO 1 V266 ADD: 90VAC TO 260VAC PS TO SM 


YECA AUX_IO 3 V592 AAD TERM BLCK & CONN WI 


YECA GCP8000 1 T7038 GCP 8000 SITE CONTROLLER 


YECA GCP8000 1 CA00303AA ADD: QTY (1) SITE CONTROLLER 


YECA GCP8000 1 X153AW ADD:  RACK MOUNT HARDWARE 


YECA GCP8000 1 CA01136AA ADD: MCC 7500 CONVEN SITE OPER 


YECA CCGW 5 SQM01SUM0205 GGM 8000 GATEWAY 


YECA CCGW 5 CA01616AA ADD: AC POWER 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Equipment List 2-7 


YECA CCGW 5 CA02086AA ADD: HIGH DENSITY ENH CONV GATEWAY 


YECA CAM 1 BVN1013 MKM 7000 Console Alias Manager Software 


YECA CAM 1 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


YECA CAM 1 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 


YECA RACK 2 TRN7343 SEVEN AND A HALF FOOT RACK 


YECA RACK 2 DS110110711 PDU, AC EDGE RACK MOUNT DIST PANEL, 120VAC 60A, 12-15A CIRCUIT 


YECA RACK 15 DS37502831 BREAKER KIT AIRPAX 5AMP SNAPAC, FOR AC EDGE OR DC EDGE III 


YECA RACK 2 DSTSJ100BT SPD, RJ-48 8 PIN, 10/100 BASE T TSJ PROTECTS/PASSES ON ALL 8 PIN 


YECA SPARES 1 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 


YECA SPARES 1 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 


YECA SPARES 1 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


YECA SPARES 1 B1934 MCC 7500 VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE FRU 


YECA SPARES 1 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH 


YECA Flash 4 T6999 ANALOG SMARTZONE 


YECA Flash 4 G808 ENH: ASTRO DIGITAL CAI OPRN 


YECA Flash 4 G347 ENH: SMARTZONE UPGRADE 


YECA Flash 4 G114 ENH: DIGITAL ID DISPLAY 


YECA Flash 4 G361 ENH: ASTRO PROJECT 25 TRUNKING SOFTWARE 


YECA Cont Stations 1 L30URS9PW1 N APX7500 SINGLE BAND 7/800 


YECA Cont Stations 1 GA00244 ADD: 7/800MHZ PRIMARY BAND 


YECA Cont Stations 1 G806 ENH: ASTRO DIGITAL CAI OP APX 


YECA Cont Stations 1 G51 ENH: SMARTZONE OPERATION APX 


YECA Cont Stations 1 G361 ADD: P25 TRUNKING SOFTWARE 


YECA Cont Stations 1 QA01749 SW KEY SUPPLEMENTAL DATA 


YECA Cont Stations 1 G996 ENH: OVER THE AIR PROVISIONING 


YECA Cont Stations 1 W947 ADD: RS232 PACKET DATA INTERFACE 


YECA Cont Stations 1 G90 ADD: NO MICROPHONE NEEDED 


YECA Cont Stations 1 CA01598 ADD: AC LINE CORD US 


YECA Cont Stations 1 L999 ADD: FULL FP W/05/KEYPAD/CLOCK/VU 


YECA Cont Stations 1 HKN6184C CABLE CH, PROGRAMMING,USB 


YECA Cont Stations 1 RVN5224M CPS R07.00.00 ASTRO DIG APX POR MOB 


YECA Cont Stations 1 HKN6233C APX CONSOLETTE RACK MOUNT KIT 


          


Galt PD OP_POSIT 1 B1905 MCC 7500 ASTRO 25 SOFTWARE 


Galt PD OP_POSIT 3 B1933 MOTOROLA VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE 


Galt PD OP_POSIT 3 CA01642AA ADD: MCC 7500 BASIC CONSOLE FUNCTIONALITY SOFTWARE LICENSE 


Galt PD OP_POSIT 3 CA01643AA ADD: MCC 7500 / MCC 7100  TRUNKING OPERATION 


Galt PD OP_POSIT 3 CA02073AA ADD:  MCC 7500 Enhanced Console Telephony Operation License 


Galt PD OP_POSIT 3 CA00140AA ADD: AC LINE CORD, NORTH AMERICAN 


Galt PD OP_POSIT 1 DS019BLK 19 INCH NON-TOUCH MONITOR, BLACK 


Galt PD OP_POSIT 3 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


Galt PD OP_POSIT 3 T7448 WINDOWS SUPPLEMENTAL FULL CONFIG 


Galt PD SURGE 3 DSRMP615A SPD, TYPE 3, 120V RK MNT, 15A PLUG-IN W/ (6) 15A NEMA 5-15 OUTLETS 


Galt PD OP_POSIT 6 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 


Galt PD OP_POSIT 6 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 


Galt PD OP_POSIT 6 RLN6098 HDST MODULE BASE W/PTT, 15' CBL 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


2-8 Equipment List Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


Galt PD OP_POSIT 6 RMN5077B SUPRAPLUS SINGLE MUFF HEADSET 


Galt PD OP_POSIT 3 DSTWIN6328A ONE DUAL PEDAL FOOTSWITCH FOR USE WITH MOTOROLA MCC7500  


Galt PD OP_POSIT 3 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 


Galt PD OP_POSIT 3 DDN1245 DUAL IRR SW USB HASP WITH LICENSE (VERSION 45) 


Galt PD OP_POSIT 3 DDN1118 PCI EXPRESS SOUND BLASTER X-FI XTREME AUDIO 


Galt PD OP_POSIT 3 CDN6673 CREATIVE LABS INSPIRE A60 


Galt PD SWITCH 2 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH 


Galt PD ROUTER 2 SQM01SUM0205 GGM 8000 GATEWAY 


Galt PD ROUTER 2 CA01616AA ADD: AC POWER 


Galt PD AUX_IO 1 F4543 SITE MANAGER BASIC 


Galt PD AUX_IO 1 VA00212 SDM3000 MCC 7500 AUX IO F/W FOR A7.13 


Galt PD AUX_IO 1 V266 ADD: 90VAC TO 260VAC PS TO SM 


Galt PD AUX_IO 3 V592 AAD TERM BLCK & CONN WI 


Galt PD GCP8000 1 T7038 GCP 8000 SITE CONTROLLER 


Galt PD GCP8000 1 CA00303AA ADD: QTY (1) SITE CONTROLLER 


Galt PD GCP8000 1 X153AW ADD:  RACK MOUNT HARDWARE 


Galt PD GCP8000 1 CA01136AA ADD: MCC 7500 CONVEN SITE OPER 


Galt PD CCGW 1 SQM01SUM0205 GGM 8000 GATEWAY 


Galt PD CCGW 1 CA01616AA ADD: AC POWER 


Galt PD CCGW 1 CA02086AA ADD: HIGH DENSITY ENH CONV GATEWAY 


Galt PD CAM 1 BVN1013 MKM 7000 Console Alias Manager Software 


Galt PD CAM 1 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


Galt PD CAM 1 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 


Galt PD RACK 1 TRN7343 SEVEN AND A HALF FOOT RACK 


Galt PD RACK 1 DS110110711 PDU, AC EDGE RACK MOUNT DIST PANEL, 120VAC 60A, 12-15A CIRCUIT 


Galt PD RACK 15 DS37502831 BREAKER KIT AIRPAX 5AMP SNAPAC, FOR AC EDGE OR DC EDGE III 


Galt PD RACK 2 DSTSJ100BT SPD, RJ-48 8 PIN, 10/100 BASE T TSJ PROTECTS/PASSES ON ALL 8 PIN 


Galt PD SPARES 1 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 


Galt PD SPARES 1 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 


Galt PD SPARES 1 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


Galt PD SPARES 1 B1934 MCC 7500 VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE FRU 


Galt PD SPARES 1 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH 


Galt PD Flash 4 T6999 ANALOG SMARTZONE 


Galt PD Flash 4 G808 ENH: ASTRO DIGITAL CAI OPRN 


Galt PD Flash 4 G347 ENH: SMARTZONE UPGRADE 


Galt PD Flash 4 G114 ENH: DIGITAL ID DISPLAY 


Galt PD Flash 4 G361 ENH: ASTRO PROJECT 25 TRUNKING SOFTWARE 


          


Elk Grove PD OP_POSIT 1 B1905 MCC 7500 ASTRO 25 SOFTWARE 


Elk Grove PD OP_POSIT 6 B1933 MOTOROLA VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE 


Elk Grove PD OP_POSIT 6 CA01642AA ADD: MCC 7500 BASIC CONSOLE FUNCTIONALITY SOFTWARE LICENSE 


Elk Grove PD OP_POSIT 6 CA01643AA ADD: MCC 7500 / MCC 7100  TRUNKING OPERATION 


Elk Grove PD OP_POSIT 6 CA02073AA ADD:  MCC 7500 Enhanced Console Telephony Operation License 


Elk Grove PD OP_POSIT 6 CA00140AA ADD: AC LINE CORD, NORTH AMERICAN 


Elk Grove PD OP_POSIT 1 DS019BLK 19 INCH NON-TOUCH MONITOR, BLACK 


Elk Grove PD OP_POSIT 6 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Equipment List 2-9 


Elk Grove PD OP_POSIT 6 T7448 WINDOWS SUPPLEMENTAL FULL CONFIG 


Elk Grove PD SURGE 6 DSRMP615A SPD, TYPE 3, 120V RK MNT, 15A PLUG-IN W/ (6) 15A NEMA 5-15 OUTLETS 


Elk Grove PD OP_POSIT 12 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 


Elk Grove PD OP_POSIT 12 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 


Elk Grove PD OP_POSIT 12 RLN6098 HDST MODULE BASE W/PTT, 15' CBL 


Elk Grove PD OP_POSIT 12 RMN5077B SUPRAPLUS SINGLE MUFF HEADSET 


Elk Grove PD OP_POSIT 6 DSTWIN6328A  ONE DUAL PEDAL FOOTSWITCH FOR USE WITH MOTOROLA MCC7500 


Elk Grove PD OP_POSIT 6 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 


Elk Grove PD OP_POSIT 6 DDN1245 DUAL IRR SW USB HASP WITH LICENSE (VERSION 45) 


Elk Grove PD OP_POSIT 6 DDN1118 PCI EXPRESS SOUND BLASTER X-FI XTREME AUDIO 


Elk Grove PD OP_POSIT 6 CDN6673 CREATIVE LABS INSPIRE A60 


Elk Grove PD SWITCH 2 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH 


Elk Grove PD ROUTER 2 SQM01SUM0205 GGM 8000 GATEWAY 


Elk Grove PD ROUTER 2 CA01616AA ADD: AC POWER 


Elk Grove PD AUX_IO 1 F4543 SITE MANAGER BASIC 


Elk Grove PD AUX_IO 1 VA00212 SDM3000 MCC 7500 AUX IO F/W FOR A7.13 


Elk Grove PD AUX_IO 1 V266 ADD: 90VAC TO 260VAC PS TO SM 


Elk Grove PD AUX_IO 3 V592 AAD TERM BLCK & CONN WI 


Elk Grove PD GCP8000 1 T7038 GCP 8000 SITE CONTROLLER 


Elk Grove PD GCP8000 1 CA00303AA ADD: QTY (1) SITE CONTROLLER 


Elk Grove PD GCP8000 1 X153AW ADD:  RACK MOUNT HARDWARE 


Elk Grove PD GCP8000 1 CA01136AA ADD: MCC 7500 CONVEN SITE OPER 


Elk Grove PD CCGW 1 SQM01SUM0205 GGM 8000 GATEWAY 


Elk Grove PD CCGW 1 CA01616AA ADD: AC POWER 


Elk Grove PD CCGW 1 CA02086AA ADD: HIGH DENSITY ENH CONV GATEWAY 


Elk Grove PD CAM 1 BVN1013 MKM 7000 Console Alias Manager Software 


Elk Grove PD CAM 1 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


Elk Grove PD CAM 1 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 


Elk Grove PD RACK 1 TRN7343 SEVEN AND A HALF FOOT RACK 


Elk Grove PD RACK 1 DS110110711 PDU, AC EDGE RACK MOUNT DIST PANEL, 120VAC 60A, 12-15A CIRCUIT 


Elk Grove PD RACK 15 DS37502831 BREAKER KIT AIRPAX 5AMP SNAPAC, FOR AC EDGE OR DC EDGE III 


Elk Grove PD RACK 2 DSTSJ100BT SPD, RJ-48 8 PIN, 10/100 BASE T TSJ PROTECTS/PASSES ON ALL 8 PIN 


Elk Grove PD SPARES 1 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 


Elk Grove PD SPARES 1 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 


Elk Grove PD SPARES 1 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


Elk Grove PD SPARES 1 B1934 MCC 7500 VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE FRU 


Elk Grove PD SPARES 1 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH 


Elk Grove PD Flash 6 T6999 ANALOG SMARTZONE 


Elk Grove PD Flash 6 G808 ENH: ASTRO DIGITAL CAI OPRN 


Elk Grove PD Flash 6 G347 ENH: SMARTZONE UPGRADE 


Elk Grove PD Flash 6 G114 ENH: DIGITAL ID DISPLAY 


Elk Grove PD Flash 6 G361 ENH: ASTRO PROJECT 25 TRUNKING SOFTWARE 


          


RT Light Rail OP_POSIT 1 B1905 MCC 7500 ASTRO 25 SOFTWARE 


RT Light Rail OP_POSIT 2 B1933 MOTOROLA VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE 


RT Light Rail OP_POSIT 2 CA01642AA ADD: MCC 7500 BASIC CONSOLE FUNCTIONALITY SOFTWARE LICENSE 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


2-10 Equipment List Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


RT Light Rail OP_POSIT 2 CA01643AA ADD: MCC 7500 / MCC 7100  TRUNKING OPERATION 


RT Light Rail OP_POSIT 2 CA02073AA ADD:  MCC 7500 Enhanced Console Telephony Operation License 


RT Light Rail OP_POSIT 2 CA00140AA ADD: AC LINE CORD, NORTH AMERICAN 


RT Light Rail OP_POSIT 2 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


RT Light Rail OP_POSIT 2 T7448 WINDOWS SUPPLEMENTAL FULL CONFIG 


RT Light Rail SURGE 2 DSRMP615A SPD, TYPE 3, 120V RK MNT, 15A PLUG-IN W/ (6) 15A NEMA 5-15 OUTLETS 


RT Light Rail OP_POSIT 4 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 


RT Light Rail OP_POSIT 2 B1914 MCC SERIES DESKTOP GOOSENECK MICROPHONE 


RT Light Rail OP_POSIT 4 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 


RT Light Rail OP_POSIT 2 DSTWIN6328A ONE DUAL PEDAL FOOTSWITCH FOR USE WITH MOTOROLA MCC7500 


RT Light Rail OP_POSIT 2 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 


RT Light Rail OP_POSIT 2 DDN1245 DUAL IRR SW USB HASP WITH LICENSE (VERSION 45) 


RT Light Rail OP_POSIT 2 DQSBAUDIGYRX SOUND BLASTER AUDIGY RX SOUND CARD 


RT Light Rail OP_POSIT 2 CDN6673 CREATIVE LABS INSPIRE A60 


RT Light Rail SWITCH 2 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH ? 


RT Light Rail ROUTER 2 SQM01SUM0205 GGM 8000 GATEWAY 


RT Light Rail ROUTER 2 CA01616AA ADD: AC POWER 


RT Light Rail CCGW 2 SQM01SUM0205 GGM 8000 GATEWAY 


RT Light Rail CCGW 2 CA01616AA ADD: AC POWER 


RT Light Rail CCGW 2 CA02086AA ADD: HIGH DENSITY ENH CONV GATEWAY 


RT Light Rail AUX_IO 1 F4543 SITE MANAGER BASIC 


RT Light Rail AUX_IO 1 VA00212 SDM3000 MCC 7500 AUX IO F/W FOR A7.13 


RT Light Rail AUX_IO 1 V266 ADD: 90VAC TO 260VAC PS TO SM 


RT Light Rail AUX_IO 3 V592 AAD TERM BLCK & CONN WI 


RT Light Rail RACK 1 TRN7343 SEVEN AND A HALF FOOT RACK 


RT Light Rail RACK 2 DSTSJ100BT SPD, RJ-48 8 PIN, 10/100 BASE T TSJ PROTECTS/PASSES ON ALL 8 PIN 


RT Light Rail MKM 1 BVN1013 MKM 7000 Console Alias Manager Software 


RT Light Rail MKM 1 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


RT Light Rail MKM 1 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 


RT Light Rail MKM 1 DS019BLK 19 INCH NON-TOUCH MONITOR, BLACK 


RT Light Rail SPARES 1 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 


RT Light Rail SPARES 1 B1914 MCC SERIES DESKTOP GOOSENECK MICROPHONE 


RT Light Rail SPARES 1 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 


RT Light Rail SPARES 1 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


RT Light Rail SPARES 1 B1934 MCC 7500 VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE FRU 


RT Light Rail SPARES 1 CLN1856 2620-24 ETHERNET SWITCH ? 


RT Light Rail SPARES 1 SQM01SUM0205 GGM 8000 GATEWAY 


RT Light Rail SPARES 1 CA01616AA ADD: AC POWER 


RT Light Rail Cont Stations 12 L30URS9PW1 N APX7500 SINGLE BAND 7/800 


RT Light Rail Cont Stations 12 GA00244 ADD: 7/800MHZ PRIMARY BAND 


RT Light Rail Cont Stations 12 G806 ENH: ASTRO DIGITAL CAI OP APX 


RT Light Rail Cont Stations 12 G51 ENH: SMARTZONE OPERATION APX 


RT Light Rail Cont Stations 12 G361 ADD: P25 TRUNKING SOFTWARE 


RT Light Rail Cont Stations 12 QA01749 SW KEY SUPPLEMENTAL DATA 


RT Light Rail Cont Stations 12 G996 ENH: OVER THE AIR PROVISIONING 


RT Light Rail Cont Stations 12 W947 ADD: RS232 PACKET DATA INTERFACE 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Equipment List 2-11 


RT Light Rail Cont Stations 12 G90 ADD: NO MICROPHONE NEEDED 


RT Light Rail Cont Stations 12 CA01598 ADD: AC LINE CORD US 


RT Light Rail Cont Stations 12 L999 ADD: FULL FP W/05/KEYPAD/CLOCK/VU 


RT Light Rail Cont Stations 12 HKN6184C CABLE CH, PROGRAMMING,USB 


RT Light Rail Cont Stations 1 RVN5224M CPS R07.00.00 ASTRO DIG APX POR MOB 


RT Light Rail Cont Stations 12 HKN6233C APX CONSOLETTE RACK MOUNT KIT 


RT Light Rail Cont Stations 1 TRN7343 SEVEN AND A HALF FOOT RACK 


RT Light Rail Cont Stations 1 DS4383G01A12 CONTROL STATION COMBINER, STANDARD, 746-869 MHZ, 12 CHANNEL 


RT Light Rail Cont Stations 1 DS2689A10A DUPLEXER,TX 806-824MHZ, RX 851-869MHZ USED W/ CNTRL STN COMB 


RT Light Rail   2 DS110110711 PDU, AC EDGE RACK MOUNT DIST PANEL, 120VAC 60A, 12-15A CIRCUIT 


RT Light Rail   22 DS37502831 BREAKER KIT AIRPAX 5AMP SNAPAC, FOR AC EDGE OR DC EDGE III 


RT Light Rail         


RT Light Rail ANTENNA 1 NPI_000224 DEFAULT ANTENNA 


RT Light Rail UPPERJUMPR 15 L1705 LDF4-50A CABLE: 1/2" LDF HELIAX  POLY JKT PER FOOT 


RT Light Rail UPPERJUMPR 2 DDN1090 L4TDM-PSA 7-16 DIN MALE PS FOR 1/2 IN  CABLE 


RT Light Rail UPPERJUMPR 2 TDN9289 221213 CABLE WRAP WEATHERPROOFING 


RT Light Rail MAINLINE 100 L3617 7/8IN HELIAX VIRTUAL AIR FOAM FILLED CABLE (AVA5-50FX)/FOOT 


RT Light Rail MAINLINE 2 DDN1077 7-16IN DIN FEMALE CONNECTOR EZ-FIT FOR 7/8IN CABLE 


RT Light Rail MAINLINE 4 DSSG7806B2A SG78-06B2A GROUNDING KIT FOR 7/8 IN COAXIAL CABLE 


RT Light Rail MAINLINE 1 DSL5SGRIP L5SGRIP 7/8" SUPPORT HOIST GRIP 


RT Light Rail ANTACC 4 MDN6817 42396A-5 7/8" CABLE HANGER  STAINLESS, 10 PK 


RT Light Rail SURGE 1 DSTSXDFMBF RF SPD, 698-2700MHZ DC BLOCK HIGH POWER, DIN FEMALE/MALE BIDIR 


RT Light Rail SURGE 1 DSGSAKITD GROUND STRAP KIT - DIN 


RT Light Rail LOWERJUMPR 25 L1705 LDF4-50A CABLE: 1/2" LDF HELIAX  POLY JKT PER FOOT 


RT Light Rail LOWERJUMPR 1 DDN1088 L4TNM-PSA TYPE N MALE PS FOR 1/2 IN CABLE 


RT Light Rail LOWERJUMPR 1 DDN1090 L4TDM-PSA 7-16 DIN MALE PS FOR 1/2 IN  CABLE 


          


Regional Fire OP_POSIT 1 B1905 MCC 7500 ASTRO 25 SOFTWARE 


Regional Fire OP_POSIT 8 B1933 MOTOROLA VOICE PROCESSOR MODULE 


Regional Fire OP_POSIT 8 CA01642AA ADD: MCC 7500 BASIC CONSOLE FUNCTIONALITY SOFTWARE LICENSE 


Regional Fire OP_POSIT 8 CA01643AA ADD: MCC 7500 / MCC 7100  TRUNKING OPERATION 


Regional Fire OP_POSIT 8 CA02073AA ADD:  MCC 7500 Enhanced Console Telephony Operation License 


Regional Fire OP_POSIT 8 CA00140AA ADD: AC LINE CORD, NORTH AMERICAN 


Regional Fire OP_POSIT 8 TT2538 Z420 LOW TIER WORKSTATION WINDOWS 7 


Regional Fire OP_POSIT 8 T7448 WINDOWS SUPPLEMENTAL FULL CONFIG 


Regional Fire OP_POSIT 16 B1912 MCC SERIES DESKTOP SPEAKER 


Regional Fire OP_POSIT 16 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 


Regional Fire OP_POSIT 16 RLN6098 HDST MODULE BASE W/PTT, 15' CBL 


Regional Fire OP_POSIT 16 RMN5077B SUPRAPLUS SINGLE MUFF HEADSET 


Regional Fire OP_POSIT 8 DSTWIN6328A ONE DUAL PEDAL FOOTSWITCH FOR USE WITH MOTOROLA MCC 7500 


Regional Fire OP_POSIT 8 T7885 MCAFEE WINDOWS AV CLIENT 


Regional Fire OP_POSIT 8 DDN1245 DUAL IRR SW USB HASP WITH LICENSE (VERSION 45) 


Regional Fire OP_POSIT 8 DQSBAUDIGYRX SOUND BLASTER AUDIGY RX SOUND CARD 


Regional Fire OP_POSIT 8 CDN6673 CREATIVE LABS INSPIRE A60 


 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Statement of Work 3-1 


SECTION 3 


STATEMENT OF WORK 
3.1 OVERVIEW 


This Statement of Work (SOW) describes the deliverables to be furnished to the SRRCS The tasks 
described herein will be performed by Motorola, its subcontractors, and SRRCS to implement the 
solution described in the System Description. It describes the actual work involved in installation, 
identifies the installation standards to be followed, and clarifies the responsibilities for both Motorola 
and Customer during the project implementation. Specifically, this SOW provides: 


 A summary of the phases and tasks to be completed within the project lifecycle. 
 A list of the deliverables associated with the project. 
 A description of the responsibilities for both Motorola and Customer. 
 The qualifications and assumptions taken into consideration during the development of this 


project. 


This SOW provides the most current understanding of the work required by both parties to ensure a 
successful project implementation. In particular, Motorola has made assumptions of the sites to be 
used for the new system. Should any of the sites change, a revision to the SOW and associated pricing 
will be required. It is understood that this SOW is a working document, and that it will be revised as 
needed to incorporate any changes associated with contract negotiations, Contract Design Review 
(CDR), and any other change orders that may occur during the execution of the project. 


The scope of this project is to replace the existing Gold Elite Consoles at Citrus Heights Police, Elk 
Grove Police, Folsom Police, Galt Police, Sacramento Airport, Sacramento Police, Sacramento 
Regional Fire, Sacramento Regional Transit Bus Dispatch, Sacramento Regional Transit Light Rail 
Dispatch, and Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA).  Folsom Police will have an 
additional two operator positions added for a total of six and Regional Fire will utilize the back room 
equipment already proposed to Regional Fire as part of a new four position MCC7500 console.  
YECA will have all ten positions replaced; both the existing six associated with Yolo County, its 
agencies, and other cities other than West Sacramento; as well as the four positions associated with 
West Sacramento.  


3.2 ASSUMPTIONS 
Motorola has based the system design on information provided by the SRRCS and an analysis of their 
system requirements. All assumptions have been listed below for review. Should Motorola’s 
assumptions be deemed incorrect or not agreeable to the SRRCS, a revised proposal with the 
necessary changes and adjusted costs may be required. Changes to the equipment or scope of the 
project after contract may require a change order 


 All work is to be performed during normal work hours, Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 
p.m. 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


3-2 Statement of Work Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


3.3 CONTRACT 


3.3.1 Contract Award (Milestone) 
 The Customer and Motorola execute the contract and both parties receive all the necessary 


documentation. 


3.3.2 Contract Administration 
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Assign a Project Manager, as the single point of contact with authority to make project decisions. 
 Assign resources necessary for project implementation. 
 Set up the project in the Motorola information system. 
 Schedule the project kickoff meeting with the Customer. 


Customer Responsibilities: 


 Assign a Project Manager, as the single point of contact responsible for Customer-signed 
approvals. 


 Assign other resources necessary to ensure completion of project tasks for which the Customer is 
responsible. 


Completion Criteria: 


 Motorola internal processes are set up for project management. 
 Both Motorola and the Customer assign all required resources. 
 Project kickoff meeting is scheduled. 


3.3.3 Project Kickoff 
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Conduct a project kickoff meeting during the CDR phase of the project. 
 Ensure key project team participants attend the meeting. 
 Introduce all project participants attending the meeting. 
 Review the roles of the project participants to identify communication flows and decision-making 


authority between project participants. 
 Review the overall project scope and objectives with the Customer. 
 Review the resource and scheduling requirements with the Customer. 
 Review the Project Schedule with the Customer to address upcoming milestones and/or events. 
 Review the teams’ interactions (Motorola and the Customer), meetings, reports, milestone 


acceptance, and the Customer’s participation in particular phases. 


Customer Responsibilities: 


 The Customer’s key project team participants attend the meeting. 
 Review Motorola and Customer responsibilities. 


Completion Criteria: 


 Project kickoff meeting completed. 
 Meeting notes identify the next action items. 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Statement of Work 3-3 


3.4 CONTRACT DESIGN REVIEW 


3.4.1 Review Contract Design 
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Meet with the Customer project team. 
 Review the operational requirements and the impact of those requirements on various equipment 


configurations. 
 Establish a defined baseline for the system design and identify any special product requirements 


and their impact on system implementation. 
 Review the System Design, Statement of Work, Project Schedule, and Acceptance Test Plans, 


and update the contract documents accordingly. 
 Discuss the proposed Cutover Plan and methods to document a detailed procedure. 
 Submit design documents to the Customer for approval. These documents form the basis of the 


system, which Motorola will manufacture, assemble, stage, and install. 
 Prepare equipment layout plans for staging. 
 Provide minimum acceptable performance specifications for microwave, fiber, or copper links 
 Establish demarcation points to define the connection points between the Motorola-supplied 


equipment and the Customer-supplied link(s) and external interfaces.   
 Finalize site acquisition and development plan. 


 Conduct (updated) site evaluations to capture site details of the system design and to 
determine site readiness. 


 Determine each site’s ability to accommodate proposed equipment based upon physical 
capacity. 


 If applicable, test existing equipment with which Motorola equipment will interface. 
 Prepare Site Evaluation Report that summarizes findings of above-described site evaluations. 


Customer Responsibilities: 


 The Customer’s key project team participants attend the meeting. 
 Make timely decisions, according to the Project Schedule. 


Completion Criteria: 


 Complete Design Documentation, which may include updated System Description, Equipment 
List, system drawings, or other documents applicable to the project. 


 Incorporate any deviations from the proposed system into the contract documents accordingly. 
 The system design is “frozen” in preparation for subsequent project phases such as Order 


Processing and Manufacturing. 
 A Change Order is executed in accordance with all material changes resulting from the Design 


Review to the contract. 


3.4.2 Design Approval (Milestone) 
 The Customer executes a Design Approval milestone document. 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


3-4 Statement of Work Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


3.5 ORDER PROCESSING 


3.5.1 Process Equipment List 
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Validate Equipment List by checking for valid model numbers, versions, compatible options to 
main equipment, and delivery data. 


 Enter order into Motorola’s Customer Order Fulfillment (COF) system. 
 Create Ship Views, to confirm with the Customer the secure storage location(s) to which the 


equipment will ship. Ship Views are the mailing labels that carry complete equipment shipping 
information, which direct the timing, method of shipment, and ship path for ultimate destination 
receipt. 


 Create equipment orders. 
 Reconcile the equipment list(s) to the Contract. 
 Procure third-party equipment if applicable. 


Customer Responsibilities: 


 Approve shipping location(s). 


Completion Criteria: 


 Verify that the Equipment List contains the correct model numbers, version, options, and delivery 
data. 


 Trial validation completed. 
 Bridge the equipment order to the manufacturing facility. 


3.6 MANUFACTURING AND STAGING 


3.6.1 Manufacture Equipment 
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Manufacture the equipment necessary for the system based on equipment order. 


Customer Responsibilities: 


 None. 


Completion Criteria: 


 Equipment shipped to either the field or the staging facility. 


3.6.2 Ship to Staging (Milestone) 
 Ship all equipment needed for staging to Motorola’s factory staging facility in Schaumburg, 


Illinois [Customer Center for Solutions Integration (CCSi)]. 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Statement of Work 3-5 


3.6.3 Stage System 
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Set up and rack the system equipment on a site-by-site basis, as it will be configured in the field 
at each of the transmitter/receiver sites. 


 Cut and label cables according to the approved CDR documentation. 
 Label the cables with to/from information to specify interconnection for field installation and 


future servicing needs. 
 Complete the cabling/connecting of the subsystems to each other (“connectorization” of the 


subsystems). 
 Assemble required subsystems to assure system functionality. 
 Power up, program, and test all staged equipment. 
 Confirm system configuration and software compatibility to the existing system. 
 Load application parameters on all equipment according to input from Systems Engineering. 
 Complete programming of the consoles. 
 Inventory the equipment with serial numbers and installation references. 
 Complete system documentation. 
 Provide a Factory Acceptance Test Plan. 


Customer Responsibilities: 


 Provide information on existing system interfaces as may be required. 
 Provide information on room layouts or other information necessary for the assembly to meet 


field conditions. 
 Review and approve proposed Factory Acceptance Test Plan. 


Completion Criteria: 


 System staging completed and ready for testing. 


3.6.4 Perform Staging Acceptance Test Procedures 
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Test and validate system software and features. 
 Functional testing of standard system features. 
 Conduct site and system level testing. 
 Power-up site equipment and perform standardized functionality tests. 
 Perform system burn-in 24 hours a day during staging to isolate and capture any defects. 
 Perform Customer-witnessed tests based upon Factory Acceptance Test Plan.  


Customer Responsibilities: 


 Attend Factory Acceptance Testing.  
 Pay for travel, lodging, meals, and all incidental expenses for Customer personnel and 


representatives to witness the Factory Acceptance Testing.  Completion Criteria: 
 Approve Factory Acceptance Testing. 


3.6.5 Ship Equipment to Field 
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Pack system for shipment to final destination. 
 Arrange for shipment to the field. 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


3-6 Statement of Work Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


Customer Responsibilities: 


 None. 


Completion Criteria: 


 Equipment ready for shipment to the field. 


3.6.6 CCSi Ship Acceptance (Milestone) 
 All equipment shipped to the field. 


3.6.7 Develop Templates 
Motorola Responsibilities:.  


 Motorola participates in a meeting to finalize any changes among user groups. 
 Program the approved templates into a radio-programming template tool. 
 Program sample radios with approved templates and deliver for the Customer evaluation. 


Customer Responsibilities: 


 User groups create templates in a spreadsheet format. 
 Forward electronic copies of the spreadsheets to the committee members for their review and 


comment. 
 Evaluate sample radios and provide feedback. 
 Approve templates. 


Completion Criteria: 


 Templates completed and approved by the Customer. 


3.7 CIVIL WORK FOR THE CUSTOMER-PROVIDED  
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Provide electrical requirements for each equipment rack to be installed in the Customer-provided 
facilities. 


 Provide heat load for each equipment rack to be installed in the Customer-provided facilities. 
 


Customer Responsibilities: 


 If applicable and based on local jurisdictional authority, the Customer will be responsible for any 
installation or upgrades of the Critical Operation Power Systems in order to comply with  NFPA 
70, Article 708. 


 Secure Telco connections if needed. 
 Provide clear and stable access to the sites for transporting electronics and other materials. 


Sufficient site access must be available for trucks to deliver materials under their own power and 
for personnel to move materials to the facility without assistance from special equipment. 


 Supply adequately sized electrical service, backup power (UPS, generator, batteries, etc.) 
including the installation of conduit, circuit breakers, outlets, etc., at each equipment location.  


 Provide AC power  to the demarcation point(s).  Depending on the Dispatch Center, power will 
either be provided by the customer with outlets within 10 cable feet of the middle of the rack or 
provided by the customer with a 4 conductor cable (two 120VAC circuits with common neutral 
and common ground rated at 60 amps) terminating at the middle of the rack. 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Statement of Work 3-7 


 Provide adequate HVAC, grounding, lighting, cable routing, and surge protection (also, among 
existing and Motorola-provided equipment) based upon Motorola’s Standards and Guidelines for 
Communication Sites (R56). Ceiling (minimum 9 feet) and cable tray heights (minimum 8 feet) 
in the equipment rooms in order to accommodate 7-foot, 6-inch equipment racks. 


 Provide floor space and desk space for the System equipment at the Customer-provided facilities. 
Each rack shall be provided a minimum of 24-inch x 24-inch footprint with 36-inch clearance in 
the front and back. 


 Relocate existing equipment, if needed, to provide required space for the installation of Motorola-
supplied equipment. 


 Bring grounding system up to Motorola’s R56 standards and supply a single point system ground, 
of 5 ohms or less, to be used on all FNE supplied under the Contract. Supply grounding tie point 
within 10 feet from the Motorola-supplied equipment. 


 Provide all necessary wall or roof penetrations on existing buildings for antenna for the new 
control station (RT Light Rail Dispatch only). 


 Provide obstruction-free area for the cable run between the demarcation point and the 
communications equipment. 


 Resolve any environmental issues including, but not limited to, asbestos, structural integrity 
(rooftop, water tank, tower, etc.) of the site, and any other building risks. (Resolve environmental 
or hazardous material issues). 


 Provide mounting structure (e.g. pipe) for control station antenna (RT Light Rail Dispatch only). 
 Supply all permits as contractually required. 
 Supply interior building cable trays, raceways, conduits, and wire supports. 
 Supply engineering and drafting as required for modifications to existing building drawings for 


site construction. 
 Pay for usage costs of power and generator fueling, both during the construction and installation 


effort, and on an ongoing basis. 
 Complete all customer deliverables in accordance within the approved project schedule. 


Completion Criteria: 


 All sites are ready for equipment installations in compliance with Motorola’s R56 standards. 


3.8 SYSTEM INSTALLATION 


3.8.1 Console Installation  
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Install the console in the space provided by the Customers. 
 Connect the Customer-supplied, previously-identified circuits into the console, to a demarcation 


point located within 25 feet of the console interface. 
 Terminate the audio outputs for the logged talkgroups onto a punchblock, and then terminate 


these outputs into the logging recorder. 
 Install a dedicated Local Area Network (LAN) at each dispatch center to connect the proposed 


console positions.  
 Connect the appropriate equipment to the Customer-supplied ground system in accordance with 


Motorola’s R56 Site Installation standards.  
 Perform the console programming, based on the console . 
 For consoles not located at the master site, additional network link resources will be required. 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


3-8 Statement of Work Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


Customer Responsibilities: 


 Provide demarcation point located within 25 feet of the console interface. 


Completion Criteria: 


 Console installation is complete. 


3.8.2 Console Installation Complete  
 Console installation completed and accepted by the Customer. 


3.8.3 System Installation Acceptance (Milestone) 
 All equipment installations are completed and accepted by the Customer. 


3.9 SYSTEM OPTIMIZATION 


3.9.1 Optimize System FNE 
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Motorola and its subcontractors optimize each subsystem. 
 Verify that all equipment is operating properly and that all electrical and signal levels are set 


accurately. 
 Verify that all audio and data levels are at factory settings. 
 Check audio and data levels to verify factory settings. 
 Verify communication interfaces between devices for proper operation. 
 Test features and functionality are in accordance with manufacturers’ specifications and that they 


comply with the final configuration established during the CDR/system staging. 
 Set up the consoles on the radio system to perform the dispatching operation. 


Customer Responsibilities: 


 Provide access/escort to the sites. 
 Provide required radio ID and alias information to enable alias database setup for interface to 


console.  


Completion Criteria: 


 System optimization is complete. 


3.9.2 Link Verification 
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Perform test to verify site link performance, prior to the interconnection of the Motorola-supplied 
equipment to the link equipment. 
 


 
 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Statement of Work 3-9 


Customer Responsibilities: 


 Make available the required links which meet the specifications supplied by Motorola at the 
CDR. 


3.9.3 Completion Criteria: 
 Link verification successfully completed. 


3.9.4 Optimization Complete 
 System optimization is completed. Motorola and the Customer agree that the equipment is ready 


for acceptance testing. 


3.10 TRAINING 
 Training is not included. 


3.11 AUDIT AND ACCEPTANCE TESTING 


3.11.1 Perform R56 Installation Audit 
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Perform R56 site-installation quality audits, verifying proper physical installation and operational 
configurations. 


 Create site evaluation report to verify site meets or exceeds requirements, as defined in 
Motorola’s Standards and Guidelines for Communication Sites (R56). 


Customer Responsibilities: 


 Provide access/escort to the sites. 
 Witness tests if desired. 


Completion Criteria: 


 All R56 audits completed successfully. 


3.11.2 Perform Equipment Testing 
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Test individual components of the system to verify compliance to the equipment specifications. 
 Repeat any failed test(s) once Motorola (or the Customer) has completed the corrective action(s). 
 Prepare documentation of component tests to be delivered as part of the final documentation 


package. 


Customer Responsibilities: 


 Witness tests if desired. 


Completion Criteria: 


 Successful completion of equipment testing. 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


3-10 Statement of Work Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


3.11.3 Perform Functional Testing 
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Verify the operational functionality and features of the individual subsystems and the system 
supplied by Motorola, as contracted. 


 If any major task as contractually described fails, repeat that particular task after Motorola 
determines that corrective action has been taken. 


 Document all issues that arise during the acceptance tests. 
 Document the results of the acceptance tests and present to the Customer for review. 
 Resolve any minor task failures before Final System Acceptance. 


Customer Responsibilities: 


 Witness the functional testing. 


Completion Criteria: 


 Successful completion of the functional testing. 
 Customer approval of the functional testing. 


3.11.4 System Acceptance Test Procedures (Milestone) 
 Customer approves the completion of all the required tests. 


3.12 FINALIZE 


3.12.1 Cutover 
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Motorola and the Customer develop  mutually agreed upon cutover plans based upon discussions 
held during the CDR. 


 During cutover, follow the written plan and implement the defined contingencies, as required. 
 Conduct cutover meeting(s) with user group representatives to address both how to mitigate 


technical and communication problem impact to the users during cutover and during the general 
operation of the system. 


Customer Responsibilities: 


 Attend cutover meetings and approve the cutover plan. 
 Notify the user group(s) affected by the cutover (date and time). 
 Conduct a roll call of all users working during the cutover, in an organized and methodical 


manner. 


Completion Criteria: 


 Successful migration from the old console to the new console. 
 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Statement of Work 3-11 


3.12.2 Resolve Punchlist 
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Work with the Customer to resolve punchlist items, documented during the Acceptance Testing 
phase, in order to meet all the criteria for final system acceptance. 


Customer Responsibilities: 


 Assist Motorola with resolution of identified punchlist items by providing support, such as access 
to the sites, equipment and system, and approval of the resolved punchlist item(s). 


Completion Criteria: 


 All punchlist items resolved and approved by the Customer. 


3.12.3 Transition to Service/Project Transition Certificate 
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Review the items necessary for transitioning the project to warranty support and service. 
 Provide a Customer Support Plan detailing the warranty and post-warranty support, if applicable, 


associated with the Contract equipment. 


Customer Responsibilities: 


 Participate in the Transition Service/Project Transition Certificate (PTC) process. 
 


Completion Criteria: 


 All service information has been delivered and approved by the Customer. 


3.12.4 Finalize Documentation  
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Provide an electronic as-built system manual on a Compact Disc (CD). The documentation will 
include the following: 
 System-Level Diagram 
 Site Block Diagrams 
 Site Floor Plans 
 Site Equipment Rack Configurations 
 ATP Test Checklists 
 Functional Acceptance Test Plan Test Sheets and Results 
 Equipment Inventory List 
 Console Programming Template  


Drawings are created utilizing AutoCAD design software and will be delivered in Adobe PDF 
format. All other system manual documents converted from native format to Adobe PDF format 
to be included on the System Manual CD. 


Customer Responsibilities: 


 Receive and approve all documentation provided by Motorola. 


Completion Criteria: 


 All required documentation is provided and approved by the Customer. 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


3-12 Statement of Work Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


3.12.5 Final Acceptance (Milestone) 
 All deliverables completed, as contractually required. 
 Final System Acceptance received from the Customer. 


3.13 PROJECT ADMINISTRATION 


3.13.1 Project Status Meetings 
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 The Motorola Project Manager, or designee, will attend all project status meetings with the 
Customers, as determined during the CDR.  Record the meeting minutes and supply the report. 


 The agenda will include the following: 
 Overall project status compared to the Project Schedule. 
 Product or service related issues that may affect the Project Schedule. 
 Status of the action items and the responsibilities associated with them, in accordance with 


the Project Schedule. 
 Any miscellaneous concerns of either the Customer or Motorola. 


Customer Responsibilities: 


 Attend meetings. 
 Respond to issues in a timely manner. 


Completion Criteria: 


 Completion of the meetings and submission of meeting minutes. 


3.13.2 Progress Milestone Submittal 
Motorola Responsibilities: 


 Submit progress (non-payment) milestone completion certificate/documentation. 


Customer Responsibilities: 


 Approve milestone, which will signify confirmation of completion of the work associated with 
the scheduled task. 


Completion Criteria: 


 The Customer approval of the Milestone Completion document(s). 


3.13.3 Change Order Process 
 Either Party may request changes within the general scope of this Agreement. If a requested 


change causes an increase or decrease in the cost, change in system configuration  or adds time to 
the project’s timeline required to perform this Agreement, the Parties will agree to an equitable 
adjustment of the Contract Price, Performance Schedule, or both, and will reflect the adjustment 
in a change order. Neither Party is obligated to perform requested changes unless both Parties 
execute a written change order.







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Project Schedule 4-1 


SECTION 4 


PROJECT SCHEDULE 







SRRCS MCC7500 CA-14Q134A - Project Gantt


SRRCS MCC7500 CA-14Q134A Duration Task Start Task Finish 2014 2015


Aug Oct Dec Feb Apr JunDays


Implementation Project 196 8/26/2014 6/5/2015


Contract 8 8/26/2014 9/5/2014


Contract Award 0 8/26/2014 8/26/2014


Contract Administration 5 8/28/2014 9/4/2014


Project Kick-Off 1 9/5/2014 9/5/2014


Contract Design Review 22 9/8/2014 10/7/2014


Review Contract Design 22 9/8/2014 10/7/2014


Design Approval 0 10/7/2014 10/7/2014


Order Processing 46 10/8/2014 12/12/2014


Process Equipment list 3 10/8/2014 10/10/2014


Order Bridged 0 10/10/2014 10/10/2014


Manufacturing  and Staging 43 10/13/2014 12/12/2014


Manufacture Motorola FNE 20 10/13/2014 11/7/2014


Develop Programming Configurations 11 10/13/2014 10/27/2014


Ship to Staging 0 11/7/2014 11/7/2014


Upgrade Operations 5 11/10/2014 11/14/2014


Stage System 15 11/10/2014 12/2/2014


Perform Staging ATP 3 12/3/2014 12/5/2014


CCSI Acceptance 0 12/5/2014 12/5/2014


Ship Equipment to Field 5 12/8/2014 12/12/2014


INSTALLATION 93 12/15/2014 4/28/2015


Console Installation 58 12/15/2014 3/10/2015


Install Console Regional Fire 7 12/15/2014 12/23/2014


Program Console Regional Fire 3 12/29/2014 12/31/2014


Install Console Galt 11 12/26/2014 1/12/2015


Program Console Galt 3 1/13/2015 1/15/2015


Install Console Elk Grove 13 1/13/2015 1/30/2015


Program Console Elk Grove 3 2/3/2015 2/5/2015


Install Console Sacramento PD 22 2/2/2015 3/3/2015


Program Console Sacramento PD 5 3/4/2015 3/10/2015


Install Console Folsom 5 12/15/2014 12/19/2014


Program Console Folsom 3 12/22/2014 12/26/2014


Install Console Citrus Heights 5 12/22/2014 12/30/2014


Program Console Citrus Heights 3 1/2/2015 1/6/2015


Install Console Airport 5 12/31/2014 1/7/2015


Program Console Airport 3 1/8/2015 1/12/2015


Install Console RT Light Rail 9 1/8/2015 1/21/2015


Program Console RT Light Rail 3 1/22/2015 1/26/2015


Install Console RT Bus 5 1/22/2015 1/28/2015


Program Console RT Bus 3 1/29/2015 2/2/2015


Install Console YECA 15 1/29/2015 2/18/2015


Program Console YECA 8 2/19/2015 3/2/2015


Installation Acceptance 0 3/10/2015 3/10/2015


System Optimization 32 3/16/2015 4/28/2015


Link Verification 5 3/16/2015 3/20/2015


Optimize System FNE 25 3/25/2015 4/28/2015


Optimization Complete 0 4/28/2015 4/28/2015


Audit and Acceptance Testing 39 3/16/2015 5/7/2015


Perform R-56 Audit 7 3/16/2015 3/24/2015


Perform System Testing 3 5/4/2015 5/6/2015


Cutover 1 5/6/2015 5/7/2015


Cut-Over 1 5/7/2015 5/7/2015


SATP Acceptance 0 5/6/2015 5/6/2015


Finalize 20 5/8/2015 6/5/2015


Resolve Punchlist 20 5/8/2015 6/5/2015


Finalize Documentation 20 5/8/2015 6/5/2015


Final Acceptance 0 6/5/2015 6/5/2015







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Warranty and Maintenance 5-1 


SECTION 5 


WARRANTY AND 
MAINTENANCE 
5.1 WARRANTY SERVICES 


Motorola will provide warranty services per our standard warranty terms and conditions as outlined 
within the Communication Systems Agreement within this proposal. In addition to the Standard 
Commercial Warranty, the service products that comprise the Custom Warranty package are listed 
below along with a brief description.   


5.1.1 Dispatch Service 
Motorola’s Dispatch Service ensures that trained and qualified technicians are dispatched to diagnose 
and restore your communications network. Following proven response and restoration processes, the 
local authorized service center in your area is contacted and a qualified technician is sent to your site. 
An automated escalation and case management process is followed to ensure that technician site 
arrival and system restoration comply with contracted response and restore times. Once the issue has 
been resolved, the System Support Center verifies resolution and with your approval, closes the case. 
Activity records are also available to provide a comprehensive history of site performance, issues, and 
resolution.  


5.1.2 OnSite Infrastructure Response 
Motorola OnSite Infrastructure Response provides local, trained and qualified technicians who arrive 
at your location to diagnose and restore your communications network. Following proven response 
and restore processes, Motorola Dispatch contacts the local authorized service center in your area and 
dispatches a qualified technician to your site. An automated escalation and case management process 
ensures that technician site arrival and system restoration comply with contracted response times. The 
field technician restores the system by performing first level troubleshooting on site. If the technician 
is unable to resolve the issue, the case is escalated to the System Support Center or product 
engineering teams as needed.  


5.1.3 Infrastructure Repair 
Infrastructure Repair service provides for the repair of all Motorola-manufactured equipment, as well 
as equipment from third-party infrastructure vendors. All repair management is handled through a 
central location eliminating your need to send equipment to multiple locations.  


Comprehensive test labs replicate your network in order to reproduce and analyze the issue. State-of-
the-art, industry-standard repair tools enable our technicians to troubleshoot, analyze, test, and repair 
your equipment. Our ISO9001 and TL9000-certified processes and methodologies ensure that your 
equipment is quickly returned maintaining the highest quality standards.  


Service agreements allow you to budget your maintenance costs on an annual basis. Equipment 
covered under service agreements also receives higher service priority, which results in quicker repair 
times. 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


5-2 Warranty and Maintenance Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


5.1.4 Technical Support Service 
Motorola Technical Support service provides an additional layer of support through centralized, 
telephone consultation for issues that require a high level of communications network expertise and 
troubleshooting capabilities. Technical Support is delivered by the System Support Center (SSC). The 
SSC is staffed with trained, skilled technologists specializing in the diagnosis and swift resolution of 
network performance issues. These technologists have access to a solutions database as well as in 
house test labs and development engineers. Technical Support cases are continuously monitored 
against stringent inbound call management and case management standards to ensure rapid and 
consistent issue resolution. Technical Support service translates into measurable, customer-specific 
metrics for assured network performance and system availability.  


5.1.5 Network Monitoring Service 
Network Monitoring Service can help keep your network at optimum availability so it is ready to 
serve mission critical communications needs. By watching over the network continuously, Network 
Monitoring Service takes action whenever needed, and resolves network problems. We often 
intervene and correct the problem before you even know a problem exists.  Network Monitoring 
Service provides improved productivity and enhanced network performance, which in turn helps to 
increase your technology Return-On-Investment. 
 
Using a combination of network monitoring software, automated alerts, and remote diagnostics 
inquiries, our System Support technologists actively monitor your network to maximize network 
uptime and overall preparedness…for the expected and unexpected. Upon receiving an alert, our team 
immediately performs a series of diagnostics to assess the problem. Often the situation can be 
resolved remotely, but when additional attention is required, local field technicians are dispatched 
immediately to your site to achieve restoration.  
 
Motorola’s Network Monitoring service is a vital component of an intelligent communication support 
plan that keeps your business operating smoothly, your costs down, and assures maximum 
preparedness at all times.  
 
Specifically, Network Monitoring Service provides: 
• Improved network availability 
• Remote and timely resolution to minimize downtime 
• Cost efficiencies  
• Optimize time at site due to assessment and knowledge transfer before dispatch 
• Minimize unnecessary trips to site 
• Mitigate need for 24x7 operations monitoring center 
• Detailed Reports 


5.1.6 Security Monitoring Service 
Security elements such as anti-virus, firewalls, and Intrusion Detection Systems (IDS) are a good first 
step, but they are not enough to secure your network. Radio network operators must take additional 
steps to reduce vulnerabilities to potential attack and protect critical radio network infrastructure. 
Motorola’s ASTRO 25 Security Monitoring is a complete solution that reduces the risk of network 
availability being impacted by a security threat. Specialized security analysts provide uninterrupted 
monitoring of the radio network security elements utilizing advanced correlation and visualization 
tools to detect, characterize, and respond to events that are specifically applicable to government and 
public safety radio networks. Our security analysts have direct and immediate access to Motorola 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Warranty and Maintenance 5-3 


engineers for rapid resolution. This level of service ensures the operational impact that security events 
may cause to your network are minimized or eliminated.   


5.1.7 Security Update Service (SUS) 
Commercial security software updates are often designed without RF systems in mind and could 
cause inadvertent harm to your radio network, disrupting mission-critical communications and putting 
your first responders and citizens at risk. The Motorola Security Update Service assures that 
commercial anti-virus definitions, operating system software patches, and Intrusion Detection Sensor 
signature files are compatible with your ASTRO 25 network and do not interfere with network 
functionality. Our expert network security technologists analyze, perform testing, and validate the 
latest security software updates in a dedicated test lab and provide continuous monitoring of updates 
to provide you regular electronic updates upon completion of successful testing. 
 
 


 SUS 


Anti‐virus Definition Update   


Minor Release (patch release)   


Information Assurance Remediation   


Major Release (system release)   


Hardware Refresh   


Implementation Services   


 
♦ Anti-virus definitions and intrusion detection sensor updates for Motorola supplied equipment 


from applicable original equipment manufacturer. 
 


♦ Minor releases may include commercial OS and application security updates, patches and service 
pack updates for Microsoft Windows and Server OS, Red Hat Linux, Sun Solaris and any 
Motorola software service packs that may be available  
 


♦ Recommendations for IA remediation may include, but is not limited to the following: provide 
security software updates; provide operating system security updates or patches; implement 
configuration changes; upgrade to a later ASTRO 25 System Release (upgrade expense not 
included), or recommending a compensating control 


5.2 SUMMARY 
Whether it’s a routine service call, or a disaster situation, Motorola understands its responsibility and 
takes pride in its commitment to deliver proven response service to the public safety community. 
Motorola has the capability to provide the technical, administrative, consultative, and maintenance 
repair services needed to support, enhance, and maintain the effectiveness of your communications 
network. Motorola’s goal is to provide the SRRCS member agencies with the qualified resources, to 
maintain and improve system operation and availability, and to deliver world class service support.   


 


Warranty Service Overview Warranty Year 


Dispatch Service  


On Site Infrastructure Response  







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


5-4 Warranty and Maintenance Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


Warranty Service Overview Warranty Year 


Infrastructure Repair  


Technical Support Service  


Network Monitoring Service  


Security Monitoring Service  


Security Update Service (SUS)  


 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Pricing Summary 6-1 


SECTION 6 


PRICING SUMMARY 
6.1 PRICING SUMMARY 


Motorola’s pricing is based on the equipment list and services defined for the system designed for 
Sacramento County. The Statement of Work (SOW) describes the work to be performed for the 
installation, optimization, and testing of the system and the equipment list provides the equipment 
necessary for this project. 


  







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


6-2 Pricing Summary Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


 


6.1.1 Option 1: Sacramento County / SRRCS, P25 Channel Migration (Phases 
2&3), MCC7500 Consoles, Subscribers and Flashes 
Below pricing includes 6-pack GTRs for the City Simulcast Subsystem (8 Racks) and County 
Simulcast Subsystem (16 racks), MCC7500 Consoles for 10 dispatch centers with a total of 65 
operator positions, and (700) APX6000 Model 2.5 portable radios. Includes (1400) P25 Subscriber 
Flashes with GTRs, MCC7500 Consoles, and APX6000 Subscriber purchase. 
Trade-in discount per operator position (63 positions to be traded in), and trade-in discount 
per Subscriber.  


 


Description Cost 


1. P25 Network Phase 2 & 3 Equipment $5,225,858


2. MCC7500 Dispatch Console Equipment (65) $3,356,269


3. APX6000 Portable Subscribers (700) $3,160,500


4. Subscriber Flashes (1,400) $1,941,000


Equipment List Price $13,683,627


System Integration (SI) & Services                                                $2,359,082


Subtotal Equipment & Services 
 
1. Contract Discount (Phase 2 & 3/ MCC7500) 


$16,042,709


(1,716,425)


2. Contract Discount (APX Subscribers) 
3. Subscriber Flash Incentive (Must order Phase 2 & 3, 
MCC7500s, 700 APX Subscribers and 1,400 flashes by 
9/26/14 and accept delivery by 12/22/14) 


($790,125)
($1,941,000)


 


4. MCC 7500 Trade-In (One per Replaced Position) ($270,900)


5. APX Volume Discount (Order 700 APX in 2014) ($142,223)


6. APX Trade–In (One per Radio Purchased) ($175,000)


7. APX Data Incentive ($157,500)


8. SRRCS 2014 Discount – Concurrent Projects (Must 
order Phase 2 & 3, MCC7500s, 700 APX Subscribers and 
1,400 flashes by 9/26/14 and accept delivery by 12/22/14) 


                                                ($500,000)


Subtotal Discounts & Incentives ($5,693,173)


 
Subtotal Equipment & Services 
Subtotal Discounts & Incentives 
Subtotal Customer Sales Price 
Estimated Sales Tax on Equipment (8.0%)                    


$16,042,709
($5,693,173)
$10,349,536


$647,244


Total Customer Sales Price $10,996,780


 


 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Pricing Summary 6-3 


6.1.2 Option 2: Sacramento County / SRRCS P25 Channel Migration (Phases 
2&3), MCC7500 Consoles and Flashes  
Below pricing includes 6-pack GTRs for the City Simulcast Subsystem (8 Racks) and County 
Simulcast Subsystem (16 racks), MCC7500 Consoles for 10 dispatch centers with a total of 65 
operator positions. Includes (700) P25 Subscriber Flashes with GTRs and Consoles purchase. 
Includes Trade-in discount per operator position (63 positions to be turned in). 


Description Cost 


1. P25 Network Phase 2 & 3 Equipment $5,225,858


2. MCC7500 Dispatch Console Equipment (65) $3,356,269


3. Subscriber Flashes (700) $920,500


Equipment List Price                                           $9,502,627   


System Integration (SI) & Services                                              $2,359,082


Subtotal Equipment & Services 
 
1. Contract Discount (Phase 2 & 3/ MCC7500) 


$11,861,709


($1,716,425)


2. Subscriber Flash Incentive (Must order Phase 2 & 3, 
MCC7500s and 700 flashes by 9/26/14 and accept 
delivery by 12/22/14) 


 ($920,500)


 


3. MCC 7500 Trade-In (One per Replaced Position) ($270,900)


Subtotal Discounts & Incentives ($2,907,825)


 
Subtotal Equipment & Services 
Subtotal Discounts & Incentives 
Subtotal Customer Sales Price 
Estimated Sales Tax on Equipment (8.0%) 


$11,861,709
($2,907,825)


$8,953,884
$527,584


Total Customer Sales Price $9,481,468


 


6.1.2.1 Option 3: Sacramento County / SRRCS MCC7500 Consoles and 
Flashes 


This option includes MCC7500 Consoles for 10 dispatch centers with a total of 65 operator positions.  
Includes (100) P25 Subscriber Flashes and Trade-in discount per position (63 positions to be traded 
in).  


Description Cost 


1. MCC7500 Dispatch Console Equipment (65) $3,356,269


2. Subscriber Flashes (100) $131,500


Equipment List Price                                         $3,487,769 


System Integration (SI) & Services                                              $1,375,278


Subtotal Equipment & Services 
 
1. Contract Discount (MCC7500) 


$4,863,047


($671,254)







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


6-4 Pricing Summary Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


Description Cost 


2. Subscriber Flash Incentive (Must order MCC7500s 
and 100 flashes by 9/26/14 and accept delivery by 
12/22/14) 


 ($131,500)


 


3. MCC 7500 Trade-In (One per Replaced Position) ($270,900)


Subtotal Discounts & Incentives ($1,073,654)


 
Subtotal Equipment & Services 
Subtotal Discounts & Incentives 
Subtotal Customer Sales Price 
Estimated Sales Tax on Equipment (8.0%) 


$4,863,047
($1,073,654)


$3,789,393
$193,129


Total Customer Sales Price $3,982,522


 


6.1.2.2 Sacramento County / SRRCS Subscribers and Flashes 
Below pricing includes (700) APX6000 model 2.5 Subscribers.  Includes (350) P25 Flashes and 
trade-in discount per Subscriber.  


 


Description Cost 


1. APX6000 Portable Subscribers (700) $3,160,500


2. Subscriber Flashes (350) $510,250


Equipment List Price $3,670,750


Subtotal Equipment $3,670,750


1. Contract Discount (APX Subscribers) 
2. Subscriber Flash Incentive (Must order 700 APX 
Subscribers and 350 flashes by 11/21/14 and accept 
delivery by 12/22/14) 


($790,125)
($510,250)


 


3. APX Volume Discount (Order 700 APX in 2014) ($142,223)


4. APX Trade–In (One per Radio Purchased) 
5. APX Data Incentive 


($175,000)
($157,500)


Subtotal Discounts & Incentives ($1,775,098)


 
Subtotal Equipment 
Subtotal Discounts & Incentives 
Subtotal Customer Sales Price 
Estimated Sales Tax on Equipment (8.0%) 


$3,670,750
($1,775,098)


$1,895,652
$151,652


Total Customer Sales Price  $2,047,304


 


 







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Pricing Summary 6-5 


6.1.2.3 Sacramento County / SRRCS Console Breakout by Dispatch Center 
Description Cost 


Citrus Heights (4 Positions) 


     Equipment $180,922 


     System Integration and Service Total  $94,476 


     Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($17,200)


     Citrus Heights Total $258,198 


Elk Grove Police ( 6 Positions)  


     Equipment $247,497 


     System Integration and Service Total  $137,530 


     Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($25,800)


     Elk Grove Police Total $359,227 


Folsom Police (6 Positions / 4 Trade-ins)  


     Equipment $256,545 


     System Integration and Service Total  $132,347 


     Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($17,200)


     Folsom Police Total $371,692 


Galt Police (3 Positions)  


     Equipment $149,860 


     System Integration and Service Total  $99,997 


     Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($12,900)


     Galt Police Total $236,957 


Sacramento Airport (4 Positions)  


     Equipment $183,873 


     System Integration and Service Total  $95,309 


     Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($17,200)


     Sacramento Airport Total $261,982 


Sacramento Police (20 Positions)  


     Equipment $696,398 


     System Integration and Service Total  $324,043 


     Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($86,000)


     Sacramento Police Total $934,441 


Sacramento Regional Transit Bus Dispatch (2 Positions)  


     Equipment $93,693 


     System Integration and Service Total  $49,534 


     Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($8,600)


     Sacramento Regional Transit Bus Dispatch Total $134,627 


Sacramento Regional Transit Light Rail Dispatch (2 Positions)  


     Equipment $217,910 


     System Integration and Service Total  $84,628 







  


14 July 2014 County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  


6-6 Pricing Summary Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  


Description Cost 


     Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($8,600)


          Sacramento Regional Transit Light Rail Dispatch Total $293,938


Sacramento Regional Fire (8 Positions only no backroom equipment) 


     Equipment $251,153 


     System Integration and Service Total  $114,741 


     Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($34,400)


     Sacramento Regional Fire Total $331,494 


Yolo Communications Emergency Agency (10 Positions)  


     Equipment $407,695 


     System Integration and Service Total  $242,143 


     Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($43,000)


     Yolo Communications Emergency Agency Total $606,838 


  


Total Equipment $2,685,545 


Total System Integration and Services $1,374,748 


Total Gold Elite Trade In Portion of System Package Discount ($270,900)


Total Dispatch Center Migration $3,789,393 


PAYMENT TERMS 
Except for a payment that is due on the Effective Date, Customer will make payments to Motorola 
within thirty (30) days after the date of each invoice.  Customer will make payments when due in the 
form of a check, cashier’s check, or wire transfer drawn on a U.S. financial institution and in 
accordance with the following milestones. 


1. 30% of the Contract Price for mobilization due at Contract Execution (Effective Date); 


2. 25% of the Contract Price upon shipment of equipment; 


3. 25% of the Contract Price upon installation of equipment, billable as follows: 
a. 7% upon installation of MCC7500 Consoles 
b. 8% upon installation of City sites (4) 
c. 10% upon installation of County sites (8) 


4. 15% of the Contract Price upon System Acceptance or start of Beneficial Use, whichever 
occurs first; 


5. 5% of the Contract Price upon Final System Acceptance.  


Overdue invoices will bear simple interest at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum, unless such 
rate exceeds the maximum allowed by law, in which case it will be reduced to the maximum 
allowable rate.  Motorola reserves the right to make partial shipments of equipment and to request 
payment upon shipment of such equipment.  In addition, Motorola reserves the right to invoice for 
installations or civil work completed on a site-by-site basis, when applicable. 







Date: July 10, 2014


Financing proposal for: Sacramento County, CA


Motorola Customer Financing recognizes that each opportunity presents unique 
issues and characteristics.  Therefore, our approach involves understanding our customer’s operational
goals and financial objectives.  Should you feel another financing structure is required, Motorola
Customer Financing would welcome the opportunity to work with you. 


Transaction Type: Municipal Lease-Purchase Agreement / Tax Exempt Financing


Lessor: Motorola Solutions, Inc. (or its Assignee)


Lessee: Sacramento County, CA


Amount: $12,000,000.00
Down Payment: $0.00
Balance to Finance: $12,000,000.00


Equipment: As per the Motorola Solutions equipment proposal.


Title, Insurance, & Title to the equipment will vest with the Lessee, and the Lessee will be
Maintenance responsible to insure & maintain the equipment as outlined in the lease contract. 


Taxes: Personal property, sales, leasing, use, stamp, or other taxes are for the
account of the Lessee.


Option 1 Option 2 Option 3


Balance to Finance: $10,996,780.00 $9,481,468.00 $3,982,522.00


Lease Term: Ten Annual Pmts Ten Annual Pmts Ten Annual Pmts


Lease Rate: 3.73% 3.73% 3.73%


Lease Factor: 0.125095 0.125095 0.125095


Lease Payment: $1,375,642.19 $1,186,084.24 $498,193.59


Estimated Lease Start Date: September 26, 2014 September 26, 2014 September 26, 2014


Payment Commencement: First payment due no 
later than 7/1/2016


First payment due 
no later than 
7/1/2016


First payment due no 
later than 7/1/2016


Please be advised the rates above are indicative of current market conditions and should be used for
INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY.  The actual lease rates will be locked on a mutually agreed upon
date closer to the actual order date and will reflect then-current market conditions.


Program Highlights: Low, tax exempt financing interest rates…the cheapest & easiest  way for


State & Locals to raise cash.


Stream-lined  documentation via an add-on lease schedule to the master


agreement contracted in 2013


Eliminate  miscellaneous financing costs associated with bonding…NO  special


counsel fees, underwriter's fees, origination costs, or reserve fund requirements.
Every dollar you borrow gets allocated towards your project.


No pre-payment penalties provided payment is made on a regularly scheduled
lease payment date.


Lease Payments are subject to annual appropriation, so the Lessee DOES
NOT  pledge its full faith and credit.


Qualifications: Receipt of a properly executed documentation package. 


The interest portion of the Lease Payments shall be excludable from the Lessor's
gross income pursuant to Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code.


Receipt of a copy of the last 2 year's audited financial statements
and current year's budget from the Lessee.


This proposal should not be construed as a commitment to finance.
It is subject to final credit approval.


For questions concerning this quote, please contact: Paul Mecaskey
Motorola Solutions Credit Company LLC
847-538-3707
pjm@motorolasolutions.com







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Contractual Documentation 7-1 


SECTION 7 


CONTRACTUAL 
DOCUMENTATION 
 


The Motorola proposal is based upon the existing County of Sacramento contract, Number 
MA00029847, and the terms and conditions of that master agreement will apply to this transaction.  
The County Sacramento may accept this proposal by simply issuing a purchase order that refers to 
and incorporates by reference the Motorola proposal and specifically refers to the County of 
Sacramento contract, Number MA00029847.







  


County of Sacramento / Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 14 July 2014 
Dispatch Center MCC7500 Migration Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 


 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Literature 8-1 


SECTION 8 


LITERATURE 
 


 







Designed to ensure optimal-quality audio, 
reliable communication and ease of use 
for dispatchers, the MCC 7500 IP Dispatch 
Console operator positions connect directly 
to the ASTRO 25 system for communication 
with both trunked and conventional radios, 
and for all other dispatch activity.


Integration of the MCC 7500 Console 
positions with the ASTRO 25 system 
enables full participation in end-to-end 
voice encryption for secure communication, 
priority handling of emergency calls and 
agency partitioning. Each console is 
centrally configured and managed from the 
network manager, providing vital efficiency.


EASY TO USE, FLEXIBLE, AND 
CUSTOMIZABLE USER INTERFACE
Featuring the Elite Graphical User Interface (GUI), which 
has been refined and proven through years of use 
in mission critical dispatch operations, the MCC 7500 
Console eases migration and minimizes user training 
requirements. 


The intuitive and familiar GUI is based on Microsoft 
Windows® and uses easily recognized icons and aliases. 
The GUI’s powerful customization capabilities enable 
the colors, sizes and locations of resources on the screens 


to be tailored to best meet each individual user’s needs. 
Designated folders organize resources for flexibility 
in handling responsibilities from shift to shift and 
increased efficiency in responding to events and incidents.


Trunked and conventional radio channels are customizable 
with various controls, such as patch status, frequency 
select, coded/clear select and individual volume control, 
based on user preferences. Per-channel controls can be fully 
or partially shown, or hidden to save space on the screen.


Busy dispatchers can respond to a missed call by simply 
clicking on an entry in the Activity Log. The number of 
calls and call information displayed in the Activity Log  
is customizable to suit the needs of the user(s).


Telephone resources are accessed and easily patched 
with radio resources within the MCC 7500 Dispatch 
Console’s GUI, eliminating the cost of having additional 
telephone equipment at the dispatch position and 
speeding communications between systems.


The status of auxiliary inputs and outputs is conveniently 
interpreted from the GUI with the use of familiar graphical 
icons, such as a door shown open or closed.


KEY INTEROPERABILITY FEATURES 
Agency Partitioning
Multiple agencies can share a system to gain 
interoperability and cost savings benefits, while still 
maintaining control of their own channels, encryption 
keys, console configuration and more. 


PRODUCT SPEC SHEET
MCC 7500 IP DISPATCH CONSOLE 


ASTRO® 25 MCC 7500 IP 
DISPATCH CONSOLE


CONSTANT COMMUNICATION WHEN IT MATTERS MOST







Priority for Emergencies
Transmit Priority Levels provide an orderly and consistent 
method for ensuring higher priority transmissions are able 
to take over resources from lower priority transmissions. 


Optimized Patch Functionality
MCC 7500 Console users can patch communications 
between trunked and/or conventional radios that are 
normally unable to communicate with each other. 
Patched radio users see the ID or alias of the other 
patched radio(s), as opposed to that of the console.  
This minimizes confusion and the need for the dispatcher 
to intervene in the call. Patches are automatically re-
established if interrupted so the MCC 7500 Console user 
can concentrate on continuing operations. 


Enhanced Secure Operation
Encryption and decryption services within each dispatch 
operator position enable dispatchers to fully participate  
in secure communications while keeping the sensitive, 
vital information completely encrypted between the 
dispatcher and the radio users. 


Dispatchers can interface with agencies that have 
different encryption configurations without any manual 
intervention or delay. Up to 60 calls using up to six 
different algorithms and multiple secure keys can be 
supported simultaneously. 


To help reduce dispatcher stress and potential errors 
when managing encrypted audio situations, indicators 
and alerts are provided when the console mode does  
not match that of a received call, as well as when a  
patch or multi-select group is being set up between  
a mix of clear and secure channels.


MCC 7500 CONSOLE SOLUTION 
COMPONENTS
MCC 7500 Console Operator Position
MCC 7500 Console operator positions connect directly to 
the radio system’s IP transport network without gateways 
or interface boxes. Audio processing, encryption, 
and switching intelligence for dispatch is performed 
within each software-based operator position, without 
additional centralized electronics. MCC 7500 Consoles 
function as integrated components of the total radio 
system, enabling full participation in system level features 
such as end-to-end encryption and agency partitioning. 


Operator position hardware consists of a monitor, personal 
computer, keyboard and mouse/trackball/ touchscreen, 
speakers, audio accessories and a Voice Processor Module 
(VPM). The VPM allows analog devices to be connected 
to the digital console. The low-profile VPM can be rack 
mounted, furniture mounted or placed on the desktop. 


The MCC 7500 Console does not require separate 
configuration or performance management equipment. 
The console system is configured and managed by the 
radio system’s configuration manager, fault manager 
and performance reporting applications to provide 
the customer with a single point for configuring 
and managing the entire radio system. Changes are 


automatically distributed throughout the system. This 
centralized approach saves valuable time and effort 
for system administrators and technicians. Aliases 
for Radio PTT IDs may be managed both locally and 
centrally in the same system to provide agencies 
sharing an ASTRO 25 radio system with the flexibility to 
meet their alias management needs.


CONVENTIONAL GATEWAY
The Conventional Channel Gateway (CCGW) enables 
both analog and digital channels to interface with  
MCC 7500 Consoles with no need for a separate 
hardware network and channel banks. Conventional calls 
are transported between the dispatch operator positions 
and CCGWs on the same IP network as trunked calls.


A CCGW provides 2-wire/4-wire analog ports for analog 
channels, V.24 ports for older ASTRO 25 conventional 
channels and IP connectivity for current architecture 
ASTRO 25 conventional channels. Enhanced digital 
control of consolettes can be achieved by using a 
combination of analog and V.24 ports. CCGWs are 
available in two capacities. The standard density CCGW 
supports up to eight “port based” channels and up to 
sixteen “IP based” channels for a total of twenty four 
channels. The high density CCGW supports up to sixteen 
“port based” channels and up to sixteen “IP based” 
channels for a total of thirty two channels.


The 2-wire/4-wire analog ports support tone remote and 
ear and mouth (E&M) station control. The V.24 ports and 
IP connections support digital station control while a 
combination of analog and V.24 ports support enhanced 
digital control of consolettes. The CCGW also supports 
simple analog, MDC 1200 analog, digital-only and 
mixed-mode analog/digital channels.


AUXILIARY INPUT/OUTPUT SERVER 
The auxiliary input/output server enables console 
operators to control and monitor external devices, such 
as doors and lights, from the console user interface. 
Since the MCC 7500 Console does not rely on centralized 
electronics, contact closures and input buffers required to 
interface to these devices are housed in Remote Terminal 
Units (RTUs). These RTUs can be physically located close 
to where they are needed or at any console or radio 
frequency (RF) site. The dispatch consoles and RTUs 
communicate with each other across the radio system’s IP 
transport network. 


ARCHIVING INTERFACE SERVER (AIS) 
The AIS is a digital logging interface, comprised of a 
personal computer and a voice processor module (VPM). 
Each AIS works with an IP-based logging recorder. Audio 
and call control information is sent across the IP network 
between the AIS and recorder. Highly configurable, the 
MCC 7500 Console logging solution includes:


•   Recorded audio quality equivalent to audio heard at 
console position 


•   Information associated with radio calls recorded in 
addition to the call audio. 


PRODUCT SPEC SHEET
MCC 7500 IP DISPATCH CONSOLE 







SPECIFICATIONS


System Compatibility ASTRO® 25 System and PremierOne™ CAD Application


Vocoder Algorithms supported AMBE, IMBE, ACELP, G.728, G.711


Encryption Algorithms supported AES (256 bit), DES-OFB, DVI-XL, ADP (Advanced Digital Privacy), DES-XL, DVP-XL


Monitor requirements 
With Mouse or Trackball 17” minimum, 20” recommended 
Touchscreen 20” minimum


Voice Processor Module (VPM)  
connections Connector type Device 
 RJ45  One desktop microphone, eight desktop speakers, one local logging 


recorder, one radio instant recall recorder, one console telephony instant 
recall recorder, one external telephone set, one external paging encoder, 
one footswitch


 DB15 Two headset jacks connectors


VPM mounting options EIA 19” rack mount, console furniture mount, Desktop – supports monitor up to 80 lbs


VPM audio inputs and outputs  600 Ohm, balanced and transformer coupled (except for microphone which is 2000 Ohm, balanced, and does not 
use a transformer)


Speaker Mounting Options Desktop, furniture mount, or wall mount (with bracket accessory)


Dispatch Console Cable Lengths VPM to Speaker cable 10.1 feet (3.09 meters) standard 
 VPM to Headset Jack cable 6 feet (1.8 meters) standard 
 Headset Jack Extension cable 6 feet (1.8 meters) standard 
 VPM to Microphone cable 10 feet (3.05 meters) standard 
 VPM to Footswitch cable 10 feet (3.05 meters) standard


Supported Console Site Fractional T1/E1, Single T1/E1, Multiple T1/E1s 
Link types Redundant and non-redundant versions IP site links


MCC 7500 Dispatch Up to 60 simultaneous audio sessions per operator position 
Console Capacities Up to 60 simultaneous encryption/decryption sessions per secure capable operator position 
 Up to 3 Multi-Select groups per operator position (with up to 20 members per Multi-Select group) 
 Up to 16 Patch groups per operator position (with up to 20 members per Patch group) 
 Up to 160 resources per operator position


Conventional Channel Gateway Rack mountable, 1 rack unit high 
 T1R1, T2R2, T4R4, T8R8, T12R12, T14R14 channels 
 Simple analog, MDC 1200 analog, pure digital, mixed mode (analog/digital) channels, consolettes 
 Standard density CCGWs provide interfaces for up to four analog conventional channels  
 High density CCGWs provide interfaces for up to eight analog conventional channels
 Each analog conventional channel interface contains the following inputs and outputs 
 •   600 Ohm, balanced analog audio input - To accept radio audio from the channel. Can be configured to support 


AGC, DLM, or no input conditioning.
 •  600 Ohm, balanced analog audio output - To send console transmit audio to the channel
 •  600 Ohm, balanced analog audio output - To send console transmit and radio receive audio to a logging recorder
 •  1 Amp, 24 VDC relay output - For relay keying of the channel 
 •  Input buffer - To detect Carrier Operated Relay (COR) closure in the channel 
 •  Input buffer - To detect Line Operated Busy Light (LOBL) closure in the channel 
 •  Input buffer - To detect Coded/Clear closure on an Advanced Securenet channel
 Standard density CCGWs provide interfaces for up to four V.24 based ASTRO 25 conventional channels
 High density CCGWs provide interfaces for up to eight V.24 based ASTRO 25 conventional channels
 •  V.24 to station or comparator. No Digital Interface Unit (DIU) required.
  Standard density CCGWs can support up to 24 conventional channels simultaneously ( four analog + four V.24  


based ASTRO 25 conventional + sixteen IP based ASTRO 25 conventional)
  High density CCGWs can support up to 32 conventional channels simultaneously ( eight analog + eight V.24 based 


ASTRO 25 conventional + sixteen IP based ASTRO 25 conventional)


PRODUCT SPEC SHEET
MCC 7500 IP DISPATCH CONSOLE 


•   Dispatcher- and radio-initiated events on radio channels 
(such as changing the frequency, sending an alarm)  
are recorded. 


•   Recorder capacity based on the number of radio 
transmissions needed to record simultaneously,  
not on the number of channels it may record. 


•   Agency partitioning, enhancing control over which 
resources are recorded by what agency or department. 


•   Security and fault management centralized at the  
radio system’s network manager.


CONSOLE TELEPHONY MEDIA GATEWAYS 
Media gateways are used to provide dispatchers with 
access to analog POTS and/or T1/E1  phone lines directly 
from their MCC 7500 Console positions. The Session 
Initiation Protocol (SIP) is used to communicate with 
the media gateways across the console IP network. A 
rich set of telephony features is supported by the media 
gateways, enabling dispatchers to do their jobs more 
effectively and efficiently.







SPECIFICATIONS 


Auxiliary Input/Output  A simplified, user-friendly version of the MOSCAD SDM 3000 RTU is used to support most Aux I/O needs. 
Server Hardware  The output relays are capable of switching 1A @ 24VDC or 1A @ 24VAC. Input buffers are capable of sensing a dry 


closure through 1000 feet or less (round trip) of 24 AWG wire. The RTU provides single pole Form A relay outputs. 
(Double pole, Form B or Form C relays must be implemented using external relays which are controlled by the RTU relays.)


Auxiliary Input/Output Capacities Number of Output Relays Number of Input Buffers


Single SDM 3000 RTU 16 48


Single SDM 3000 RTU 32 96 
with 1 expansion chassis


Single SDM 3000 RTU 48 144 
with 2 expansion chassis       


Auxiliary Input/Output Mounting  Each SDM 3000 RTU and each SDM 3000 RTU Expansion Chassis is rack mountable in a standard 19 inch rack and 
is one rack unit high.


Console Telephony Media Gateway   The POTS version gateway supports up to eight analog POTS lines. The E1/T1 version gateway supports up to two E1 or 
two T1 connections. Each gateway is rack mountable in a standard 19 inch rack and is 1 rack unit high.


SIZE AND WEIGHT 


Device   Height Width Depth Weight


VPM  1.75 in (44.5 mm) 16.9 in (430 mm) 12.3 in (312 mm) 3.6 lbs (1.6 kg)


Speaker  4.9 in (124 mm) 4 in (102 mm) Without bracket:  0.7 lbs (0.3 kg) 
         3.5 in (89 mm)  


    With bracket:  
         5.8 in (146 mm) 


Headset Jack  1.6 in (41 mm) 5 in (127 mm) 6 in (152 mm) 1.2 lbs (0.5 kg) 


Microphone   Gooseneck at 90º: 
  4.5 in (114 mm) 4.8 in (121 mm) 6.6 in (168 mm) 2.4 lbs (1.1 kg)


  Gooseneck at 180º: 
  21.8 in (552 mm) 


POWER AND CONSUMPTION THERMAL


Device Power Input Thermal Output


VPM 0.4 Amps at 120VAC 171 BTUs/hour 
 0.2 Amps at 240VAC


Speaker Add 0.05 Amps per speaker Add 15 BTUs/hour per speaker 
 to VPM power Input at 120VAC to VPM thermal output 
 (0.025 Amps at 240VAC)


Headset Jack & Microphone negligible negligible


CERTIFICATIONS


  The various hardware elements of the Motorola MCC 7500 IP Dispatch Console product line are certified to meet 
the requirements for CSA and CE.


Safety CSA 60950-1-03 
 EN60950-1 2001


EMC Emissions & Immunity FCC part 15 Class A 
 ICES-003 
 EN55022 1998 + A1: 2001 + A2:2003 (CISPR-22 Class A) 
 EN55024 + A1:2001 + A2:2003 
 EN61000-3-2 2000 
 EN61000-3-3 1995 + A1:2001


Energy Efficiency International Energy Efficiency Level V  
(PVM power supply only)


PRODUCT SPEC SHEET
MCC 7500 IP DISPATCH CONSOLE 


  
MOTOROLA, MOTO, MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS and the Stylized M Logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Motorola Trademark Holdings, LLC and are 
used under license. Microsoft and Windows are registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and other countries. All other trademarks 
are the property of their respective owners. © 2012 Motorola Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.  R3-13-2013C


Motorola Solutions, Inc. 1301 E. Algonquin Road, Schaumburg, Illinois 60196 U.S.A.  motorola.com/dispatch



http://www.motorola.com/dispatch





PRODUCT SPEC SHEET
ASTRO®25 GGM 8000 GATEWAY


Government and industrial organizations 
rely on ASTRO 25 systems for mission 
critical communications. The GGM 8000 
gateway has been designed and 
developed by Motorola as a critical 
sub-system in an ASTRO 25 system 
providing enhanced performance, 
capacity and security. 


The GGM 8000 gateway is a purpose built device 
that supports numerous applications, interfaces and 
functions in the ASTRO 25 infrastructure system plus it 
provides a clean demarcation between the ASTRO 25 
system and the customer’s network. It provides static 
tunnels through the backhaul network so that it does 
not have to handle any special protocols, including 
multicast. As an integral part of the ASTRO 25 system 
Motorola manages the firmware, configurations and 
applications to ensure the highest level of system 
integrity, performance, and information assurance.  
As a modular designed gateway all modules can be 
replaced without removal of the chassis from the rack 
enhancing serviceability.


ASTRO®25 GGM 8000 
GATEWAY


CONNECTIVITY PROVIDED
• ASTRO 25 Core 


• ASTRO 25 Sites 
 •   MCC 7500 Dispatch 
 •   Trunking 
 •    Conventional – Analog 4 wire, Digital V.24 


and/or IP
 •   HPD 
 •   SmartX
 •   ISSI


• Customer Enterprise Network  (CEN) 


FUNCTIONS PERFORMED  
• Radio system traffic call routing (voice and data)


• Packet duplication


• High reliability control – fast failover


• Traffic Shaping (Packet fragmentation, Prioritization, 
and Queuing)


• Dynamic System Resilience site routing


• IP Simulcast traffic routing


• Zone Core Protection (ZCP)


• Conventional Channel Gateway (Station Control)


• Advanced Conventional Signaling (For example 
MDC1200 and ACIM) 


PHYSICAL INTERFACES
• Ethernet and T1 interfaces for WAN connectivity 


• Ethernet for Site LAN including IP Station Interfaces


• Analog and V.24 Conventional station interfaces  


• FlexWAN interface for selected legacy networks


MISSION CRITICAL CONNECTIVITY AND PERFORMANCE







PRODUCT SPEC SHEET
ASTRO®25 GGM 8000 GATEWAY


Motorola, Inc. 1301 E. Algonquin Road, Schaumburg, Illinois 60196 U.S.A.  motorola.com/ASTRO25
MOTOROLA, MOTO, MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS and the Stylized M Logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Motorola Trademark Holdings, LLC 
and are used under license. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners.  © 2010 Motorola, Inc. All rights reserved.


R3-26-2011 (1010)


SECURITY FUNCTIONALITY
Supports data encryption over Ethernet and T1/E1 links 
using the IPSec and FRF.17 protocols and the optional 
encryption module. 


• Data encryption – Data Encryption Standard (DES), 
Triple DES (3DES), and 256-bit Advanced Encryption 
Standard (AES) algorithms


• Data authentication – Message Digest 5 (MD5) 
algorithm and Secure Hash Algorithm (SHA)


• Public key execution – Diffie-Hellman Group 1,  
Group 2, and Group 5 negotiation, Group 14


• SSH (secure shell) client/server architecture – 
secure encrypted communications between two 
trusted hosts over insecure networks. 


• Password Protection 


• Zeroization of critical security parameters (CSPs) – 
Supports commands to zeroize all Key Encryption Key 
(KEK) related information and CSPs in the event of a 
security breach


PHYSICAL SPECIFICATIONS


Dimensions 44 cm (w) x 4.3 cm (h) x 37 cm (d)


Weight 7.3 kg (16 lb) 


ENVIRONMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS


Temperature  –30 °C to 60 °C (–22 °F to 140 °F) operating 
for base unit with or without encryption 
module


   0 °C to 50 °C (32 °F to 122 °F) operating for 
base unit configured with optional interface 
modules


   –40 °C to 85 °C (–40 °F to 185 °F)  
non-operating


Humidity 5 to 95% (Non-Condensing)


Heat Dissipation 163 BTU/Hour (Maximum)


Power Consumption 48 Watts (Maximum)


AC Power Configuration


 Operating Range 100V to 240V, 50/60Hz


 Current Draw  Less than 0.50A at 120VAC 
Less than 0.25A at 220VAC


DC Power Configuration


 Operating Range 20 to 60 VDC 


 Current Draw  Less than 2.0A at 24VDC 
Less than 1.0A at 48VDC 


PRODUCT SAFETY CERTIFICATIONS


North America  UL60950-1,  
CSA C22.2 No. 60950-1 


EMC/EMI CERTIFICATIONS


North America FCC Part 15; Class A 
  Industry Canada ICES-003; Class A


Europe (EU)


 EN 55022 Radiated Emissions; Class A 
 EN 55022 Conducted Emissions; Class A 
 EN 61000-3-2 Harmonics 
 EN 61000-3-3 Flicker 
 EN 55024 Immunity 
 EN 61000-4-2 ESD Immunity 
 EN 61000-4-3 Radiated Immunity 
 EN 61000-4-4 EFT/B Immunity 
 EN 61000-4-5 Surge 
 EN 61000-4-6 Conducted Immunity 
 EN 61000-6-11 Voltage Interruption / Dips


Australia /  
New Zealand AS/NZS CISPR 22; Class B


Japan VCCI Class B 


TELECOMMUNICATIONS APPROVALS


North America FCC Part 68, IC CS-03


Europe (EU) ETSI/TBR1, TBR2, TBR12, TBR13, TBR17


Australia /  
New Zealand AS/ACIF S003, ACA TS016, TNA117 


ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATORY


EU WEEE Directive EN 50419 Compliant


China Management  
Methods (CMM) Ministry Order #39


CONFIGURATION


Base Platform Configuration   Enclosure; Power Subsystem (AC or DC); Base Module; Console Management Port (9 Pin); Four 10/100/1Gbps 
Base-T Ethernet Ports; Two T1/E1 WAN Telecommunication Ports


Optional Modules   Encryption module; Analog 4 wire/V.24 Interface kit: 4x4wire with E&M analog ports, 4xv.24 digital ports; 
Flexwan module: 1 multipurpose port, typically used for v.35 interface



http://www.motorola.com/ASTRO25





PRODUCT SPEC SHEET 
APX™ 6000 


APX 
™ 6000 PROJECT 25  


PORTABLE RADIO


 


Delivering outstanding performance in a 
compact form factor without sacrificing the 
features you need most. The APX™ 6000 
is the next generation of ruggedly-reliable 
performers that gives you the advanced 
features such as Mission Critical Wireless 
and GPS location tracking in a small, P25 
Phase 2 capable radio. Whether you’re 
on patrol or racing to a fire, the APX 6000 
puts you in greater control of your safety, 
response time and technology investment.


Focus on the task not the technology, with 
the real-world ready radio that turns mission 
critical into mission complete.


CUTTING-EDGE FEATURES 
IN A COMPACT SIZE 
• Innovative T-grip design gives you a secure grip  
    and better control  
• High-contrast color display is easy to read in  
    different lighting conditions  
• Top display is quick to read while looking down,  
    at a glance or from an angle  
• Universal push-to-talk button with enhanced grooves  
    is easy to find by “touch” 


EXCELLENT AUDIO YOU CAN 
HEAR LOUD AND CLEAR 
• Excellent audio ensures voice communications  
    are intelligible, even in high noise environments  
• Dual sided 2 microphone noise canceling technology  
• Equipped with the latest AMBE digital voice vocoder


FUTURE-READY TECHNOLOGY 
TO RELY ON TODAY 
• Small P25 Phase 2 capable radio  
    that provides twice the voice capacity  
• Backwards and forwards compatible with all  
    Motorola mission critical radio systems  
• Supports applications like Mission Critical Wireless  
    and GPS location tracking for greater safety


   Universal Push-to-Talk
   T-Grip
   Dual Battery Latch
   Orange emergency button
   16 position rotary switch
   2 position concentric 
switch


   3 position toggle switch
   3 programmable  
side buttons


   Transmit LED indicator
   Backlit Keypad: 


 Home and Data buttons
 3 soft keys
  4 direction  
navigation key
   4 x 3 keypad


   Full Bitmap Display:
  2 lines of icons
  4 lines x  
14 characters of text
 Status icons







PAGE 2


PRODUCT SPEC SHEET 
APX™ 6000 


***Standard shipping battery


TRANSMITTER - TYPICAL PERFORMANCE SPECIFICATIONS
700/800 VHF UHF Range 1 UHF Range 2


Frequency Range/Bandsplits 700 MHz
800 MHz


763-776, 793-806 MHz
806-824, 851-870 MHz 136-174 MHz 380-470 MHz 450-520 MHz


Channel Spacing 25/20/12.5 kHz 25/20/12.5 kHz 25/20/12.5 kHz 25/20/12.5 kHz


Maximum Frequency Separation Full Bandsplit Full Bandsplit Full Bandsplit Full Bandsplit


Rated RF Output Power Adj1 1-3 Watts Max 1-6 Watts Max 1-5 Watts Max 1-5 Watts


Frequency Stability1


(–30°C to +60°C; +25°C Ref.) ±0.00010 % ±0.00010 % ±0.00010 % ±0.00010 %


Modulation Limiting1 ±5 kHz / ±4 kHz / ±2.5 kHz ±5 kHz / ±2.5 kHz ±5 kHz / ±2.5 kHz ±5 kHz / ±4 kHz / ±2.5 kHz


Emissions (Conducted and Radiated)1 –75 dB –75 dB –75 dB –75 dB


Audio Response1 +1, –3 dB +1, –3 dB +1, –3 dB +1, –3 dB


FM Hum & Noise 700 MHz
800 MHz


-48 dB/-47 dB 
-46 dB/-45 dB


–47 dB 
–45 dB


–47 dB 
–45 dB


–47 dB 
–45 dB


Audio Distortion1          700 MHz
800 MHz


0.60 %
1 % 0.50 % 0.50 % 0.50 %


BATTERIES FOR APX 6000


Battery Capacity / Type Dimensions (HxWxD) Weight Battery Part Number Battery Capacity


Li-Ion IMPRES 2150 mAh IP67*** 3.39” x 2.34” x 1.46” 5 oz PMNN4403 2150 mAh


Li-Ion IMPRES 2900 mAh IP67 3.07” x 2.34” x 1.65” 6.53 oz NNTN7038 2900 mAh


Li-Ion IMPRES 4200 mAh IP67 5.07” x 2.34” x 1.65” 11.29 oz NNTN7034 4200 mAh


Li-Ion IMPRES 4100 mAh FM2 IP67 5.07” x 2.34” x 1.65” 11.29 oz NNTN7033 4100 mAh


NiMH IMPRES 2100 mAh IP67 5.12” x 2.34” x 1.57” 11.82 oz NNTN7037 2100 mAh


NIMH IMPRES 2000 mAh FM2 IP67 5.12” x 2.34” x 1.57” 11.82 oz NNTN7036 2000 mAh


NiMH IMPRES 2000 mAh FM2 Rugged 5.12” x 2.34” x 1.57” 11.82 oz NNTN7035 2000 mAh


NiMH IMPRES 2100 mAh Rugged 5.12” x 2.34” x 1.57” 11.82 oz NNTN7573 2100 mAh


Li-Ion IMPRES 2300 mAh FM2 Rugged 3.39” x 2.34” x 1.65” 6.53 oz NNTN8092 2300 mAh


FEATURES AND BENEFITS:
Available in 700/800 MHz, VHF, UHF R1, and UHF R2 bands
Trunking standards supported:
  Clear or digital encrypted ASTRO®25 Trunked Operation
  Capable of SmartZone®, SmartZone Omnilink, SmartNet®


Analog MDC-1200 and Digital APCO P25 Conventional 
System Configurations
Narrow and wide bandwidth digital receiver 
(6.25 kHz equivalent/25/20/12.5 KHz)
Embedded digital signaling (ASTRO & ASTRO 25)
Available in 3 models 
Integrated GPS capable
Intelligent Lighting
Radio Profiles
Unified Call List (Models 2.5 and 3.5 only)
User programmable voice announcement
Meets Applicable MIL-STD-810C, D, E, F and G
IP67 standard  
(submersible 1 meter, 30 minutes)**
Yellow and green colored housing options
Custom recess label areas


Superior Audio Features:
  0.5 W high audio speaker
  Dual microphones
  2-mic noise canceling technology


Utilizes Windows XP, Vista and Windows 7 Customer 
Programming Software (CPS)
  Supports USB communications
  Built in FLASHport™ support


Full portfolio of accessories including IMPRES batteries, 
chargers and audio devices
OPTIONAL FEATURES:
Mission Critical Wireless***
Enhanced Encryption capability
Programming Over Project 25
Over the Air Rekey
Text Messaging
Man Down
Rugged submersible housing** (2 meters, 2 hours)


*Per the FCC Narrowbanding rules, new products (APX6000 UHFR1, UHFR2 ) 
submitted for FCC certification after January 1, 2011 are restricted from being 
granted certification at 25KHz for United States  - State & Local Markets only.


** Radios meet industry standards (IPx7) for immersion.
*** Compatible with BT 2.0 and HSP and PAN BT Profiles







PAGE 3


PRODUCT SPEC SHEET 
APX™ 6000 


RADIO MODELS


MODEL 1.5 MODEL 2.5 MODEL 3.5


Display


Full bitmap monochromatic LCD top display 
1 line text x 8 characters


1 line of icons 
 No menu support


Multi-color backlight


Top display plus: 
Full bitmap color LCD display
4 lines of text x 14 characters


2 lines of icons 
 1 menu line x 3 menus


White backlight


Top display plus: 
Full bitmap color LCD display
4 lines of text x 14 characters


2 lines of icons 
 1 menu line x 3 menus


White backlight


Keypad


none Backlight keypad
3 soft keys


4 direction Navigation key 
Home and Data buttons


Backlight keypad
3 soft keys


4 direction navigation key
4x3 keypad


Home and Data buttons


Channel Capacity* 96 1000 1000


FLASHport Memory 64 MB 64 MB 64 MB


700/800 MHz (763-870 MHz) H98UCD9PW5AN   Q360NM H98UCF9PW6AN   Q360NN H98UCH9PW7AN   Q360EF


VHF (136-174 MHz) H98KGD9PW5AN    Q360NP H98KGF9PW6AN    Q360NR H98KGH9PW7AN    Q360EG


UHF Range 1 (380-470 MHz) H98QDD9PW5AN    Q360NS H98QDF9PW6AN    Q360NT H98QDH9PW7AN    Q360EH


UHF Range 2 (450-520 MHz) H98SDD9PW5AN    Q360NU H98SDF9PW6AN    Q360NV H98SDH9PW7AN    Q360FC


Buttons & Switches
Large PTT button    Angled On/Off volume control    Orange emergency button    16 position top-mounted rotary switch   


  2-position concentric switch    Multi-color backlight    3-position toggle switch    3 programmable side buttons


Transmitter Certification
700/800 (764-869 MHz) AZ489FT5863


VHF (136-174 MHz) AZ489FT3829


UHF Range 1 (380-470 MHz) AZ489FT4892


UHF Range2 (450-520 MHz)  AZ489FT4903


FCC Emissions Designators
FCC Emissions Designators 11K0F3E, 16K0F3E, 8K10F1D, 8K10F1E, 8K10F1W, 20K0F1E**


Power Supply
Power Supply One rechargeable 2150 mAh Li-Ion Battery Standard (PMNN4403), with alternate battery options available. 


RECEIVER - TYPICAL PERFORMANCE SPECIFICATIONS
700/800 VHF UHF Range 1 UHF Range 2


Frequency Range/Bandsplits 700 MHz
800 MHz


763-776 MHz 
851-870 MHz 136-174 MHz 380-470 MHz 450-520 MHz


Channel Spacing 25/20/12.5 kHz 25/20/12.5 kHz 25/20/12.5 kHz 25/20/12.5 kHz


Maximum Frequency Separation Full Bandsplit Full Bandsplit Full Bandsplit Full Bandsplit


Audio Output Power at Rated1 500mW 500mW 500mW 1000 mW


Frequency Stability1


(–30°C to +60°C; +25°C Ref.) ±0.00010 % ±0.00010 % ±0.00010 % ±0.00010 %


Analog Sensitivity3


Digital Sensitivity4
12 dB SINAD
1% BER (800 MHz)
5% BER


0.250 μV
0.347 μV (0.333 μV)


0.251 μV


0.216 μV
0.277 μV
0.188 μV


0.234 μV
0.307 μV
0.207 μV


0.234 μV 
0.307 μV 
0.207 μV


Selectivity1 25 kHz channel
12.5 kHz channel


75.7 dB
67.5 dB


79.3 dB
70 dB


78.3 dB
68.1 dB


78.3 dB 
67.5 dB


Intermodulation 80 dB 80.5 dB 80.2 dB 80.2 dB


Spurious Rejection 76.6 dB 93.2 dB 80.3 dB 80.3 dB


FM Hum and Noise 25 kHz
12.5 kHz


-54 dB
-48 dB


-53.8 dB
-48 dB


-53.5 dB
-47.4 dB


–53.5 dB  
–47.4 dB


Audio Distortion1 .9 % 1.20 % 0.91 % 0.91 %


*Enhancement package available 
**Per the FCC Narrowbanding rules, new products (APX6000 UHFR1, UHFR2 ) submitted for FCC certification after January 1, 2011 are restricted from being granted certification at 25KHz for United States  - State & Local Markets only.







PRODUCT SPEC SHEET 
APX™ 6000 


MOTOROLA, MOTO, MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS and the Stylized M Logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Motorola Trademark Holdings, LLC and 
are used under license. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. © 2014 Motorola Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved. R3-4-2035I


Motorola Solutions, Inc.  1301 East Algonquin Road Schaumburg, Illinois 60196, U.S.A.   800-367-2346 
motorolasolutions.com


ENCRYPTION
Supported Encryption Algorithms ADP, AES, DES, DES-XL, DES-OFB, DVP-XL


Encryption Algorithm Capacity 8


Encryption Keys per Radio Module capable of storing 1024 keys.
Programmable for 64 Common Key Reference (CKR) or 16 
Physical Identifier (PID)


Encryption Frame Re-sync 
Interval


P25 CAI 300 mSec


Encryption Keying Key Loader


Synchronization XL – Counter Addressing
OFB – Output Feedback


Vector Generator National Institute of Standards and Technology
(NIST) approved random number generator


Encryption Type Digital


Key Storage Tamper protected volatile or non-volatile memory


Key Erasure Keyboard command and tamper detection


Standards FIPS 140-2 Level 3 
FIPS 197


ENVIRONMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS
Operating Temperature6 -30ºC / +60ºC


Storage Temperature6 -40ºC / +85ºC


Humidity Per MIL-STD


ESD IEC 801-2 KV


Water and Dust Intrusion IP67, MIL-STD


Immersion MIL-STD 512.X/I


RUGGED OPTION SPECIFICATIONS


Leakage (immersion)
MIL-STD-810 C,D,E,F and G
Method 512.X Procedure I


Housing Availability
Black (Standard), Public Safety Yellow  


and High Impact Green


1 Measured in the analog mode per TIA / EIA 603 under nominal conditions
2 When used with an FM approved intrinsically safe radio
3  Measured conductively in analog mode per TIA / EIA 603 under nominal conditions.
4  Measured conductively in digital mode per TIA / EIA IS 102.CAAA under nominal conditions.
5  Accuracy specs are for long-term tracking (95th percentile values >5 satellites visible at a
 nominal –130 dBm signal strength).
6  Temperatures listed are for radio specifications. Battery storage is recommended at 25°C,
 ±5°C to ensure best performance.


 Specifications subject to change without notice. All specifications shown are typical.
 Radio meets applicable regulatory requirements.


PORTABLE MILITARY STANDARDS 810 C, D, E , F & G
MIL-STD 810C MIL-STD 810D MIL-STD 810E MIL-STD 810F MIL-STD 810G


Method Proc./Cat. Method Proc./Cat. Method Proc./Cat. Method Proc./Cat. Method Proc./Cat.
Low Pressure 500.1 I 500.2 II 500.3 II 500.4 II 500.5 II


High Temperature 501.1 I, II 501.2 I/A1, II/A1 501.3 I/A1, II/A1 501.4 I/Hot, II/Basic Hot 501.5 I/A1, II/A2


Low Temperature 502.1 I 502.2 I/C3, II/C1 502.3 I/C3, II/C1 502.4 I/C3, II/C1 502.5 I/C3, II/C1


Temperature Shock 503.1 I 503.2 I/A1C3 503.3 I/A1C3 503.4 I 503.5 I/C


Solar Radiation 505.1 II 505.2 I 505.3 I 505.4 I 505.5 I/A1


Rain 506.1 I, II 506.2 I, II 506.3 I, II 506.4 I, III 506.5 I, III


Humidity 507.1 II 507.2 II 507.3 II 507.4 1 Proc 507.5 II/Aggravated


Salt Fog 509.1 I 509.2 I 509.3 I 509.4 1 Proc 509.5 1 Proc


Blowing Dust 510.1 I 510.2 I 510.3 I 510.4 I 510.5 I


Blowing Sand 1 Proc 1 Proc 510.2 II 510.3 II 510.4 II 510.5 II


Immersion 512.1 I 512.2 I 512.3 I 512.4 I 512.5 I


Vibration 514.2 VIII/F, Curve-W 514.3 I/10, II/3 514.4 I/10, II/3 514.5 I/24 514.6 I/24


Shock 516.2 I, III, V 516.3 I, V, VI 516.4 I, V, VI 516.5 I, V, VI 516.6 I, V, VI


Shock (Drop) 516.2 II 516.2 IV 516.4 IV 516.5 IV 516.6 IV


GPS SPECIFICATIONS
Channels 12


Tracking Sensitivity –159 dBm


Accuracy5 <10 meters (95%)


Cold Start <60 seconds (95%)


Hot Start <10 seconds (95%)


Mode of Operation Autonomous (Non-Assisted) GPS


DIMENSIONS OF THE RADIOS WITHOUT BATTERY
Inches Millimeters


Length 5.47 139


Width Push-To-Talk button 2.39 60.7


Depth Push-To-Talk button 1.40 35.6


Width Top 2.98 75.7


Depth Top 1.58 40.1


Depth Bottom of Battery 1.24 31.5


Weight of the radios without battery 10.9 oz 309 g











